Public Document Pack

Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

PENSIONS COMMITTEE

200 om Tuesday Council Chamber -
PP 1 October 2024 Town Hall
Members 6: Quorum 3
COUNCILLORS:
Conservative Group Havering Residents’ Group Labour Group
(2) (3) (1)
Joshua Chapman James Glass Mandy Anderson (Chairman)

Viddy Persaud

Jacqueline Williams
Stephanie Nunn (Vice-Chair)

Trade Union Observers

(No Voting Rights) (2)
Derek Scott

Andy Hampshire

Admitted/Scheduled Bodies
Representative

(Voting Rights) (0)

For information about the meeting please contact:

Luke Phimister 01708 434619
luke.phimister@onesource.co.uk




Pensions Committee, 1 October 2024

Under the Committee Procedure Rules within the Council’s Constitution
the Chairman of the meeting may exercise the powers conferred upon the
Mayor in relation to the conduct of full Council meetings. As such, should
any member of the public interrupt proceedings, the Chairman will warn
the person concerned. If they continue to interrupt, the Chairman will
order their removal from the meeting room and may adjourn the meeting
while this takes place.

Excessive noise and talking should also be kept to a minimum whilst the
meeting is in progress in order that the scheduled business may proceed
as planned.

Protocol for members of the public wishing to report on meetings of the London
Borough of Havering

Members of the public are entitled to report on meetings of Council, Committees and Cabinet,
except in circumstances where the public have been excluded as permitted by law.

Reporting means:-

¢ filming, photographing or making an audio recording of the proceedings of the meeting;

e using any other means for enabling persons not present to see or hear proceedings at
a meeting as it takes place or later; or

e reporting or providing commentary on proceedings at a meeting, orally or in writing, so
that the report or commentary is available as the meeting takes place or later if the
person is not present.

Anyone present at a meeting as it takes place is not permitted to carry out an oral commentary
or report. This is to prevent the business of the meeting being disrupted.

Anyone attending a meeting is asked to advise Democratic Services staff on 01708 433076
that they wish to report on the meeting and how they wish to do so. This is to enable
employees to guide anyone choosing to report on proceedings to an appropriate place from
which to be able to report effectively.

Members of the public are asked to remain seated throughout the meeting as standing up and
walking around could distract from the business in hand.



Pensions Committee, 1 October 2024

DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART — QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF

What matters are being discussed?

7

D

P Does the business relate to or is it likely to affect a disclosable pecuniary interest. These will include the
interests of a spouse or civil partner (and co-habitees):

| + any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation that they carry on for profit or gain;

= any sponsorship that they receive including contributions to their expenses as a councillor; or the
councillor's election expenses from a Trade Union;
= any land licence or tenancy they have in Havering
« any current contracts leases or tenancies between the Council and them;
+ any current contracts leases or tenancies between the Council and any organisation with land in Havering
in they are a partner, a paid Director, or have a relevant interest in its shares and securities;
+ any organisation which has land or a place of business in Havering and in which they have a relevant interest in its
shares or its securities.
N
o YES Declare Interest and Leave
P Might a decision in relation to that business be reasonably be regarded as affecting (to a greater extent than
E the majority of other Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of ward affected by the decision)
R * Your well-being or financial position; or
] » The well-being or financial position of:
o
N o A member of your family or any person with whom you have a close association; or
A - Any person or body who employs or has appeinted such persons, any firm in which they are
a partner, or any company of which they are directors;
L - Any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities
exceeding the nominal value of £25,000;
I
N o Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management and to
T which you are appointed or nominated by your Authority; or
E o Any body exercising functions of a public nature, directed to charitable purposes or whose
R principal includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) of which you are a
E member or in a position of general control or management?
S
T —
_ N
You must disclose the fo)
existence and nature of your
personal interests
P
E
c N/
u Would a member of the public, with . )
N knowledge of the relevant facts, You can participate in the
I reasonably regard your personal mesting and vote (or

interest to be so significant that it is NO remain in the room if not a
A likely to prejudice your member of the mesting)
R Y
Y E

]
1 - Does the matter affect your financial position or the financial position of any person or body
N through whom you have a personal interest?
- Does the matter relate to an approval, consent, licence, permission or registration that affects

T you or any person or body with which you have a personal interest? NO
E - Does the matter not fall within one of the exempt categories of decisions?
R Y
E E
S s
T

Speak to Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting to avoid allegations of

corruption or bias




Pensions Committee, 1 October 2024

AGENDA ITEMS
1 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman will announce details of the arrangements in case of fire or other
events that might require the meeting room or building’s evacuation.

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUBSTITUTE
MEMBERS

(if any) - receive
3 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Members are invited to disclose any interest in any of the items on the agenda at this
point of the meeting.

Members may still disclose any interest in any item at any time prior to the
consideration of the matter.

4 MINUTES OF THE MEETING (Pages 5 - 8)

To approve as correct the minutes of the meeting held on 25" June 2024 and
authorise the Chairman to sign them.

5 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

To consider whether the public should now be excluded from the relevant sections of
the meeting on the grounds that it is likely that, in view of the nature of the business to
be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, if members of the public were present
during those items there would be disclosure to them of exempt information within the
meaning of paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972; and, if it
is decided to exclude the public on those grounds, the Committee to resolve
accordingly on the motion of the Chairman.

6 PENSION FUND PERFORMANCE MONITORING FOR THE QUARTER ENDED
JUNE 2024 (Pages 9 - 70)

7 PUBLIC SERVICE PENSIONS ACT 2013 - SECTION 13 REPORT (Pages 71 - 236)
Zena Smith

Head of Committee and
Election Services



Public Document Pack Agenda Item 4

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
PENSIONS COMMITTEE
Council Chamber - Town Hall
25 June 2024 (7.02 -9.08 pm)

Present:

COUNCILLORS

Conservative Group Joshua Chapman and Viddy Persaud
Havering Residents’ Williams and Stephanie Nunn (Vice-Chair)
Group

Labour Group Mandy Anderson (Chairman)

Admitted/Scheduled Bodies
Representatives:

Trade Union Observers: Derek Scott
The Chairman reminded Members of the action to be taken in an emergency.

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUBSTITUTE
MEMBERS

Apologies were received for the absence of James Glass.
2 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

There were no disclosures of interests.
3 MINUTES OF THE MEETING

The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as a correct record and
signed by the Chairman.

4 PENSION FUND MONITORING QUARTER END 31 MARCH 2024

The Committee was presented with the Pension Fund performance for the
period ending 31 March 2024.

The Committee agreed to go into an exempt session to deal with the
publicly sensitive sections of the report.

Following the exempt session, the Committee noted equities and asset
performed well with assets 3.7% up but was behind the 4.1% benchmark.
The real asset and private debt mandates had seen positive returns with the
overall fund performing well.

Page 5



Pensions Committee, 25 June 2024

Members noted North America and Japan equity grew above 11% due to
various factors and inflation had continued to fall with core inflation higher
than usual without including food and fuel.

The Committee agreed the recommendations as set out in the report.
5 PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS
The Committee was presented with a report on the Pension Fund Accounts.

There had been a briefing session before the meeting at which officers and
members went into detail on the Pension Fund accounts.

Members noted the accounts had been published in line with regulations
and no code changes in 2023/24 had affected the accounts. The accounts
would be presented to the Council’'s Audit Committee for approval.
Members also noted the net assets of the fund had increased to £969million
which was an increase of £73million from the previous year.

The Committee agreed the recommendations as set out in the report.
6 2024-27 BUSINESS PLAN & 2023-24 ANNUAL REPORT

The Committee was presented with the 2024-27 Business Plan and 2023-
24 Annual Report.

Members noted the business plan was backwards looking and would be
presented to Full Council. The Committee also noted, as part of the annual
report, only 1 report from the year had been delayed but was included as
part of the meeting’s agenda.

The Committee agreed the recommendations as set out in the report.
7 PENSION ADMINISTRATION BUDGET 2024-25

The Committee was presented with the Pensions Administration Budget
report.

It was noted that the LGPS scheme was serviced by LPPA through
Lancashire County Council. The budget to cover the scheme would need to
be increased by 15% to £648k due to the increase of members and rates
per member. Officers would continue to monitor the spending to ensure the
Council is getting the best value for money.
The Committee agreed the recommendations as set out in the report.

8 REVIEW OF PENSIONS FUND ADMISSIONS POLICY

The Committee were presented with a report on the Pensions Admissions
Policy.

Page 6



Pensions Committee, 25 June 2024

Members of the Committee noted the policy had been introduced in
November 2017 and the Funding Strategy Statement was agreed in
January 2024. It was explained that a full review had been carried out by
Hymans Robertson to ensure compliance with the LGPS and the cost would
be met by the Fund.

The Committee agreed the recommendations as set out in the report.
9 NEW EMPLOYER ADMISSIONS TO THE PENSION FUND

The Committee was presented with a report to admit new employers to the
Pension Fund.

Officers explained there were 2 new additions proposed:

e CleanTEC Services Ltd with a contract that commenced on 13 June
1014 and due to expire on 12 June 2017. They would admit 3
members to the Fund.

e Aspens Services Ltd with a contract that commenced on 1
September 2023 and due to expire on 31 August 2026. They would
admit 24 members to the Fund.

It was noted that both employers would have contribute rates set at 25%.

The Committee agreed the recommendations as set out in the report.

Chairman

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Agenda Iltem 6

Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 1 OCTOBER 2024

Subject Heading: PENSION FUND PERFORMANCE
MONITORING FOR THE QUARTER
ENDED JUNE 2024

CLT Lead: Kathy Freeman

Report Author and contact details: Debbie Ford
Pension Fund Manager (Finance)
01708 432 569
Debbie.Ford@havering.qgov.uk

Policy context: Pension Fund performance (“the Fund”)
is regularly monitored to ensure
investment objectives are being met and
to keep the committee updated with
Pension issues and developments.

Financial summary: This report comments upon the
performance of the Fund for the period
ended 31 June 2024

The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council Objectives

Communities making Havering [X]

Places making Havering [X]

Opportunities making Havering [X]

Connections making Havering [X]
SUMMARY

This report provides an overview of how the Fund’s investments are performing, how
the individual Investment Managers are also performing against their set targets and
any relevant Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) updates for the quarter
ending 30 June 2024. Significant events that occur after production of this report will
be addressed verbally at the meeting.

Page 9


mailto:Debbie.Ford@havering.gov.uk

Pensions Committee, 1 October 2024

The Fund’s value increased by £13.7m over the quarter. The overall fund
performance of 1.25% underperformed the tactical benchmark by -0.73% and
outperformed the strategic benchmark by 2.9%.

The Fund’s performance of 1.25% was slightly behind the tactical benchmark but
remains ahead of the strategic benchmark over the longer time periods.

All equity mandates continued to deliver positive absolute returns, amid resilient
growth and ongoing optimism for Al. However, the majority of equity mandates were
marginally behind respective benchmarks over the quarter.

The LCIV Absolute Return Fund and LCIV Global Bond Fund posted modest positive
performance.

Over the quarter, wider property markets returned positively as capital values
increased modestly. The Fund’s property mandates delivered mixed returns. UBS
outperformed owing to its overweight allocation to the retail sector, as capital values
in the retail sector improved specifically.

Sub-investment grade credit spreads remained tight however RLAM MAC delivered
positive returns, only marginally underperforming its benchmark.

Following a wider review of the Fund’s RLAM mandate, post quarter-end the Fund’s
officers agreed to disaggregate the MAC and ILG components within the mandate
structure and update the ILG component benchmark to the FTSE Actuaries UK
Index-Linked Gilts All Stocks Index (from the FTSE Actuaries UK Index-Linked Gilts
Over 5 Years Index).

Amid robust economic activity and sticky inflation, real gilt yields rose over the
quarter. As a result, the RLAM ILG Fund delivered negative returns — also
underperforming its benchmark, given its current longer-term positioning.

The general position of the Fund is considered plus other matters including any
current issues as advised by Hymans. The manager attending the meeting will be:

Legal and General Investment Manager — Passive Equities Manager

Hymans will discuss the Fund’s performance after which the manager will be invited
to join the meeting, make their presentation and answer any questions.

Hymans and Officers will discuss with Members any issues arising from the
monitoring of the other managers.

Page 10



Pensions Committee, 1 October 2024

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Committee:
1) Consider Hymans Market Background, Strategic Overview and Manager
Performance Report (Appendix A)
2) Consider Hymans Performance Report and views (Appendix B Exempt)

3) Receive presentation from the Funds Passive Equity Manager (Legal
and General Asset Management) for an overview on the fund’s
performance (Appendix C — Exempt)

4) Consider the quarterly reports sent electronically, provided by each fund
manager.

5) Note the analysis of the cash balances.

REPORT DETAIL

1. Elements from Hymans report, which are deemed non-confidential, can be
found in Appendix A. Opinions on fund manager performance will remain as
exempt and shown in Appendix B.

2. Where appropriate topical LGPS news that may affect the Fund will be
included.

3. We welcome feedback and suggestions that will help members gain a better
understanding of the reports. Hymans report at Appendix A now includes a
one-page summary highlighting key performance takeaways over the
quarter.

4. BACKGROUND

a. The Committee adopted an updated Investment Strategy Statement
(ISS) in September 2023.

b. The objective of the Fund’'s ISS is to deliver a stable long-term
investment return in excess of the expected growth in the Fund’s
liabilities.

c. The Fund’s assets are monitored quarterly to ensure that the long-term
objective of the ISS is being delivered.

d. We measure returns against tactical and strategic benchmarks.

Page 11



Pensions Committee, 1 October 2024

5. PERFORMANCE

a. The Fund asset value at 30 June 2024 was £983.7m compared with
£932.1m at 31 March 2024; an increase of £13.7m. This movement
is largely attributable to increases in the equity holdings asset classes
and a decrease in LCIV renewable infrastructure (2.2m).

Chart 1 — Pension Fund Asset Value

Pension Fund Value

1050

1000

948.3

950
9151 9203

|

919.6

894 .1

900
8646 8657 8705

850
800

750

700

932.1

905.0

899.2

983.7

|

970.0

Jun-21 Sep-21 Dec-21 Mar-22 Jun-22 Sep-22 Dec-22 Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24 Jun-24

Source: Northern Trust Performance Report

b. The overall net performance of the Fund against the Tactical
Benchmark - Each asset manager has been set a specific (tactical)
benchmark as well as an outperformance target against which
performance will be measured. This benchmark is determined
according to the type of investments being managed. This is not
directly comparable to the strategic benchmark as the majority of the
mandate benchmarks are different but contributes to the overall

performance.

Table 1: Tactical Performance

Quarterto | 12 Monthsto | 3 Years to 5 years to
30/06/2024 30/06/2024 30/06/2024 | 30/06/2024
% % % %
Fund 1.25 8.50 1.69 5.40
Benchmark 1.98 11.81 6.19 6.92
*Difference in return -0.73 3.31 -4.49 -1.52
Source: Northern Trust Performance Report
Totals may not sum due to geometric basis of calculation and rounding
C. The overall net performance of the Fund against the Strategic

Benchmark (i.e. the strategy adopted of Gilts + 1.8% Net of fees).

Page 12



Pensions Committee, 1 October 2024

The strategic benchmark represents the expected rate at which the
Fund’s liabilities are growing (or falling) in value. The asset
performance relative to the strategic benchmark performance gives
an indication of whether the funding level has improved or weakened
over a given period.

Table 2: Strategic Performance

Quarter to 12 Months to | 3 Years to 5 years to
30/06/2024 30/06/2024 30/06/2024 | 30/06/2024
% % % %
Fund 1.25 8.50 1.69 5.40
Benchmark -1.65 1.32 -9.78 -4.18
*Difference in return 2.90 7.18 11.47 9.58
Source: Northern Trust Performance Report
*Totals may not sum due to geometric basis of calculation and rounding.
d. Further detail on the Fund’s investment performance is detailed in

Appendix A in the performance report which will be covered by the
Investment Adviser (Hymans)

6. CASH FORECAST

a. At the end of June 2024, the cash balance stood at £25.1m, which is
invested with LBH and available for operational cash requirements as

needed.

Table 3: Cash Flow Forecast

ACTUALS | ESTIMATE | ESTIMATE | ESTIMATE
TO Year to Year to Year to
30/06/2024 | 31/03/2025 | 31/03/2026 | 31/03/2027
£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance b/f 24,276 25,008 30,420 18,480
Benefits paid (8,550) (34,173) (44,430) (46,207)
BACS expenses* (2,643) (9,993) (13,140) (13,666)
Lump sums by faster
payment (840) (2,640) (3,580) (3,687)
Transfers in 462 5,862 6,510 6,705
Contributions received** 10,858 42,088 41,640 42,473
Pension strain 185 685 500 510
Interest 0 780 560 560
Sweep 1,260 2,804 0 0
Balance c/f 25,008 30,420 18,480 5,168
* BACS expenses also includes grants i.e. lump sums made to members via payments team
** Contributions received from LBH are net of pension payroll deductions (e.g. HMRC)
b. Members updated the cash management policy at their committee

meeting on the 19 March 2024.

Page 13




Pensions Committee, 1 October 2024

An operational cash balance in the range of £6m to £13m has been
set. In the event that cash levels rise above the upper limit of £13m
cash will be invested in the most underweight liquid asset allocation.
Currently cash is being for reinvestment/rebalancing within the
investment strategy.

Cash balance may be retained above the upper limit at the discretion
of the Section 151 officer.

7. REPORTING ARRANGEMENTS

a.

At each reporting cycle, the Committee will see a different fund
manager until members have met them all unless there are
performance concerns that demand a manager be brought back
again for further investigation.

Summary fund manager reviews are included within Hymans
performance report at Appendix A.

All fund manager’s quarterly reports are distributed electronically prior
to this meeting. Where applicable, quarterly voting information, from
each fund manager, detailing the voting history of the fund managers
is also included in the manager’s quarterly report.

The fund manager attending this meeting is Legal and General
Asset Management (LGIM) who manage three separate passive
equity portfolios: All World Equity Index Fund, World Emerging
Market Fund and the Future World Index Fund. Their report is
attached at Appendix C (Exempt).

8. FEUND UPDATES:

8.1

Changes since the last report and forthcoming changes/events:

a.

In the quarter ending 30 June 2024, the Fund completed £1.5m of
capital draw down requests.

. The capital calls were funded with cash received from investment

income which is held with the Custodian

. Churchill 1l and IV received formal notification of release of pledge

thereby releasing the Fund from any further capital commitments.

. At 30 June 2024 there was £43m of outstanding capital commitments

as follows:

Page 14



Pensions Committee, 1 October 2024

Chart 2 — Outstanding capital commitments at 30 June 2024

50
45
40
35

7}
g 30
= 25 5
15
: -
> 2 ——
0 e ——
Stafford IV Permira PCS4
Stafford Il LCIV Renewables... Permira PCS5

8.2 London CIV UPDATES -The LCIV is the appointed asset pool manager for
the Fund and the governance of investments held with the LCIV is their
responsibility. It is therefore crucial that regular communication and contact
is upheld and activity updates are reported and covered here as follows:

8.2.1 LCIV meetings (since the last report)

a. Virtual weekly "Coffee with the CIO" are held to share news, learn and
develop opportunities. Recordings can be made available to
members on request.

b. Business Update Meetings take place monthly (currently held
virtually) — since the last report, meetings were held on the 30 May
2024, 27 June 2024, and 22 August 2024. Recordings can be made
available to members on request.

c. Each business update meeting includes an update from LCIV Chief
Officers covering current fund offerings, fund performance; fund
updates (including those funds for which enhanced monitoring is in
place) and the pipeline for new fund launches. In addition, relevant
topical issues are included as appropriate. Highlights as follows:

o Fund Monitoring Updates: All LCIV sub funds undergo in-
depth reviews annually unless there are any concerns, in
which case the frequency of reviews occurs every six months.
All Havering investment funds are on “normal” monitoring.
Three investment review and update meetings have taken
place since the last report:

o 30 July 2024 - LCIV Equity Funds - this review
included an overview of the monitoring outcomes for
the Global Alpha Growth Paris Aligned Fund. This
sub fund is currently on ‘normal’ monitoring status but

Page 15



Pensions Committee, 1 October 2024

has received amber scores against the criteria for
performance and cost transparency/value for money.

o 31 July 2024 - LCIV Fixed Income Funds - this
review included an overview of the monitoring
outcomes for the Global Bond Fund. This sub fund
is currently on ‘normal’ monitoring status and received
an amber score against the criteria for performance.

o 1 August 2024 - LCIV Multi Asset Funds - this
review included the monitoring outcomes for the
Absolute Return Fund. In-depth review meeting
brought forward over concerns about performance,
the manager has fallen behind performance target
over three years. This sub fund is currently on a six
monthly monitoring cycle. Whilst “Normal” monitoring
status continues, LCIV will be closely monitoring the
against the tests for Resourcing and Business
Management. The scores for Resourcing and
Responsible Investment/ engagement have been
upgraded from amber to green. Amber scores in place
against the criteria for Business Risk, Risk
Management & Compliance, Cost
Transparency/value for money. Officers attended an
update review meeting on the 11 July 2024 where the
review was covered in detail. Next review update will
be provided in January 2025.

o Fund Activity - New/Changes to Sub Fund Launches:

o

New: Natural Capital/ Nature Based Solution — launched
on the 12 July — Implementation stage - 3 managers
appointed. Legal and tax due diligence underway with
manager names to be announced in due course. Havering
currently has no plans to invest in this fund

New: Private Debt Il Fund — launched on 28 June 2024 -
Implementation stage - four managers appointed. Legal
and tax due diligence underway with names to be
announced in due course. The Fund could consider this
mandate when more details are available.

New: Indirect Property Pooling — launched — Initiation
stage - continue to engage with CBRE regarding project
plan and operational requirements. Moving forward with
due diligence checks and aiming to go live at end of the
year. Havering currently has no plans to invest in this fund.
New: Global Equity Value — Launch stage — date to be
finalised with initial investors, expected October 2024.
Havering currently has no plans to invest in this fund
New: Buy and maintain Fund Launch stage - date to be
finalised with initial investors, expected October 2024.
Havering currently has no plans to invest in this fund

Page 16



Pensions Committee, 1 October 2024

o

Change: LCIV Renewable Infrastructure — 7% & 8t
manager due diligence in progress, expected Q2 24.
Havering already invest in this fund which will see new
managers added due to demand.

Change: LCIV MAC Fund - ESG elements to be
strengthened. Transition period to be agreed with manager
but expected by end of 2024. No changes to the
investment objective. Havering currently does not invest in
this fund.

Change: LCIV Global Bond Fund — Approvals obtained to
enhance the ESG credentials. Transition period to be
agreed with manager. slight reduction of 0.1%. Havering
invests in this fund.

e London CIV Indirect Real Estate Pooling (IREP) Initiative:

o

o

New initiative being launched by LCIV with CBRE as the
investment manager sub advisor

Partner funds will be offered the opportunity to transfer
investment management of existing indirect real estate to
the LCIV.

Each holding will be held on a separately managed
account and transitioned to converge with the IREP
overtime to collectively benefits of scale.

More details will be required to determine whether product
IS suitable for the Havering Fund.

e Staffing updates:

o

Andrien Meyers, Head of Pensions Investments at the
London Borough of Sutton and Royal Borough of Kingston
upon Thames, has agreed to join London CIV in a newly-
created role as Chief Proposition Officer, starting
September 2024.

Aoifinn Devitt has decided to move on from her role as
London CIV’s CIO and will be leaving in Q4. Rob Treich,
Head of Public Markets will support oversight of the
investment team during the period of transition.

8.3 LGPS GENERAL UPDATES:

8.3.1 Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) Guidance

a. The current FSS guidance was last updated in 2016. The Scheme Advisory
Board (SAB), has set up a working group and has begun its review of the
guidance. Key aims are to make the guidance shorter, sharper and more
accessible for all stakeholders. Aiming to issue revised guidance before the
end of December 2024.

Page 17



Pensions Committee, 1 October 2024

8.3.2 Pensions Review

a.

Launched on the 19 August 2024, the Chancellor has announced a

Pensions Review. The review will focus on defined contribution workplace

schemes and the Local Government Pension Scheme, to develop policy

across four areas:

e Driving scale and consolidation of defined contribution workplace
schemes;

e Tackling fragmentation and inefficiency in the Local Government
Pension Scheme through consolidation and improved governance;

e The structure of the pensions ecosystem and achieving a greater
focus on value to deliver better outcomes for future pensioners,
rather than cost; and

e Encouraging further pension investment into UK assets to boost
growth across the country.

Phase one - the review will focus on investment and findings are expected
later this year ahead of the introduction of the Pension Schemes Bill.

Phase two is expected to launch later in the year and will consider further
steps to improve pensions outcomes and increase investments in the UK.

Officers will provide updates as appropriate

Main focus for the LGPS will be on consolidation and encouragement of
further pension investment into UK assets to boost growth.

8.3.3 Training Requirements - UPDATE

a.

The Fund subscribes to the LGPS Online Learning Academy (LOLA)
Launched by our Actuaries (Hymans) — this is an online platform designed
to support the training needs of Pensions Committees, Local Pension
Boards and Officers. The training is split into a number of modules
covering the CIPFA Knowledge & Skills Framework (KSF) and The
Pension Regulator's Code of Practice 14. Each module contains short
‘video on demand’ presentations with supplemental learning materials
and quizzes.

In addition to an induction training session, members are expected to
complete the LOLA training modules v1.0 (modules 1- 5) or LOLA V2.0
Training modules (1- 8) in support of meeting the Committee procedure
rules.

The Fund transitioned over to LOLA v2.0 on the 1 October 2023.
New committee members yet to complete modules under version 1.0 will

now be required to undertake the LOLA v2.0 to meet the committee
procedure rules.

Page 18



Pensions Committee, 1 October 2024

e. New committee members will have 6 months from 1 October 2023 or
date of joining to complete the LOLA v2.0 modules.

f.  Officers will provide the Committee with regular progress reports allowing
it to easily evidence member’s development and progress, as follows:

Chart 3 — Pension committee progress LOLA v1

PENSION COMMITTEE PROGRESS LOLA V1

9
8
7 B COMPLETED
6 ENROLLED
5
= IN PROGRESS
il
3
2
1
0
Module 1- An Module 2 - Module 3 - Module 4 - Module 5 - Module 6 -
introduction to LGPS Administration Fundingand Investments Current Issues
the LGPS Governance & & Fund Actuarial
Oversight  Management Matters

Bodies

Chart 4 —Pension Committee progress LOLA v2 — as at 31 August 2024

PENSION COMMITTEE PROGRESS LOLA V2

-

w

[}

-

0 I I I I I

Current Issues Module 1 - Module 2 - Module 3 - Module 4 -

|ntroduct|on to Committee Pensions Pensions Pensions
LGPS Online Role and Governance Administration Accounting
Learning Pensions and Audit
Academy Legislation Standards

B COMPLETED
W ENROLLED
IN PROGRESS

Module 5 - Module 6 - Module 7 - Module 8 -
Procurement Investment Financial Actuarial
and Performance Markets and  methods,
Relationship  and Risk Product  Standards and
Management Management Knowledge Practices

Page 19



Pensions Committee, 1 October 2024

IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS

Financial implications and risks:

Pension Fund Managers’ performances are regularly monitored in order to ensure
that the investment objectives are being met and consequently minimise any cost to
the General Fund and employers in the Fund

Legal implications and risks:

None arising directly from consideration of the content of the Report.
Human Resources implications and risks:

There are no immediate HR implications.

Equalities implications and risks:

The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010
requires the Council, when exercising its functions, to have due regard to:

(i) The need to eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Equality Act 2010;

(i) The need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who share
protected characteristics and those who do not, and;

(i) Foster good relations between those who have protected characteristics and
those who do not.

Note: ‘Protected characteristics’ are: age, sex, race, disability, sexual orientation,
marriage and civil partnerships, religion or belief, pregnancy and maternity and
gender reassignment/identity.

The Council is committed to all of the above in the provision, procurement and
commissioning of its services, and the employment of its workforce. In addition, the
Council is also committed to improving the quality of life and wellbeing for all
Havering residents in respect of socio-economics and health determinants.

An EqHIA is not considered necessary regarding this matter as the protected groups
are not directly or indirectly affected.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Page 20



Pensions Committee, 1 October 2024

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



gz abed

London Borough o
Havering Pension Func

Q2 2024 Investment Monitoring Report

Shaun Nicol — Investment Consultant

The person responsible for this advice is Shaun Nicol. Members of the
London Borough of Havering client team who contributed to the

production of this paper but are not responsible for the advice are
Meera Devlia and Jennifer Aitken.

Hymans Robertson LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England
and Wales with registered number OC310282. A list of members of Hymans
Robertson LLP is available for inspection at One London Wall, London EC2
5EA, the firm’s registered office. Authorised and regulated by the Finang
Conduct Authority and licensed by the Institute and Faculty of Actua
range of investment business activities. Hymans Robertson is a r
trademark of Hymans Robertson LLP.

HYMANS 3 ROBERTSON



Headllnes Strategic Overview Manager Performance Market Background Appendix

This section outlines the key points Key Takeaways
included in this report.

The tactical benchmark in the Fund

Performance table represents the * Equities continued to perform well over the quarter and as a result, all the Fund’s equity mandates
aggregate performance target of Equities continued to perform positively provided positive returns.
the Fund’s assets and is a measure but lagged behind benchmarks. * However, the majority of equity mandates’ performance returns were marginally behind their respective
of relative outperformance / benchmarks.
underperformance from the asset
TGRS * Real gilt yields rose over the quarter and as such, the Fund’s RLAM index-linked gilt mandate slightly
. Real gilt yields rose, pushing down decreased in value.
The strategic benchmark expected liability values. * The value of the Fund’s liabilities is expected to have fallen due to this over the same period (as proxied

represents the expected rate at
which the Fund'’s liabilities are
growing (or falling) in value. The
asset performance relative to the

by the Fund’s strategic benchmark).

. Overall Fund performance remained * The Fund’s performance of 1.3% was slightly behind the tactical benchmark of 2.0%
strategic benchmark performance
gves an indication of whether the positive, but the Fund continued to * The Fund’s equity mandates and LCIV Absolute Return Fund’s relative underperformance were key
) underperform its tactical benchmark. contributors to this.

tunding level has improved or
waakened over a given period.

* Most mandates are measured relative to cash-plus/inflation-plus comparators, but whilst mandates
continued to demonstrate underperformance, most also continued to deliver positive absolute returns.

* Property capital values modestly increased over the quarter, which meant wider property markets
returned positively.

* The UBS Fund slightly outperformed over the quarter and longer-term returns remain closer to
benchmark

* However, the CBRE Fund underperformed over the quarter and continues to underperform its
benchmark over the longer-term.

Positive returns were observed across
most of the Fund’s real asset and private
debt mandates.

Fund Performance Fund Asset Valuation
Last 3 Last 12 Last 3 Last 5
months (%) months (%) vyears (%) vyears (%) Fund value (£Em)
Total Fund Performance 1.3 8.5 1.7 5.4 Q12024 970.0
Tactical Benchmark 2.0 11.8 6.2 6.9 Q2 2024 983.7
Strategic Benchmark -1.7 1.3 -9.8 -4.2

HYMANS 1 ROBERTSON




Manager Performance

The Fund’s assets returned 1.3% over
the quarter, underperforming the
benchmark return of 2.0%.

All equity mandates continued to
deliver positive absolute returns, amid

Actual i : ; , - A . 5
resilient growth and Ongoing optimism Proportion Fund B'mark Relative Fund B'mark Relative Fund B'mark Relative Fund B'mark Relative
for Al. However, the majority of equity it 52.7%
mandates were marginally behind -
respective benchmarks over the LGIM Global Equity 4.4% 25 29 0.4 199 204 0.4 89 9.0 0.2 121 12.1 -0.1
quarter. LGIM Emerging Markets 4.1% 53 58 0.5 139 145 0.8 06 02 0.4 51 54 0.3
The LCIV Absolute Return Fund and LGIM Future World Fund 11.1% 1.2 14 0.1 146 149 0.2 - - - 55 56 0.1
LCIV Global Bond Fund posted modest LCIV Global Alpha Growth Paris Aligned Fund 16.2% 1.3 26 1.2 138 209 5.8 .7 97 104 122 124 0.2
positive performance. LCIV PEPPA Passive Equity 5.9% 36 35 0.1 243 240 0.3 - - - 8.0 7.0 1.0
Over the quarter, wider property LCIV Absolute Retum Fund 11.1% 04 23 1.8 10 94 7.7 06 7.0 -5.9 43 53 1.0
markets returned positively as capital Income 39.7%
values increased modestly. The Fund's RISy RN 4.8% 01 01 00 - - 67 81 13
fgfPr?]rstylﬂg?ﬂﬁ)gﬁ:mzﬁiﬂ:ﬁi its UBS Property 5.0% 15 12 0.3 A7 0.1 1.8 03 06 0.3 48 54 0.6
ovérweight allocation to the retail CBRE 3.3% -1.3 20 3.3 4.8 6.9 -11.0 47 114 6.0 46 9.1 4.1
scotor, as capital values in the retail JP Morgan 5.2% 1.3 20 0.7 104 69 32 10.1 114 ~1:2 86 9.1 0.4
sector improved specifically. Stafford Capital Global Infrastructure SISF || - 16 20 35 32 69 35 83 114 28 72 89 16

- (]

Sub-investment grade credit spreads Stafford Capital Global Infrastructure SISF IV 19 20 0.1 76 6.9 0.6 127 11.4 1.2 15.6 115 37
reinained tight however RLAM MAC LCIV Renewable Energy Infrastructure Fund 1.6% 00 20 20 23 69 87 - 105 116 -08
dellve_zred PO returns_, on_Iy RLAM Multi-Asset Credit 6.8% 15 16 0.1 9.1 105 1.3 14 29 1.5 31 6.6 3.3
marginally underperforming its
benchmark. Churchill Senior Loan Fund Il — 19 23 0.4 118 94 22 10.8 7.0 3.6 6.6 5.9 0.7

. : : ) Churchill Senior Loan Fund IV ' 24 28 0.1 12.3 94 2.7 - - - 103 76 25
Following a wider review of the Fund’s -
RLAM mandate, post quarter-end the Permira IV o o 21 23 0.2 9.0 94 0.3 74 70 0.4 54 6.0 0.6
Fund’s officers agreed to disaggregate Permira V 24 23 01 9.8 9.4 0.3 - - - 9.2 9.3 0.1
the MAC and ILG components within Protection* 7.6%
Hig ?g:qizz:r?eittnéir%irig?kutzdtit: i RLAM Index-Linked Gilts 2.3% 4.0 29 -1.1 6.5 -1.9 47 -169 -140 -34 -109 -88 2.4
FTSE Actuaries UK Index-Linked Gilts Total Scheme 1.3 20 0.7 8.5 11.8 -3.0 1.7 6.2 -4.2 54 - -

Strategic Overview

Manager Performance

Manager Performance

Last 3 Months (%)

Market Background

Last 12 Months (%)

Appendix

Last 3 Years (% p.a.)

Since Inception (% p.a.)

All Stocks Index (from the FTSE
Actuaries UK Index-Linked Gilts Over 5
Years Index).

Source: 3m, 12m and 3yr performance returns — Northern Trust and Investment Managers. Individual S| performance returns — Hymans calculated chain-linked.
Performance figures for RLAM (including S| performance) and the 3m LCIV PEPPA have been taken from the Investment Manager, rather than Northern Trust.

Longer term performance for Baillie Gifford Global Equity and Ruffer Absolute Return funds is inclusive of performance prior to their transfer into the LCIV. Please note,
Hymans are conducting a wider review of Northern Trust provided performance figures for the Fund’s mandates against investment manager provided performance
figures over the respective periods. LGIM Global Equity mandate was managed by SSGA prior to November 2017 and we have retained the performance history for
these allocations. The Fund performance figure includes the effect of the currency hedging mandate managed by Russell. All asset performance is in GBP terms and
does not make an allowance for currency fluctuations.. The total Fund performance includes the impact of the Russell currency overlay mandate. Please see separate
slide for further detail on the Russell mandate, along with asset performance excluding the impact of currency fluctuations

Amid robust economic activity and
sticky inflation, real gilt yields rose over
the quarter. As a result, the RLAM ILG
Fund delivered negative returns — also
underperforming its benchmark, given
its current longer-term positioning.

*Includes cash at bank and currency hedging

HYMANS 1 ROBERTSON




Strateglc OVGNIeW Strategic Overview Manager Performance Market Background Appendix

The Fund’s investment strategy is Asset Allocation
implemented through the London

Collective Investment Vehicle (“LCIV”),
and retained assets including life funds
(with fee structures aligned with LCIV). Benchmark

The target allocation to LCIV and life Growth 52.5%
funds totals 61.0% of Fund assets. Income 42.5%
Other retained assets will be delivered ® Protection 5.0%
through external managers, with the

position reviewed periodically.

Actual
®m Growth 52.7%
B |ncome 39.7%
®m Protection 7.6%

The chart below right illustrates the
underlying asset allocation of the
Fund, i.e. taking account of the
underlying holdings in the multi-asset
funds on a ‘look through’ basis.

The Fund’s overall allocation to

e plities increased over the quarter to
.44.1% (c.43.0% as at 31 March
2024) as global equities continued to
p=rform well and with the LCIV Asset Class Exposures
Absolute Return Fund allocation to
c:qlities increasing — from ¢.16.2% to -
€.22.5% over the period.

The Fund’s overall allocation to gilts I

decreased further over the quarter to Q2 24
¢.5.0% (c.6.2% as at 31 March 2024),

with the LCIV Absolute Return Fund

allocation to government bonds

decreasing — from ¢.50.7% to ¢.40.7%

over the period.

The Fund’s allocation to corporate Q124
bonds increased over the period to

€.6.8% (c.5.9% as at 31 March 2024)

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
with the LCIV Absolute Return Fund | | | | | | | | |
allocation to corporate bonds l f f f } } } : :
increasing — from ¢.12.4% to ¢.21.5% 0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

over the period.

The allocations to real assets. multi- mUK Qverseas Equities u Gilts m Multi-Asset Credit
asset credit, private debt and high yield Index-Linked Gilts Corporate Bonds m Private Debt ® High Yield
assets remained broadly unchanged m Real Assets Cash Other

over the quarter.

HYMANS 1 ROBERTSON




Current Investment
Implementation

The total value of the Fund’s assets
increased by £13.7m over the
quarter to £983.7m as at 30 June
2024.

The increase in valuation is largely
due to the Fund’s equity allocation
which continued to perform
positively.

The Fund’s total ‘Income’ assets
allocation remained broadly
unchanged over the quarter.

The Fund’s ‘Protection’ assets
overall increased over the quarter —
primarily due to an increase in the
cash held by the Fund over the
period. The increase in cash held
was primarily due to distribution
payments made by the Fund’s
|>-.vate market mandates over the
poriod.

Tha Fund’s cash balance at quarter-
cnd was discussed with the Fund’s
Officers, prior to the October 2024
Pensions Committee meeting — at
the time of writing, a decision to the
‘surplus’ cash balance is due to
agreed by the Officers.

Given the rise in real gilt yields over
the quarter, the Fund’s ‘Protection’
ILG assets marginally fell in value.

The Fund paid the following capital
calls during the quarter:

e c.£1.5m to the LCIV Renewables
Fund.

Strategic Overview Manager Performance Market Background Appendix
Asset Allocation
Q1 2\:;aluat|on (En;)z 24 Pr,:glur?ilon Benchmark Relative

Total Growth 509.8 518.7 52.7% 52.5% 0.2%
LGIM Global Equity LCIV Aligned 419 429 4.4% 5.0% -0.6%
LGIM Emerging Markets LCIV Aligned 384 405 4.1% 5.0% -0.9%
LGIM Future World Fund LCIV Aligned 107.8 109.1 11.1% 10.0% 1.1%
LCIV Global Alpha Growth Paris Aligned Fund  LCIV 157.3 159.3 16.2% 15.0% 1.2%
LCIV PEPPA Passive Equity LCIV sk 575 5.9% 5.0% 0.9%
LCIV Absolute Retum Fund LCIV 108.9 1094 11.1% 12.5% -1.4%
Total Income 389.8 3901 39.7% 42.5% -2.8%
LCIV Global Bond Fund LCIV 474 46.9 4 8% 5.0% -0.2%
UBS Property Retained 489 493 5.0% 6.0% -1.0%
CBRE Retained 325 320 3.3% 4.0% -0.7%
JP Morgan Retained 50.8 50.7 5.2% 5.5% -0.3%
Stafford Capital Global Infrastructure SISF Retained 45.3 45.5 4.6% 3.5% 1.1%
LCIV Renewable Energy Infrastructure Fund LCIV 14.2 18.7 1.6% 3.5% -1.9%
RLAM Multi-Asset Credit Retained 65.7 66.6 6.8% 7.5% -0.7%
Churchill Senior Loan Funds Retained 346 32.0 3.2% 3.0% 0.2%
Permira Credit Retained 50.5 51.5 5.2% 4.5% 0.7%
Total Protection 70.4 74.9 7.6% 5.0% 2.6%
RLAM Index-Linked Gilts Retained 239 23.0 2.3% 5.0% -2.7%
Cash at Bank Retained 427 47.3 4.8% 0.0% 4.8%
Currency Hedging P/L Retained 3.7 4.5 0.5% 0.0% 0.5%
Total Scheme 970.0 983.7 100.0% 100.0%

Source: Northern Trust and Investment Managers.

Valuation figures for RLAM have been taken from the Investment Manager.

Note: The target allocations were agreed in August 2023 as part of the last investment strategy review.
Pooling refers to whether the holding benefits from some form of collective bargaining. LCIV and LCIV aligned reflect mandates aligned with or

managed by the LCIV. Other pooled indicates mandates where there are collective LGPS fee arrangements in place. Not pooled indicates mandates

outside pooling arrangements.

HYMANS 1t ROBERTSON



Manager Analysis

Russell Currency Hedging

Russell Investments have been
appointed to manage the Fund’s
currency overlay mandate.

The current policy is to hedge non-
sterling exposures in the Fund’s
private markets mandates. Currency
exposure in equity mandates is
retained.

At present, 100% of the exposure to
USD, EUR and AUD from the private
market investments is hedged with
any residual currency exposure
retained on a de-minimis basis.

ke volatility of returns (measured as
tin> standard deviation of quarterly
leiurns since inception) is 4.6% to
rate when the impact of currency
fiuctuations is included and 4.0%
when currency movements are
stripped out by the Russell currency
overlay mandate. This continues to
indicate that the Russell mandate is
reducing overall volatility and
increasing the predictability of
returns, as intended.

Strategic Overview

Q2 2024 Performance

Stafford Il
Stafford IV
JPM
Churchill ll
Churchill IV
CBRE
Permira IV
PermiraV
LCIV RIF

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

Asset return Currency Asset return

(inc. FX
impact)

Manager Performance

Market Background Appendix

Performance Since Mandate Inception*

Asset return Currency Asset return

b Relative h Relative
re;ﬂ;lg.' @ (ex. FX BMreturn  return (ex. (inc. FX reé:;lg; a (ex. FX BMreturn  return (ex.
mandate) impact) FX impact) impact) mandate) impact) FX impact)

-3.1 Stafford Il 1.4

0.3 Stafford IV 3.0

-0.2 JPM 0.2

0.3 Churchill Il 0.2

0.1 Churchill IV -0.3

=3.2 CBRE -4.5

03 Permira IV -0.3

0.6 PermiraV -1.8

-1.8 LCIV RIF 1.5

n Sterling Performance vs. Foreign Currencies
Hedged Currency Exposure (Rebased to 100 at 31 March 2024)
104
102
100
/N
28
O Q < Q < &
O O y
d‘& & Qeﬁ\ QQ}@ & 20/03/2024 29/04/2024 29/05/2024 29/06/2024
@)
e | JS D AUD eEUR

EUSD mAUD mEUR mOther

Source: Northern Trust and Investment Managers.

*Since inception performance is since individual fund inception of inception of the currency hedging mandate, whichever

is more recent. ** As at 31 March 2024 (latest available).

HYMANS 1 ROBERTSON



Private Markets
Investments

Since March 2018, the Fund has
made commitments to seven private
markets funds as outlined right. The
table provides a summary of the
commitments and drawdowns to 30
June 2024.

Strategic Overview

Manager Performance Market Background Appendix

LCIV
Stafford Stafford Churchill
Renewable . Permira Credit | Permira Credit
. Infrastructure | Infrastructure Middle Market
Vehicle . . Energy . Solutions IV Solutions V
Secondaries Secondaries Senior Loan
Infrastructure Senior Fund Senior Fund
Fund Il Fund IV Fund IV
Fund
Commitment Date 25/04/2018 18/12/2020 30/06/2021 29/09/2021 12/2018 07/11/2022
Fund Currency EUR EUR GBP usD EUR EUR
Gross Commitment €28.5m €30m £25m $26.5m £36.0m £43.0m
Gross Commitment (GBP estimate) £24.2m £25.4m - £21.0m - -
Capital Called During Quarter 15
- - . m - - -
(Payments Less Returned Capital)
Capital Drawn To Date £26.3m £19.5m £12.8m £17.8 £31.2m £18.2m
Distributions/Returned Capital To Date
£15.1m £1.7m - £4.5m £9.3m £2.6
(Includes Income and Other Gains)
NAV at Quarter End £19.5m £25.9m £15.7m £16.0m £27.5m £23.9m
. . 7-10% p.a.
Net IRR Since Inception * 8.0% p.a. 12.8% p.a. 8.9% p.a.** 7.1% p.a. 14.0% p.a.
(Target)
. . . 3-5% p.a.
Net Cash Yield Since Inception* 6.9% p.a. 3.9% p.a. - - -
(Target)
. ) 134 ) )
Number of Holdings* 22 funds 16 funds 16 investments | 46 investments | 20 investments
investments
*as at 31 March 2024 (latest available) **Refers to IRR of realised assets in the portfolio
HYMANS 1t ROBERTSON

Source: Investment Managers



Market Background

The US economy slowed more than
expected in Q1 to an annualised
quarterly pace of 1.4%. While this marks
a sharp pullback from the blistering
3.4%, the economy still exhibits decent,
if slowing, domestic demand. Quarter-
on-quarter eurozone and UK GDP rose
more than expected in Q1, by 0.3% and
0.7% respectively, with both regions
officially exiting technical recession.

UK year-on-year headline CPI slowed
meaningfully, returning to the Bank of
England’s (BoE) 2% target for the first
time in almost three years in May and
remained unchanged in June. Core CPI
slowed but, at 3.5% year-on-year,
hiahlights stubborn underlying inflation
pressures. In the eurozone, headline
212 core CPI measures rose to 2.5%
ara 2.9%, respectively, in June. US
headline CPI fell to 3.0% in June, while
caic CPl eased to 3.3%.

The European Central Bank (ECB)
delivered a widely expected 0.25% pa
reduction in its deposit facility interest
rate, to 3.75% pa. However, the ECB
raised its inflation outlook for 2024 and
2025. The Federal Reserve (Fed) and
BoE held rates steady, at 5.5% pa and
5.25% pa respectively, and markets
continue to expect fewer rate cuts in
2024 than they did at the start of the
year.

The US trade-weighted dollar rose 2.4%
as market further reduced their rate cut
expectations for 2024. The equivalent
sterling measure rose 0.7% while the
euro measure weakened a little as the
ECB lowered rates. The Japanese trade-
weighted yen fell a further 5.1% as
markets continued to bet on wide

Strategic Overview Manager Performance

Historic returns for world markets [1

3 Months (%)

[Bqo|o

AN

N %@ adoingy
eaLswWY N

uedep

ueder xa alloed-BISY

20.4 13.0

29 %0 37 ?;i 0.3

s

-===0US Eurozone UK

12 Months (%)

syayJew BuiBisws

14.

Market Background Appendix

m3 Years (% p.a.)

SHID pajulT-Xepu]
spuog ajeiodio)
spuog seasian0

sHID MN
Apadolig

9]
o
7]
=

S 10.9

48 04 1.6

1.0

— - .
P29 % 02 38|23 -48[17 12

21
116

Sterling trend chart (% change)

70

10

-1.0

-3.0

3
31 Mar 30 Apr 31 May 30Jun

Source: DataStream. ['"1Returns shown in Sterling terms. Indices shown (from left to right) are: FTSE All World, FTSE All Share, FTSE AW
Developed Europe ex-UK, FTSE North America, FTSE Japan, FTSE AW Developed Asia Pacific ex-Japan, FTSE Emerging, FTSE Fixed
Gilts All Stocks, FTSE Index-Linked Gilts All Maturities, iBoxx Corporates All Investment Grade All Maturities, ICE BofA Global Government
Index, MSCI UK Monthly Property; UK Interbank 7 Day

interest rate differentials between Japan
and its major developed-market peers.

HYMANS 1 ROBERTSON




Market Background

Sovereign bond yields rose on decent
growth and sticky inflation data. US and
UK 10-year bond yields both rose 0.2%
pa to 4.4% pa and 4.2% pa,
respectively. Despite the ECB’s rate cut,
German sovereign bond yields also rose
0.2% pa to 2.5% pa. French 10-year
yields rose sharply, by 0.5% pa, due to
uncertainties around the parliamentary
elections.

Despite little change in credit spreads,
UK investment-grade credit markets
recorded negative total returns as
income was offset by a rise in
underlying sovereign bond yields.
Speculative-grade markets
outperformed, supported by income
return and their lower duration profile.
Euro and US high-yield bonds delivered
tctal returns of 1.5% pa and 1.1% pa,
re=nectively.

The FTSE All World Total Return Index
rcee 3.5%. US Q1 earnings comfortably
beat expectations and stocks tied to Al
continued to benefit. Technology was
the clear outperforming sector. Utilities
were the only other, albeit modest,
outperformer. All other sectors
underperformed, with value-orientated
sectors seeing the worst
underperformance.

The MSCI UK Property Total Return
Index rose 1.7% between March and
June, as aggregate capital values
increased modestly for the fourth
consecutive month. On a 12-month
basis to June, aggregate property
capital values are down 4.7%.
Aggregate nominal rental year-on-year
growth was 3.6% in June. Given falls in
inflation real rental growth, in CPI terms,
reached 1.6% year-on-year in June.

Strategic Overview

Gilt yields chart (% p.a.)

30-year Conventional ~ ==-eeaa Index-Linked >15 (RHS)
48 15
" 5
] LY 1
noA i
A i ™
46 {hg W 1=
1 H H i . i ]
L} -,
" A Il H H e i
oy oy 0 - K L] t. []
23 +H \ H W 'u,.' ' A ;"“'
L\ |‘: . R ¥ .‘f': ¥
1] I
b vy
i i
I
44 ¥ 11
:'
42 r r » 09
31 Mar 30 Apr 31 May 30Jun

Regional equity returns [1

Global

UK

Europe ex UK

N America
Japan 46

Asia-Pacific ex Japan

Emerging markets

Sterling ®WlLocal currency

Manager Performance

Market Background Appendix

Investment and speculative grade credit
spreads (% p.a.)

7.0
A\ 1D~
§ L - -
6.0 1 \.‘- N Y
Ll 2 - -
Tipy !, v ﬁ""k"\
50 $ig o aty M T
Ty o N - =
] \ \
- = PR R S VN SR L
ool e N v \ ’\
40 = 7 ,/ "_/" .
R Ny N
- $ o4 =

30 £3=- ’ e

20
10 -
00 « . . . . g
P P s P G P >
S & S i S & S
IG - Sterling IG-US - |G -Euro
= = = = USHigh Yield - === USLoans ~ — — — Euro High Yield

Global equity sector returns (%) [2!

Energy

Basic Materials
Industrials

Consumer Staples
Health Care

Consumer Discretionary
Telecommunications

Utilities 0.9

Financials 13
Technology
Real Estate =z I

Source: DataStream, Barings, ICE "'FTSE All World Indices. Commentary compares regional equity returns in local currency. & Returns

shown in Sterling terms and relative to FTSE All World.

9.5

HYMANS 1 ROBERTSON



Appendix Strategic Overview Manager Performance Market Background Appendix

Capital Markets Outlook

Asset Class Market Summary

A large rise in stock prices since the beginning of the year has taken the global equity price-to-earnings ratio above long-term averages,
while above-trend earnings mean cyclically adjusted valuations are even higher. However, while elevated valuations are likely to weigh on
longer-term returns, the fundamental outlook may support them in the near term: despite cautious forward guidance, the Q1 earnings
season was strong enough to prompt modest upgrades to full-year global equity earnings estimates for 2024 and 2025, which now stand at
10.0 and 13.4%, respectively.

Credit spreads remain low, close to the 25th percentile of their long-term history, as resurgent new issuance was met by ongoing strong
demand for high headline yields. Though overall corporate funding costs continue to rise in fixed interest markets as companies refinance
existing debt at higher yields, debt affordability metrics remain in decent shape. Robust growth, an upswing in corporate earnings, and
supportive financial conditions are all factors that could keep credit spreads at current levels for a while yet.

Supportive inflation developments, relatively subdued growth, and high real policy rates leave room for interest rate cuts, which is supportive
for local currency duration. However, although overall yields are attractive, a potentially stronger for longer dollar may weigh on the asset
class in the near-to-medium term. Low EM/DM long-term yield differentials also weigh on optimism towards the asset class.

Default rates have risen, and are slightly above long-term averages, but Moody’s estimates that this represents the current cycle’s peak and
that default rates will fall below historic averages by the end of the year. However, high yields have supported demand in a shrinking market,
and speculative-grade bond spreads are very low, providing little cushion against downside risks.

Speculative-grade loan spreads, which are in line with long-term medians, offer better value relative to similarly rated bonds, and a more
modest pace of interest-rate cuts points to a potentially attractive income-based return over the medium term.

We have seen continued improvement in several of the fundamental indicators we track for UK commercial property, as evidenced by the
latest Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors survey. At the same time, real rental growth has continued to rise as inflation has fallen.

Core UK However, vacancies have continued to rise in the office sector and, given shifts in working patterns and office space requirements, the rise
Property in vacancies in the sector in recent years looks somewhat structural. Our ongoing caution is largely a reflection of the challenging technical
environment, characterised by selling pressure on open-ended property funds, low transaction volumes and potentially large discounts to net
asset value upon disposal

After a surprisingly strong recovery in GDP growth in Q1, business surveys point to sustained improvement in activity in Q2, leading us to
shade down our fundamental assessment. Though, gilt yields remain attractive relative to our assessment of fair value based on long-term
growth and inflation forecasts. The technical backdrop remains challenging amidst high issuance and BoE gilts sales.

Conventional
Gilts

LY E NGl Il Better-than expected real growth also see us shade down our fundamental assessment for index-linked gilts. Index-linked gilt yields are in-line
Gilts with our assessment of fair value, while implied inflation looks a little expensive relative to both shorter- and longer-term forecasts.

__The table summarises our broad views on the outlook for markets.

HYMANS 1 ROBERTSON

Source: Hymans Robertson




Appendix

Strategic Overview Manager Performance Market Background Appendix

Disclaimer

This report is addressed to the London Borough of Havering Pension Fund. It should not be released or otherwise disclosed to any third
party except as required by law or regulatory obligation or without our prior written consent. We accept no liability where the report is used
by, or released or otherwise disclosed to, a third party unless we have expressly accepted such liability in writing. Where this is permitted,
the report may only be released or otherwise disclosed in a complete form which fully discloses our advice and the basis on which it is
given.

Please note the value of investments, and income from them, may fall as well as rise. This includes equities, government or corporate
bonds, and property, whether held directly or in a pooled or collective investment vehicle. Further, investment in developing or emerging
markets may be more volatile and less marketable than in mature markets. Exchange rates may also affect the value of an

investment. As a result, an investor may not get back the amount originally invested. Past performance is not necessarily a guide to
future performance.

In some cases, we have commercial business arrangements/agreements with clients within the financial sector where we provide
services. These services are entirely separate from any advice that we may provide in recommending products to our advisory clients.
Our recommendations are provided as a result of clients’ needs and based upon our independent research. Where there is a perceived or
potential conflict, alternative recommendations can be made available.

This report may contain fund and fund manager specific research ratings and comments based on the views of our investment research
team. Please speak to your investment adviser before taking any investment decisions or actions. They will advise whether formal
investment advice is necessary, including a risk assessment and investment suitability information where appropriate.

Hymans Robertson LLP has relied upon third party sources and all copyright and other rights are reserved by such third party sources as
follows: DataStream data: © DataStream; Fund Manager data: Fund Manager; Morgan Stanley Capital International data: © and database
right Morgan Stanley Capital International and its licensors 2024. All rights reserved. MSCI has no liability to any person for any losses,
damages, costs or expenses suffered as a result of any use or reliance on any of the information which may be attributed to it; Hymans
Robertson data: © Hymans Robertson. Whilst every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy of such estimates or data - including
third party data - we cannot accept responsibility for any loss arising from their use. © Hymans Robertson LLP 2024.

HYMANS 1 ROBERTSON



Appendix Strategic Overview Manager Performance Market Background Appendix

Geometric vs. Arithmetic Performance

Hymans Robertson are among the investment professionals who calculate relative performance geometrically as follows:

(1 + Fund Performance)

(1 + Benchmark Per formance) -

Some industry practitioners use the simpler arithmetic method as follows:

Fund Per formance — Benchmark Performance

The geometric return is a better measure of investment performance when compared to the arithmetic return, to account for
potential volatility of returns.

The difference between the arithmetic mean return and the geometric mean return increases as the volatility increases.

HYMANS 1t ROBERTSON




By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

»¢ Havering

g L ONDON BOROUGH

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 1 OCTBER 2024

Subject Heading: PUBLIC SERVICE PENSIONS ACT 2013
— SECTION 13 REPORT

SLT Lead: Kathy Freeman

Report Author and contact details: Debbie Ford
Pension Fund Manager (Finance)
01708432569
Debbie.ford@onesource.co.uk

Policy context: Public Services Pensions Act 2013

Section 13, requires the Government
Actuary’s Department to report on
whether LGPS funding valuations meet
the aims of Section 13

Financial summary: Actuary fees met by the Pension Fund

The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council
Objectives

Communities making Havering [X]

Places making Havering [X]

Opportunities making Havering [X]

Connections making Havering [X]
SUMMARY

The Government Actuary Department (GAD) has published its report to the Ministry
of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) on the 14 August 2024,
which is required by section 13 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013.

The purpose of the report is to examine whether the separate 87 fund valuations
have achieved the four aims set out in the Act: compliance, consistency, solvency
and long-term cost efficiency.

This report is published as three documents: The Section 13 Report, (Appendix
A), the Appendices (Appendix B) and Funding Analysis (Appendix C).

Page 71


mailto:Debbie.ford@

Pensions Committee, 1 October 2024

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the committee note

1. The results of the report produced by GAD attached as Appendix A, B and

C

2. To note Hymans summary attached as Appendix A.

Background

REPORT DETAIL

a. The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG)
appointed GAD to report under section 13 of the Public Service Pensions Act
2013 in connection with the actuarial valuations of the Funds in the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).

b. Published on the 14 August 2024, this is the third formal section 13 report

based

on the results of Fund valuations as at 31 March 2022.

c. The report is published as three documents: the section 13 Report (Appendix
A), the appendices (Appendix B) and Funding Analysis (Appendix C).

d. The purpose of the report is to examine whether the 87 separate fund
valuations have achieved the four aims set out in the Act, which are:

Compliance - to confirm whether the Fund’s actuarial valuation has
been carried out in accordance with the scheme regulations.
Consistency — to confirm whether the Fund’s actuarial valuation has
been carried out in a way that is NOT inconsistent with other Fund
valuations in the LGPS. This being both presentational and evidentially
consistent, enabling the reader to make comparisons between
different valuation reports.

Solvency — to confirm whether the rate of employer contributions is
set at an appropriate level to ensure the solvency of the Fund, and
Long Term cost efficiency — to confirm whether the rate of employer
contributions is set at an appropriate level to ensure the long-term cost-
efficiency of the scheme, ensuring the Fund is not unduly storing up
funding problems for later generations.

Page 72



Pensions Committee, 1 October 2024

e. GAD allocated scores to each fund once tested against the aims using a
colour classification of red, amber, white or green:

J - — indicates a material issue that may result in the aims of section
13 not being met. In such circumstances, remedial action may be
considered.

. — indicates a potential material issue that Funds are expected
to be aware of. In isolation, this would not usually contribute to a
recommendation for remedial action.

. — an advisory flag that indicates a general issue, which does not
require an action in isolation. It may have been an amber flag if there
were broader concerns.

. — no material issues that may contribute to a recommendation
for remedial action.

f. All Funds met the compliance and consistency tests, although there were
no individual ratings awarded, GAD raised concerns around the continued
lack of evidential consistency since the previous review at 2019. Whilst GAD
appreciate that specific fund circumstances may merit the use of different
actuarial assumptions, they believe that these differences may lead to
different outcomes, for example different contribution rates. Wherever
possible, GAD believe in the importance of information being presented in a
way that facilitates comparisons and made 2 recommendations for the
Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) to consider. Hymans response to this
recommendation is set out on page 6 in Appendix D attached to this report.

g. The London Borough of Havering Pension Fund received green flags for all
the metrics tested under Solvency and Long-Term Cost Efficiency. All the
individual metrics tested for Solvency and their ratings for Havering can be
seen on page 35 in Appendix B. All the individual metrics tested for Long-
Term Cost Efficiency and their ratings for Havering can be seen on page 35
in Appendix B.

h. Long Term Cost efficiency - GAD made a recommendation to the SAB to
consider the treatment of surpluses, where deficits exist how can this be
demonstrated as a continuation of the previous plan and treatment of asset
transfers from local authorities.

i. The SAB board are facilitating a review of the Funding Strategy Statement
guidance. As part of this review, SAB to consider the recommendations made
in their report.

J. Any areas which may affect the outputs of the 2025 actuarial valuations

mentioned in the report will be considered as part of the 2025 valuations
exercise.

Page 73



Pensions Committee, 1 October 2024

k. GAD is required to report on the Scheme every 3 years with the next report
based on the outcomes of the Fund valuations as at 31 March 2025.

I.  The Fund’s actuary (Hymans) will be present at the meeting to take members
through their summary report on the findings of the Section 13 report,
attached as Appendix D.

IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS

Financial implications and risks:

The report focuses on the funding of future benefits. The calculation of members
benefits is set out in the regulations and are not dependent on the funding position
of the Fund.

There are no remedial actions required for the Havering Pension Fund and it should
be noted that a green or white flag does not necessarily indicate that no risk is
present and similarly that where there are no suggestions for remedial action does
not mean that the Fund should not consider actions.

The Fund will, where required, cooperate  with the SAB’s
consideration/implementation of GAD’s recommendations and consider any areas
which may affect the outputs of the 2025 actuarial valuations mentioned in the report.

The Fund will receive a total charge from the Actuary for £3,500.00 plus VAT to cover
the time reviewing the draft report on the Funds behalf and carrying out a review of
the figures in GAD’s report.

Actuarial charges will be met from the Pension Fund.
Legal implications and risks:

GAD has been appointed by MHCLG to report under Section 13 of the Public Service
Pensions Act 2013 in connection with the actuarial valuations of the funds in the
LGPS in England and Wales.

Section 13 (4) requires GAD to report on whether the following aims achieved, using
a variety of measures within the following categories: compliance, consistency,
solvency and long term cost efficiency.

Section 13 (6) If the report states that, in the view of the person making the report,
any of the aims in that subsection (4) (above) has not been achieved the report may
recommend remedial steps and the scheme manager must take such remedial steps
as considered appropriate, and publish details of those steps and the reasons for
taking them;

Page 74



Pensions Committee, 1 October 2024

Human Resources implications and risks:
None arise from this report.
Equalities implications and risks:

The Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010
requires the Council, when exercising its functions, to have due regard to:

i. the need to eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Equality Act 2010;
ii. the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who share
protected characteristics and those who do not, and,;
iii. foster good relations between those who have protected characteristics and
those who do not.
Note: ‘Protected characteristics’ are: age, sex, race, disability, sexual orientation,
marriage and civil partnerships, religion or belief, pregnancy and maternity and
gender reassignment/identity.

The Council is committed to all of the above in the provision, procurement and
commissioning of its services, and the employment of its workforce. In addition, the
Council is also committed to improving the quality of life and wellbeing for all
Havering residents in respect of socio-economics and health determinants

An EQEIA is not considered necessary regarding this matter as the protected groups
are not directly or indirectly affected

None arise from this report as this report is required to be published in order to
comply with Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Background Papers List
none

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



SRS
Government
Actuary’s

Department

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

E.fReview of LGPS fund valuations as at 31 March 2022
~under Section 13

Fiona Dunsire FIA and Aidan Smith FIA
14 August 2024

The Government Actuary’s Department is proud to be accredited under
the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries’ Quality Assurance Scheme.
Our website describes the standards we apply.




Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

g) obed

Contents

-_—

Executive Summary..........ccooiimieiiiiiiinnecinneenes
Introduction..........ccecoiiiciii
Progress ...
Compliance.........oeeciiimieiiiirci e

Consistency.......ccciiiiiiieciiiirr s

o o B o N

SOIVENCY ...t

-

Long term cost efficiency......ccccceeeeviiireennciinnnnns



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

6/ abed

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Executive Summary

The Government Actuary has been appointed by the
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government (MHCLG) (formerly the Department for
Levelling Up, Housing and Communities) to report under
section 13 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013, in
connection with the 2022 actuarial valuations of the
funds in the Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales (LGPS or “the scheme”).

Section 13 requires the Government Actuary to report
on whether the following aims are achieved:

o Compliance

o Consistency

o Solvency

o Long term cost efficiency

This is the third formal section 13 report. Section 13 was
applied for the first time to the fund valuations as at 31
March 2016 and a second exercise was undertaken as
at 31 March 2019.

This report is based on the actuarial valuations of the
funds, other data provided by the funds and their
actuaries, and engagement exercises with relevant
funds. We are grateful to all stakeholders for their
assistance in preparing this report. We are committed to
preparing a section 13 report that makes practical
recommendations to advance the aims listed above. We

will continue to work with stakeholders to advance these
aims and expect that our approach to section 13 will
continue to evolve to reflect ever changing
circumstances and feedback received.

Progress since 2019

jifs

1.6

1.7

Page 3 of 56

We made four recommendations as part of the 2019
section 13 report. In summary, we recommended that:

1. Consideration should be given to the impact of
inconsistency on the funds, particularly in relation
to emerging risks including climate change.

2.  Funds should ensure that their deficit recovery
plans can be demonstrated to be a continuation of
their previous plan.

3. Additional information about contributions, discount
rates and reconciling deficit recovery plans should
be added to the dashboard.

4. Governance around asset transfer arrangements
from local authorities should be reviewed to ensure
any such arrangements meet the fund’s long term
funding objectives.

We are pleased to note good progress has been made
in relation to recommendations 1 and 3. However,
further actions in relation to recommendations 1, 2 and
4 are suggested.

We set out our comments on this progress in more
detail in Chapter 3.



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)

Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

08 abed

Funding position at 2022

1.8 In aggregate, the funding position of the LGPS has
improved since 31 March 2019 and the scheme appears
to be in a strong financial position, specifically:

Total assets have grown from £290bn in 2019 to
£366bn in 2022 (taking the value used in the local
fund valuations).

Total liabilities disclosed in the 2022 local
valuation reports amounted to £344bn. The local
funding bases are required to incorporate
prudence (i.e. there is intended to be a greater
than 50:50 likelihood of actual future experience
being better than the assumptions, in the opinion
of the fund actuary).

The aggregate funding level on these prudent
local bases has improved from 98% (at 2019) to
106% (at 2022). However individual funds have
seen a range of funding level changes from a
decrease of 2.6% to an increase of just under
30%.

At the date of writing, we are aware that many
funds are likely to have seen further subsequent
improvements in their funding position. However,
this will depend on individual fund circumstances.

Whilst the aggregate funding position has
improved, not all funds were in surplus at 31
March 2022, with 26 out of 87 being in deficit.

Page 4 of 56

The improved aggregate funding level is due in
large part to strong asset returns over the 3 year
period to March 2022. Investment returns
averaged around 9% pa over the period. Funding
also improved due to the continuation of
substantial financial contributions from most LGPS
employers.

The aggregate funding level on the Government
Actuary’s Department’s (GAD’s) best estimate
basis is 119% (at 2022). GAD’s best estimate
basis is the set of assumptions derived by GAD
without allowance for prudence. There is intended
to be a 50:50 likelihood of actual future experience
being better or worse than the best estimate
assumptions, in our opinion. More information on
this basis is set out in Appendix G.

The improved funding position has increased the
focus on how funds treat surpluses, with relevant
considerations including balancing
intergenerational fairness with the priority given to
stability of contributions.

Material solvency risks continue to exist given the
range of funding positions across the scheme, the
sensitivity of funding levels to future experience
(especially investment market conditions) and
competing pressures on employers’ budgets.

We set out below our findings on each of the four aims
and our recommendations.



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)

Local Government Pension Scheme

T8 abed

Main report England and Wales
Compliance and assumptions (which we call evidential
inconsistency) mean that it is not possible to make a like
1.10  Our review indicated that fund valuations were for like comparison between funds.
compliant with relevant regulations. . o N : .
1.14  There is no indication of significant improvement in
Consistency evidential consistency since the previous review. Local
variations may merit different assumptions and the
1.1 Section 13 requires each fund’s valuation to be carried approaches and assumptions adopted appear compliant

1.12

1.13

out in a way that is not inconsistent with other LGPS
fund valuations. We interpret “not inconsistent” to mean
that methodologies and assumptions used, in
conjunction with adequate disclosure in valuation
reports, should facilitate comparison by a reader of the
reports. Local circumstances may merit different
assumptions. For example, financial assumptions are
affected by the current and future planned investment
strategy, and different financial circumstances might
lead to different levels of prudence being adopted.

Further to our recommendations from previous section
13 reports, we are pleased to note all funds have
continued to adopt a consistent “dashboard” and that
additional information requested following the 2019
section 13 report has been provided. We consider this a
useful resource to aid stakeholders’ understanding,
because information is presented in a consistent way in
the dashboards. We consider it important to continue to
review the information contained within the dashboard
to ensure it remains helpful to stakeholders. We will
discuss with fund actuaries if further information could
be provided to inform stakeholders on the different
approaches to removing surpluses.

However, even given consistency in presentation in the
dashboards, differences in the underlying methodology

with the relevant requirements. However, these
differences will lead to different outcomes, for example
in ongoing contribution rates. The Scheme Advisory
Board (SAB) are facilitating a review of the Funding
Strategy Statement guidance. Therefore, as part of this
review, we encourage stakeholders to consider potential
benefits of greater presentational and evidential
consistency among other relevant factors.

Recommendation 1:

We recommend that the Scheme Advisory Board
consider whether greater consistency could and
should be achieved to allow easier comparison
between funds and better understanding of risks.

1.15

Page 5 of 56

We are grateful to the fund actuaries and MHCLG for
engaging on climate risk analysis since the previous
review. We believe that the climate risk analysis
principles document agreed ahead of the 2022
valuations (see Appendix B) helped to improve
consistency across the scheme in this area. We
recognise the significant progress made by funds and
actuarial advisors in the presentation of climate risk
analysis as part of the actuarial valuation process. We




Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13) Local Government Pension Scheme
Main report England and Wales

strongly promote the further development of climate risk Solvency
analysis and its integration into decision-making by
funds. This remains a rapidly evolving area and we
recommend that the Scheme Advisory Board considers Under soIvency and Iong term cost efficiency we
with other stakeholders what common principles should have designed a number of metrics and raised flags
against these metrics, to highlight areas where risk
may be present, or further investigation is required,

be adopted for the 2025 fund valuations to facilitate
consistency in climate risk analysis across the scheme.

1.16  The landscape in which the scheme operates is using a red/amber/green rating approach. Where we
continually changing such that the scheme will face do not expect specific action, we have maintained
different challenges over time. We support the SAB the white “for information” flag approach introduced
continuing to proactively engage with stakeholders on in 2019

such issues and provide guidance where appropriate to

ensure greater consistency across funds. _ _
1.17  As currently set out in CIPFA’s Funding Strategy

2g abed

Statement Guidance, the employer contribution rate is

Recommendation 2: appropriate to ensure solvency if:
We recommend that the Scheme Advisory Board e the rate of employer contributions is set to target a
continue to consider emerging issues and, where funding level for the whole fund of 100% over an
appropriate, whether guidance would be helpful to appropriate time period and using appropriate
support greater consistency. actuarial assumptions

. . . ither:
As part of greater consistency on climate risk, we and either
recommend that work continues to refine the climate o  employers collectively have the financial capacity
change principles document in advance of the 2025 to increase employer contributions, should future
fund valuations. circumstances require, in order to continue to

target a funding level of 100%

or

° there is an appropriate plan in place should there
be an expectation of a future reduction in the
number of fund employers, or a material reduction

Page 6 of 56



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

egq obed

1.18

1.19

in the capacity of fund employers to increase
contributions as might be needed

The improvement in the funding position of the scheme
has reduced the immediate solvency concerns. We
have raised no red or amber flags in relation to
solvency. However, risks clearly do remain which are
important for funds to consider, particularly in the
context of competing pressures on employer budgets
and noting the sensitivity of funding levels to future
experience (especially investment market conditions).

Some councils have made a commitment to transfer
some property assets to their pension funds at a future
date. Whilst we are not aware of any new arrangements
or any currently under consideration, we note these are
complex and, in some cases, established with a long
time horizon. For these reasons care needs to be taken
to ensure they are suitable investments for a pension
fund and that they are compliant with the wider local
government capital framework. The governance around
any such asset transfer arrangements requires careful
consideration, and we recommend that these
arrangements are considered as part of the Funding
Strategy Statement guidance review as set out in
recommendation 3.

Long term cost efficiency

1.20

As currently set out in CIPFA’s Funding Strategy
Statement Guidance, we consider that the rate of
employer contributions has been set at an appropriate
level to ensure long term cost efficiency, if it is sufficient
to make provision for the cost of current benefit accrual,

1.21

1.22

1.23

1.24

Page 7 of 56

with an appropriate adjustment to that rate for any
surplus or deficit in the fund.

In 2022, we are flagging two funds as raising potential
concern in relation to long term cost efficiency under the
deficit period measure.

For a further fund, we are concerned that employer
contribution rates are decreasing (reducing the burden
on current taxpayers) at the same time as the deficit
recovery is being extended further into the future
(increasing the burden on future taxpayers).

Different approaches have been taken by different funds
at the 2022 valuations to determine how surplus is
utilised. GAD has not flagged any funds on the
utilisation of surplus at this review. Funds appear to
have made decisions having considered relevant
factors. However, we also note inconsistencies in
outcomes will arise where funds place different weights
on these factors, and we recognise the importance of
considering intergenerational fairness i.e. the balance
between the interests of current and future taxpayers
and employers.

We set out in the long term cost efficiency chapter of
this report the approach that we intend to use for future
section 13 reviews to assess how funds have utilised
surpluses at future valuations. The approach is a mix of
qualitative and quantitative analysis, to reflect the range
of relevant considerations and approaches. We will
expect administering authorities to have considered
relevant factors and the trade-off between competing
priorities.



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13) Local Government Pension Scheme
Main report England and Wales

1.25 We have illustrated the potential implications of different
approaches to surplus management in our Asset
Liability Modelling (ALM), as well as the uncertainty of
long term contributions and funding and therefore the
link to solvency risks.

1.26  We support the SAB in facilitating the review of the
guidance on Funding Strategy Statements mentioned
above. We recommend that the treatment of surpluses
and deficits, together with the governance on asset
transfers, should be included as part of this review.

Recommendation 3:

We recommend that the Scheme Advisory Board
consider the following:

78 abed

e Where funds are in surplus, whether additional
guidance can be provided to support funds in
balancing different considerations.

e Where deficits exist, how can all funds ensure
that the deficit recovery plan can be
demonstrated to be a continuation of the
previous plan.

e Whether additional guidance is required in
relation to the treatment of asset transfers from
local authorities.

Page 8 of 56



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

2.

2.1

Introduction

This introduction provides background information on
the local government pension scheme and the review
we have undertaken, including:

o Valuations within the LGPS
o Section 13 and the statutory requirements

o The approach that we adopt to carry out the
required section 13 review

_UWhat are Local Government Pension

g Scheme valuations?The Local Government Pension

@ Scheme in England and Wales (LGPS, or “the scheme”) is a

ocofunded scheme comprising 87 different funds. Each individual

Ulfund has its own liabilities and assets, and periodic assessments
are needed to ensure the fund has sufficient assets to meet its
liabilities.

2.3

Each LGPS pension fund is required to appoint their
own fund actuary, who carries out the fund's valuation
every three years. The fund actuary uses a number of
assumptions to value the liabilities of the fund. Costs are
split between those that relate to benefits already
earned in the past (the past service cost) and those that
relate to benefits being earned in the future (the future
service cost). The results of the valuation may lead to
changes in employer contribution rates for both future
and past service costs.

24

2.5

Page 9 of 56

In addition to the individual valuations carried out by
each fund, GAD carries out the following valuations:

. A valuation of the whole scheme, with the latest
such valuation occurring as at 31 March 2020:
Local Government Pension Scheme (England and
Wales). This valuation evaluates the cost of LGPS
benefits and assesses if any changes need to be
considered to meet an agreed cost control
mechanism under directions set by HM Treasury.
The Government’s intention is that the cost control
mechanism is only triggered by “extraordinary,
unpredictable events”. As at 31 March 2020 the
cost control mechanism was not breached. The
next review will be as at 31 March 2024.

o SAB Cost Management Process (CMP) where the
cost of the scheme is considered by the LGPS
England and Wales Scheme Advisory Board
(SAB) relative to a target cost for the scheme. The
SAB CMP follows the valuation of the whole
scheme described above.

Scheme regulations set out member benefits to be paid
and when valuations are to be carried out. We have
based our assessment on current scheme regulations
and benefits (with an allowance for agreement to
equalise benefits under “McCloud”). The benefits paid to
members are not dependent on the funding position of
any particular fund. See Appendix C for further
information.



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

98 abed

What is section 13?

2.6 Section 13 is a requirement under the Public Service
Pensions Act 2013.

2.7 The Government Actuary has been appointed by the
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government (MHCLG) to report under section 13 of the
Public Service Pensions Act 2013 in connection with the
actuarial valuations of the 87 funds in the Local
Government Pension Scheme in England and Wales.

2.8 This is the third formal section 13 report and sets out the
Government Actuary’s findings following the fund

valuations as at 31 March 2022.
Statutory requirements
29 This report is addressed to MHCLG as the responsible 2.11

authority for the purposes of subsection (4) of section 13
of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 (the Act). GAD
has prepared this report setting out the results of our
review of the 2022 funding valuations of the LGPS. This
report will be of relevance to administering authorities
and other employers, actuaries performing valuations
for the funds within the LGPS, the LGPS Scheme
Advisory Board (SAB), HM Treasury (HMT) and the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy
(CIPFA), as well as other LGPS stakeholders.

2.10  Subsection (4) of section 13 requires the Government

Actuary, as the person appointed by MHCLG, to report
on whether the four main aims are achieved, namely:

Page 10 of 56

o Compliance: whether the fund’s valuation is in
accordance with the scheme regulations

o Consistency: whether the fund’s valuation has
been carried out in a way which is not inconsistent
with the other fund valuations within the Local
Government Pension Scheme England and Wales
(LGPS)

o Solvency: whether the rate of employer
contributions is set at an appropriate level to
ensure the solvency of the pension fund

o Long term cost efficiency: whether the rate of
employer contributions is set at an appropriate
level to ensure the long term cost efficiency of the
pension fund

Section 13, subsection (6) states that if any of the aims
of subsection (4) are not achieved

a. the report may recommend remedial steps
b. the scheme manager must -

I. take such remedial steps as the scheme
manager considers appropriate, and

il publish details of those steps and the
reasons for taking them

c. the responsible authority may -

i. require the scheme manager to report on
progress in taking remedial steps



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

/g abed

ii. direct the scheme manager to take such
remedial steps as the responsible authority
considers appropriate.

GAD’s approach

212

We have looked at a range of metrics to identify
potential exceptions under the solvency and long term
cost efficiency objectives. Each fund is given a colour-
coded flag under each measure:

Colour

Interpretation

A material issue that may result in the aims of
section 13 not being met. In such circumstances
remedial action to ensure solvency and/or long
term cost efficiency may be considered.

Amber

A potential issue that we would expect funds to
be aware of. In isolation this would not usually
contribute to a recommendation for remedial
action in order to ensure solvency and/or long
term cost efficiency.

White

An advisory flag that highlights a general issue
but one which does not require an action in
isolation. It may have been an amber flag if we
had broader concerns.

Green

There are no material issues that may contribute
to a recommendation for remedial action in order
to ensure solvency or long term cost efficiency.

213

214

215

2.16

217

Page 11 of 56

The trigger points for these flags are based on a
combination of absolute measures and measures
relative to the funds in scope. Where appropriate, we
have maintained consistency with the approach adopted
in 2019.

While they should not represent targets, these
measures and flags help us determine whether a more
detailed review is required. For example, we would have
a concern where multiple measures are triggered amber
for a given fund.

These flags are intended to highlight areas where risk
may be present or further investigation is required. For
example, where an amber flag remains following
engagement, we believe this relates to an area where
some risk remains that administering authorities and
pension boards should be aware of. There is no
implication that the administering authority was
previously unaware of the risk.

A green or white flag does not necessarily indicate that
no risk is present and similarly the fact that we are not
specifically suggesting remedial action does not mean
that scheme managers should not consider actions.

We have had regard to the particular circumstances of
some funds, following engagement with the
administering authority and the fund actuary. In some
cases, the action taken or proposed has been sufficient
to remove flags. We have described these outcomes in
the relevant sections below.



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)

Local Government Pension Scheme

advisers for each fund:

Page 12 of 56

Main report England and Wales

218 The me.trlcs shpwn in the tabl_es in this r_eport are based Adviser Colour
on publicly available information and/or information
provided to GAD. A Purple

2.19 Furtr_]er dgtail of the metrics and fund engagemept is Barnett Waddingham S
provided in the solvency and long term cost efficiency
chapters and appendices. In addition, we have Hymans Robertson Grey
considered the overall funding position of the funds
within the LGPS in our funding analysis report published Mercer _
alongside this document.

2.20  Within an LGPS fund, contribution rates may vary 2.23  The Environment Agency Closed Pension Fund is
between employers. Our analysis and metrics focus on different from other LGPS funds. The benefits payable
the aggregate fund position except where stated. When and costs of the fund are met by Grant-in-Aid funding by

U reading this report, it is important to note that individual the Department for Environment, Food and Rural
g employers’ contribution rates and funding situations Affairs, thus guaranteeing the security of these benefits.
[ might differ from the aggregate fund position. Details of this can be found in the Environment Agency
(0] Closed Pension Fund valuation published on the LGPS
@221  Local valuation outputs depend on both the SAB website. In general, the fund has been excluded
administering authorities’ Funding Strategy Statements from the analyses that follow.
and the actuary's work on the valuation. We have
reported where valuation outcomes raised concerns in Standardised bases used in our approach
relation to the aims of section 13. It is not our role to
express an opinion as to whether that conclusion was 2.24  There are some areas of inconsistency highlighted in
driven by the actions of authorities or their actuaries, or Chapter 5 which make meaningful comparison of local
other stakeholders. valuation results difficult. To address this, we have
, ) . . referred to results restated on two bases:
2.22  The following key has been used to identify the actuarial

o The SAB standard basis was established by the
SAB and is used by fund actuaries to calculate
liabilities on a consistent basis allowing
comparison of funds.

o Where we consider the potential impact of future
funding levels on solvency and long term cost



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

68 abed

2.25

efficiency we need to compare the value of a
fund’s assets and liabilities. Therefore, we require
a market consistent basis. As the SAB standard
basis is not a market related basis GAD calculates
liabilities on a consistent best estimate basis,
which is based on market conditions as at 31
March 2022.

Additional information on both these bases can be found
in Appendix G.

These bases facilitate comparison but are not suitable
for funding purposes, as we would expect a funding
basis to reflect the local characteristics of a fund. We
note that:

. The SAB standard basis is not consistent with
current market conditions and is not suitable for
considering possible impacts on solvency and
long term cost efficiency.

o The GAD best estimate basis is based on our
views of likely future returns on each broad asset
class across the Scheme. Regulations and CIPFA
guidance call for prudence to be adopted when
setting a funding basis. Our best estimate basis
does not include prudence and is based on the
aggregate investment strategy for the overall
scheme, so will not be pertinent to any given
fund’s particular investment strategy. Further,
future asset returns are uncertain and there are
other reasonable best estimate bases which may
give materially different results.

2.26

The local valuations and our calculations underlying this
report are based on specific assumptions about the
future. Future experience will differ from these
assumptions. Some of our solvency measures are
stress tests but they are not intended to indicate a worst
case scenario.

Other important information

2.27

2.28

2.29

2.30

2.31

Page 13 of 56

The previous section 13 report was published on 16
December 2021 following the valuations as at 31 March
2019, details of which can be found in the Local
Government Pension Scheme: review of the actuarial
valuations of funds as at 31 March 2019.

The SAB have collated individual fund valuation reports,
together with a summary on their website.

Appendices, dated 14 August 2024, are contained in a
separate document.

GAD have also published a funding analysis report,
dated 14 August 2024. This is a factual document
summarising the results of the funds’ valuations.

In performing this analysis, we are grateful for helpful
discussions with and cooperation from:

° Actuarial advisors
° CIPFA
° MHCLG

° Fund administrators



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

06 obed

2.32

2.33

2.34

2t

2.36

° HM Treasury
o LGPS SAB

This report is GAD’s alone, and the stakeholders above
are not responsible for the content.

GAD would like to acknowledge the commitment shown
by the funds and their advisors, which is illustrated
through their engagement with this process and the
improvement in the funding position of funds since the
previous valuation.

GAD has no liability to any person or third party other
than MHCLG for any act or omission taken, either in
whole or in part, on the basis of this report. No decisions
should be taken on the basis of this report alone without
having received proper advice. GAD is not responsible
for any such decisions taken.

We understand and assume that there is no regulatory
authority assumed by or conferred on the Government
Actuary in preparing this or any future section 13 report.
The appointment to report under section 13 does not
give the Government Actuary any statutory power to
enforce actions on scheme managers (or others).

This work has been carried out in accordance with the
applicable Technical Actuarial Standard: TAS 100
issued by the Financial Reporting Council (FRC). The
FRC sets technical standards for actuarial work in the
UK.

Future review

2.37

We are grateful to stakeholders for their assistance in
preparing this report. We are committed to preparing a
section 13 report that makes practical recommendations
to advance the aims in the legislation. We will continue
to work with stakeholders to advance these aims ahead
of the 2025 actuarial valuations and expect that our
approach to section 13 will continue to evolve to reflect
ever changing circumstances and feedback received.

Limitations

2.38

2.39

Page 14 of 56

We recognise that the use of data and models has
limitations. For instance, the data that we have from
valuation submissions and publicly available financial
information is likely to be less detailed than that
available to funds. Our risk assessment framework
enables us to broadly assess scheme risks and decide
on our engagement with funds on an indicative basis. It
is the responsibility of administering authorities and their
advisors to consider and manage their risks.

Because of the nature of this exercise, we have not
generally allowed for experience since the fund
valuations, except for any specific actions described
where we have engaged with funds.



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

o
jab)
Q
D
(o]
=

3. Progress

3.1 We made four recommendations and a general risk comment in the 2019 section 13 report. We have reported on the progress
made against each of these recommendations in the table below:

2019 Recommendation

Progress

1: The SAB should consider the impact of inconsistency
on the funds, participating employers and other
stakeholders. It should specifically consider whether a
consistent approach needs to be adopted for
conversions to academies, and for assessing the impact
of emerging issues, including McCloud.

The SAB have actively engaged with both areas that the 2019 report
focused on, namely academies and equalisation of benefits following the
“McCloud” remedy.

The SAB have prepared guidance on academy conversion. This is a
positive improvement with regard to presentational consistency although
little has changed in respect of evidential consistency, i.e. the underlying
differences in approaches remain.

In relation to McCloud liabilities all funds quantified the estimated impact
as a percentage of liabilities on the dashboard, which was helpful in
communicating the impact. Regulations to equalise for McCloud remedy
have been introduced since the last review in 2019 and, therefore, we
make no further recommendations in this area.

More broadly, the potential for inconsistency remains particularly where
new issues emerge. Therefore, we are supportive of the SAB maintaining
a watching brief and engaging with stakeholders in relation to current
issues such as the recent working group on surpluses and the proposal to
host a climate change working group. We also encourage the SAB and
other stakeholders to consider the benefits of improving consistency
across funds as part of the review of Funding Strategy Statement (FSS)
guidance, which they are co-ordinating.

Page 15 of 56



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

2019 Recommendation

Progress

2: We recommend the SAB consider how all funds
ensure that the deficit recovery plan can be
demonstrated to be a continuation of the previous plan,
after allowing for actual fund experience.

The principles underlying a deficit recovery plan will be set out in each
fund’s FSS. The SAB is engaging with stakeholders to update the
guidance on FSS and will consider the recommendation in these
discussions.

3: We recommend fund actuaries provide additional
information about total contributions, discount rates and
reconciling deficit recovery plans in the dashboard.

We are grateful to the fund actuaries for providing this additional
information, which we believe is helpful to stakeholders wishing to
compare different LGPS funds.

4: \We recommend the SAB review asset transfer

—p arrangements from local authorities to ensure that

With improvements in funding positions, we understand that no new asset
transfer arrangements have been put in place. Fund advisors have not

Q appropriate governance is in place around any such reported any recent asset transfer arrangements in their data submission
% transfers to achieve long term cost efficiency. to GAD. The SAB intend to consider this point during their review of the
© guidance on FSS.

N

Page 16 of 56



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

General risk comment

Progress

T
jb)

@D
O

Local authorities have finite resources and in recent
years, the size of pension funds has increased
considerably more than local authority budgets. Given
that pension funding levels change, it is not unlikely that
a period of increased pension contributions may be
required at some point in the future.

If additional spending is required for pension
contributions, this may lead to a strain on local authority
budgets.

We would expect that administering authorities are
aware of this risk in relation to solvency and would
monitor it over time. Administering authorities may wish
to discuss the potential volatility of future contributions
with employers in relation to overall affordability.

We understand from discussions with fund advisors that administering
authorities are generally mindful of the risks of a future deterioration in
funding levels requiring increased pension contributions, with this causing
a strain on local authority budgets. In many cases, this has been an
important consideration when setting contribution rates for funds in
surplus. Specifically, we note the focus of employers on stability when
setting their contribution rates, which may help funds manage future
increases in contributions.

In light of the widely reported pressures on council funding impacting local
authorities and other employers within the LGPS, it is important that the
consequences of volatility and the risk of any future significant requirement
to increase employer contributions continue to be monitored.

w

Page 17 of 56



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

4 COm p| iance Review of compliance outcomes

4.3
Key Compliance findings e
e All reports checked contained a statement of compliance.
e The reports checked contained confirmation of all material
requirements of regulation 62 of the Local Government
Pension Scheme Regulations 2013.
e We concluded the aims of section 13 were achieved under
T the heading of Compliance, in terms of valuation reporting.
Q
@
oStatutory requirement and chapter content
N
4.1 Under section 13(4)(a) of the Act, the Government 2
Actuary must report on whether the actuarial valuations
of the funds have been completed in accordance with
the scheme regulations.
4.2 In this Chapter we set out our approach to reviewing 46
compliance and our conclusions from that review. '
4.7

Page 18 of 56

Valuation reports complied with the required regulations.

There is a great deal of consistency in the actuarial
methodologies and the presentation of the actuarial
valuation reports for funds that are advised by the same
firm of actuarial advisors (see Chapter 5 on
Consistency). Accordingly, GAD has selected one fund
as a representative example from each of the firms of
actuarial advisors and has assessed whether these
reports have been completed in accordance with
Regulation 62 of the Local Government Pension
Scheme Regulations 2013 (the statutory instrument
governing actuarial valuations of the LGPS in England
and Wales). Each actuarial firm confirmed that the
selected fund valuation report was representative.

We found that the actuarial valuation reports have been
completed in accordance with Regulation 62 and have
therefore concluded that the compliance criteria of
section 13 have been achieved. This is not a legal
opinion.

We were pleased to note improvements in the clarity of
references to the assumptions on which the Rates and
Adjustment Certificate (the certificate setting out
employer contributions) was based, following our
comment in the previous section 13 report.

In line with the required actuarial standards, we noted
that the four valuation reports reviewed contained
confirmation that the required Technical Actuarial
Standards had been met.



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13) Local Government Pension Scheme
Main report England and Wales

4.8 Our review of compliance is focused on the actuarial
valuation reports produced under Regulation 62. We
have not, for example, systematically reviewed Funding
Strategy Statements prepared under Regulation 58.

4.9 The comments we make in subsequent chapters on
consistency, solvency and long term cost efficiency do
not imply that we believe that the valuations are not
compliant with the regulations. These comments relate
to whether the valuations appear to achieve the aims of
section 13.

G6 obed

Page 19 of 56



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

96 obed

5_ Consistency Statutory requirement and chapter content

5.1
Key Consistency findings
e Presentational consistency was evident in the 2022
valuations and the continued use of the dashboard greatly 52

aids stakeholders’ understanding. The additional information
provided following the 2019 section 13 review has helped to
improve presentational consistency.

e There is no indication of significant improvement in evidential
consistency since the 2019 section 13 review. Local
variations may merit different assumptions and the
approaches and assumptions adopted appear compliant with
the relevant requirements. However, these differences will
lead to different outcomes, for example in ongoing
contribution rates.

e We recognise the significant progress made by funds and
actuarial advisers in the presentation of climate risk analysis
as part of the 2022 fund valuations. Most funds have followed
the broad climate risk principles paper agreed between
MHCLG, fund actuaries and GAD. We recommend that the
Scheme Advisory Board engage with stakeholders to

: e : ) . . SRS
continue to develop these principles with the aim of improving
the analysis and ensuring consistency across funds for 2025
valuations, given the continued evolution across the industry.
5.4

Page 20 of 56

Under Section 13(4)(b) of the Act, the Government
Actuary must report on whether each actuarial valuation
has been carried out in a way which is not inconsistent
with other valuations. This requires both presentational
and evidential consistency.

In this chapter, we:

o Provide background on the legislative requirement
and importance of consistency

o Consider recent changes to the dashboard and
improved presentational consistency

o Consider the remaining differences in evidential
consistency and the likely consequences of such
differences

o Note the significant improvements in climate risk
analysis by funds and propose actions to support
further improvements

Types of Consistency

Presentational Consistency - Information may be
presented in different ways in different reports, and
sometimes information is contained in some reports but
not others, so readers may have some difficulties in
locating the information they wish to compare. We call
this presentational inconsistency.

Evidential Consistency - When the reader has located
the relevant information (e.g. funding levels), differences



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

/6 abed

in the underlying methodology and assumptions mean
that it is not possible to make a like for like comparison.
We call this evidential inconsistency. We believe that
local circumstances may merit different assumptions
(e.g. financial assumptions are affected by the current
and future planned investment strategy or different
levels of prudence) but that wherever possible,
information should be presented in a way that facilitates
comparisons.

Importance of Consistency

5.5

5.6

5.7

LGPS is a pension scheme providing a common benefit
structure which is locally administered by separate
Administering Authorities. Section 13 requires
valuations to be carried out in a way that is not
inconsistent with other LGPS fund valuations. This is
important to enable readers to draw comparisons
between the results from two valuation reports and also
has wider benefits.

Where members build up identical benefits, it can be
hard to justify large variations in the apparent cost of
these benefits. This is particularly pronounced where
one employer participates in different LGPS funds and
can be required to contribute differing amounts. In this
situation, it is important to understand what is driving the
difference and ensure that this is clear to employers.
The greater the difference in cost between different
funds, the more significant this issue.

A specific example of this has arisen in recent years
regarding academy conversions. When a local authority
school converts to an academy, the contribution rates
payable by the academy reflect both the funding

5.8

position and the approach used (for example how
assets and liabilities are attributed to the academy and
whether the academy is grouped together with other
employers). Differences in approaches can lead to
significantly different contribution requirements.

Furthermore, it is not unusual for members to transfer
between funds. The greater the variation in funding
bases, the greater the potential strain on a fund under
such a transfer. In relation to bulk transfers of members,
discussions on the appropriate transfer basis are not
helped by differences in funding bases.

Reasons for local variation

2l

5.10

Page 21 of 56

Differences in approaches and assumptions across
funds are to be expected under the valuation
requirements and reflect:

o Differences in circumstances (for example,
different investment strategies, types of
employers, attitudes to risk or demographic
experience)

o Differences in views of unknown future experience
(for example, of future investment returns or
longevity improvements)

o Different methodologies, where a single approach
is not prescribed

Whilst differences in assumptions are justifiable, they
should be evidence-based (where appropriate), clearly
explained and the impact understood, to support
evidential consistency.



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

Presentational Consistency

511  We noted a high degree of similarity between reports
produced by each consultancy. Therefore, we have

Contribution rates

il

taken, at random, a report produced by each actuarial
advisor to assess whether the information disclosed is
consistent across all four advisors. We do not have any

specific concerns about the selected funds and have
confirmed with the actuaries that these funds are
representative of a typical valuation report that they
produce. None of these funds raise any amber or red

flags. These funds are:

Powys County Council Pension
Fund (Aon)

86 obed

Buckinghamshire Pension
Fund (Barnett Waddingham)

Information provided within valuation reports

5.12  We note that valuation reports contain detailed
information on the financial position of a fund and what

5.14

London Borough of Croydon
Pension Fund (Hymans
Robertson)

1@

Contribution rates include the following components:
o Primary contribution rate (employer)

o Secondary contribution rate (employer)

o Member contribution rate

Regulations require contribution rates to be split into
primary and secondary contribution rates for employers,
and all valuation reports do note this. The primary and
member contribution rates are easily found in valuation
reports.

There are differences between the valuation reports on
what information is provided regarding secondary
contributions and how they have changed over time.
This inconsistency in information is addressed, in part,
by the revised dashboard which does provide a clear
comparison (as discussed further below in the
subsection on dashboards).

Change in position since the last actuarial valuation

5.16

future contributions are required to meet their statutory

obligations. We have reviewed the information
contained in the sample funds’ valuation reports to
consider how consistently key information has been
presented and hence the extent to which a reader can

easily make comparisons.

5.17

Page 22 of 56

Each valuation report contains a section that
summarises the changes to the funding position since
the previous valuation. These are presented in very
similar ways, making for easy comparison.

Table 5.1 summarises the information provided in the
sample valuation reports on the change in primary
contribution rates since the previous valuation. Whilst
two funds provide an analysis in a consistent manner to
the analysis of the funding position, this is not the case



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

(o)
©

for all funds. We would consider additional detail and
consistency in approach here to be helpful.

Table 5.1 Comparison of primary rates with prior
valuation

Fund Comparison provided
Powys County : L
e Berchan Analysis of the change in primary
Fund contribution rates

Buckinghamshire
Pension Fund

Analysis of the change in primary
contribution rates

London Borough of
Croydon Pension
Fund

and secondary rate (as fixed monetary
amounts)

Comparison of primary rate (as % of pay)

compared with the previous valuation

Breakdown of the primary contribution rate

5.18

Table 5.2 sets out the information provided in the
sample valuation reports on deficit and surplus
strategies. Whilst we appreciate the information is
complex, we did not find it easy to understand and
compare funds’ strategies for utilising any surplus or
spreading deficit over the longer term. In all cases we
note that additional information will be included in the
fund’s Funding Strategy Statement but that requires
reference to a separate document.

Table 5.2: Information provided on spreading
surplus/deficit

Information provided on spreading

e surplus / deficits

Statement setting out spreading of deficit
Powys. Count_y under 100% over 13 years, across the
Council Pension f o
Fund und, and any surplus over 105% over 16

years

Buckinghamshire
Pension Fund

Statement setting out spreading of deficit
(maximum of 11 years)

London Borough of
Croydon Pension
Fund

Provide funding time horizon over which
all future and past benefits are sought to
be fully funded

Statement setting out spreading of deficit
and surplus. Deficit recovery over
average of 12 years.

Dashboards

5.19  All funds have provided information in the format of a
standard dashboard following a 2016 section 13
recommendation. The format of the revised 2022
valuation dashboard was agreed by the SAB and
actuarial advisors, and is shown in table B1 of Appendix

B. This includes the key information that one might

Page 23 of 56



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

00T abed

5.20

5.22

expect to find in an actuarial valuation report and is
helpful to readers in comparing funding valuations.

We are aware that different actuarial advisors use
different methodologies. While we would not wish a
desire for consistency to stifle innovation, this can make
comparisons difficult. We are grateful that Hymans
Robertson have, for the 2022 valuations, provided
information in the dashboard on how their future service
discount rate is derived, although because their
methodology does not base contributions on a single
discount rate, comparisons with other funds remain
difficult.

The 2022 valuation dashboard includes further
information on primary and secondary employer
contributions in a standard format at both the current
and previous valuation. We found that the additional
information provided, especially in relation to secondary
contributions, is helpful as this clearly sets out how
contributions have changed over time on an easily
comparable basis.

We suggest that a review of the valuation dashboards is
undertaken prior to the 2025 valuations, to consider if
further information could be provided. In particular, to
clarify the different approaches which funds adopt and
to address inconsistencies in the description of the
treatment of surpluses and deficits.

Evidential Consistency

5.23

We have considered whether the local fund valuations
have been carried out in a way which is not inconsistent
with each other, as required under regulations. We have

5.24

5.25

found that inconsistencies in the methodologies and
assumptions adopted remain, broadly in line with those
observed at the 2019 section 13 review. This section
describes these inconsistencies and the consequences
of them, while also recognising there are valid reasons
for local variations as noted above.

Primary contribution rates range between 15% and 24%
of pay in 2022. This range is a function of differences in
age profile as well as different assumptions adopted. It
is a slightly wider range than that from the 2019
valuations. The range of secondary contributions
reflects different levels of deficit and surplus across
funds as well as differences in strategies to allow for
deficit and surplus.

The value assigned to liabilities in each actuarial
valuation report has been calculated using assumptions
set locally. Differing levels of prudence are to be
expected and may be reflective of local variations in risk
appetite, but care needs be taken when comparing
results.

Reported liabilities

5.26

Page 24 of 56

Table 5.3 shows a comparison of the local basis liability
values with liability values calculated using the SAB
basis, for the four valuations chosen. Whilst there are
reasons for local variations between bases, as
described above, this does illustrate the difficulty in
drawing conclusions based solely on liability values due
to variation in assumptions (including factors such as
the levels of prudence adopted). Charts B1 and B2 in
Appendix B show the variation between the local basis



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

and SAB basis funding levels for individual funds in
more detail for all funds.

Table 5.3: Liability Values

SAB Difference

Fund Local Basis Standard between
(Em) Basis Local and
(Em) SAB Basis
Powys County
Council Pension 823 759 8%
Fund
Buckinghamshire
U o)
@ Pension Fund S B8z 5%
«Q
@
'5 London Borough of
= Croydon Pension 1,790 1,576 14%
Fund

5.27

The liability value on the local basis is higher than that
calculated on the SAB standard basis for the sample
funds. Across the four funds examined, the difference
between the liabilities calculated on the two bases
ranges between 5% and 14%. More widely across all
funds the range is between -5% and 33%. As noted in
paragraph 2.25, the SAB standard basis is not useful for
assessing liabilities for funding purposes but is helpful
as a standard comparative measure. This analysis

5.28

illustrates the potential range of differences in liability
values due to different bases.

The analysis above focuses on four funds chosen at
random. It should not therefore be extrapolated to all
funds advised by a particular advisor.

Assumptions

S

We compared the following key assumptions, used for
the actuarial valuations, to consider whether variations
in those assumptions are justified in terms of local
conditions.

Discount Rate

5.30

Jec) |

Page 25 of 56

The discount rate is the most significant assumption in
terms of impact on the valuation results. We have
therefore focused on the derivation of this assumption in
this section. It is expected that different advisors will
have different views on expected future investment
returns, from which discount rates are derived.

We first consider the discount rate used to value past
service liabilities. The pre-retirement discount rate is
derived from the expected return on assets with a
deduction for prudence. A way of measuring the level of
prudence included is to consider the implied asset
outperformance within the discount rate (see Appendix
B for more details). The range of implied asset
outperformance by actuarial advisor is set out in Chart
5.1 below.



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

Chart 5.1 Implied asset outperformance range

4.5%

4.0%

3.5%

3.0%

2.5%

2.0%

1.5%

1.0%

20T abed

SROE

5.33

Aon Barnett Waddingham Hymans Robertson

Chart 5.1 shows the variance in implied asset
outperformance by actuarial advisor. We determine the
implied asset outperformance as the discount rate less
the implied market risk free rate (see Appendix B). The
coloured box in the middle represents the range of asset
outperformance in the discount rate for the middle 50%
of advisors’ funds i.e. the lower and upper lines for the
shaded box represent the spread for the lower and
upper 25% of funds. The end points represent the
minimum and maximum discount values. The black
diamonds represent the average asset outperformance.

The variation in assumptions is relatively narrow with a
great deal of overlap, albeit the range from highest to

Mercer

5.34

Page 26 of 56

Chart 5.1 illustrates the range of implied asset
outperformance by the four actuarial advisors
(with the Environment Agency closed fund
excluded).

In 2022, as at the 2019 review, some funds
advised by Barnett Waddingham have the
highest level of asset outperformance within the
discount rate used for assessing past service
liability values, while some funds advised by
Hymans Robertson have the lowest level.

lowest is over 2%. Chart B3 in Appendix B shows the
breakdown for individual funds.

Whilst this might suggest consistency, we have
investigated various factors that might be expected to
influence the discount rates that funds choose to adopt.
Our analysis showed that there was no clear influence
due to the asset mix, prudence, funding level, type of
employer or maturity in isolation on the discount rate
adopted. For example, the impact of the asset allocation
on the discount rate is illustrated in Chart B4 in
Appendix B and shows little correlation. We conclude
that there is variation both between fund advisors and
within individual funds advised by each advisor, driven



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

5.35

5.36

€0T abed

5.37

5.38

by a combination of factors including risk appetite and
past practice (which may well be related).

The implied asset outperformance in Chart 5.1 relates to
the discount rate for past service liabilities only. Whilst
Aon and Barnett Waddingham adopt the same
assumption for setting future contribution rates, Mercer
have a different approach and Hymans Robertson use
the same underlying model as part of a risk-based
analysis.

5.39

Hymans Robertson use an asset liability model to set
contribution rates by analysing a probability of success
(“meeting the funding target by the funding time
horizon”) over a projection period (such as, for example,
twenty years). We appreciate that Hymans Robertson
have provided commentary on their methodology in the
dashboard, although comparisons with other funds
remain difficult since they are unable to provide a
suitable comparative discount rate for setting future
contributions.

5.40

Mercer’s approach allows for contributions made after
the valuation date receiving a future investment return
that is not directly linked to market conditions at the
valuation date. This resulted in a higher discount rate
assumption for setting future contribution rates than
used to value past service liabilities in the 2022
valuations.

5.41

Where discount rates reflect market conditions, all funds
adopted a consistent approach in basing valuation
outcomes on market conditions at the valuation date

Page 27 of 56

rather than reflecting subsequent market movements.
Given changes in investment markets in the second half
of 2022, particularly in relation to the gilt market,
consideration of this aspect is especially relevant for this
section 13 review.

Whilst we have been unable to identify any individual
factor driving the differences, we acknowledge that
different views of future investment returns, different
asset strategies and different risk appetites (among
other factors) would suggest different discount rates.
Hence, we do not consider the fact that funds adopt
different discount rates to be a particular cause for
concern. Future asset returns are highly uncertain, and
hence there is a wide range of reasonable assumptions
that may be adopted.

Other assumptions

We have compared the following assumptions used by
funds:

o Future mortality improvements (life expectancy)
o Commutation assumptions

We expect assumptions to vary between funds. To aid
transparency, this variation should be justified in relation
to local circumstances. Appendix B contains further
information on the assumptions adopted.



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)

Local Government Pension Scheme

0T abed

Main report England and Wales
Overall Academies
5.42  Differences in approaches and assumptions across 543 At the 2019 section 13 review, we engaged with the

funds are to be expected under the valuation
requirements. However, there continue to be benefits of
greater consistency across the scheme and one of the
aims in the Public Services Pensions Act 2013 is that
fund valuations should be “carried out in a way which is
not inconsistent with other valuations”. The SAB are
facilitating a review of the Funding Strategy Statement
guidance. Therefore, as part of this review, we
encourage stakeholders to consider potential benefits of
greater presentational and evidential consistency
among other relevant factors.

Recommendation 1:

We recommend that the Scheme Advisory Board
consider whether greater consistency could and
should be achieved to allow easier comparison
between funds and better understanding of risks.

5.44

5.45

5.46

Page 28 of 56

fund actuaries to understand if there had been a move
to greater consistency for academy conversions over
time and whether a move to greater consistency was
likely to occur. Whilst fund actuaries noted there was
generally consistency between funds advised by the
same advisor the consensus view was there was
unlikely to be any convergence in approach between
advisors unless mandated by regulations.

A recommendation was made in the 2019 section 13
report that the SAB should consider the impact of
inconsistency on the funds, participating employers and
other stakeholders, and specifically whether a
consistent approach needs to be adopted for
conversions to academies.

The SAB subsequently convened a working group
which included MHCLG, fund actuaries, the Department
for Education, academy school representatives and
GAD, which prepared SAB guidance on academy
conversions. This sets out common nomenclature
which should encourage presentational consistency and
a common understanding amongst stakeholders. It also
explained how differing methodologies work and their
impacts.

The underlying differences in conversion methodologies
have not been addressed and therefore the contribution
rates paid by academies continue to be inconsistent.



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

GOT =bed

Emerging Issues

Climate risk

5.47

5.48

5.49

The 2019 section 13 report highlighted climate risk as
an emerging issue and noted a desire to encourage
dialogue to aid consistency of approach across funds on
the presentation of climate risk analysis. GAD
subsequently engaged with the fund actuaries and
MHCLG to agree broad principles on such analysis
ahead of the 2022 valuations. These principles are
included in Appendix B.

82 of the 87 funds carried out climate risk analysis in
line with these broad principles with the results of the
analyses included in the 2022 valuation reports. We are
grateful to the fund actuaries and MHCLG for engaging
on this issue to improve consistency across the scheme.
We recognise the significant progress made by funds
and actuarial advisors in the presentation of climate risk
analysis as part of the actuarial valuation process.

The other five funds provided their reasons for adopting
a different approach as follows:

Page 29 of 56



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13) Local Government Pension Scheme

Main report

England and Wales

90T abed

Table 5.4: Commentary on climate change approach adopted (provided by each fund)

Fund

Climate change approach commentary provided by the fund

City of Westminster Pension
Fund;

London Borough of
Hammersmith and Fulham
Pension Fund; and

Royal Borough of Kensington
and Chelsea Pension Fund

The approach taken by the fund to evaluate the possible effect of climate change risk on the
funding strategy was set in a proportionate manner commensurate with the Fund’s overall
approach to risk management. Specifically, the analysis carried out highlighted the effect of a
positive/delayed/neutral reaction to the climate challenge and whilst certain scenarios were shown
to lead to a worsening of the funding position, the expected impact was deemed to be not material
enough to affect the funding strategy set at the 2022 valuation. The Fund’s approach to evaluating
the effect of climate change on the funding strategy will next be reviewed at the 2025 valuation.

Environment Agency Closed
Fund

The Environment Agency (as the Administering Authority to the Environment Agency Closed Fund)
recognise that climate change, specifically the transition and physical risks this poses, could have
an impact on the ability of pension schemes to pay benéefits in the future. The risk exposure was not
quantified at the 2022 valuation, as the Closed Fund’s funding agreement with Defra means its
exposure to climate risk is minimal. In effect, any future shortfall that may emerge due to climate
change risks would be met via grant-in-aid payments from Defra, and so the impact of climate
change risks on the funding position is neutral.

Page 30 of 56



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)

Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

Fund

Climate change approach commentary provided by the fund

West Midlands Pension Fund is committed to undertaking and providing meaningful climate change

West Midlands Pension Fund

/0T abed

analysis, extending to advocacy and engagement with key stakeholders to drive real change. The
approach adopted by the West Midlands Pension Fund is based upon an integrated framework,
which considers funding, employer covenant and investment risk. At the time that the broad
principles document was agreed between the Fund actuaries and MHCLG our work on climate
change, in respect of the 2022 valuations, was well advanced, supported by a range of analysis
which has provided a foundation for engagement with stakeholders. Whilst our analysis aligned
with the agreed climate change principles, we believe it extended beyond. We are seeking to

achieve a consistent set of principles (including climate scenarios), across our assets, liabilities and

employer covenant, to aid our risk-based decision making and enable meaningful onward
engagement with key stakeholders which informs our assessment of risk. As such it was not
appropriate to include partial and incomplete analysis in one area of reporting when a broader
context is required to assess and manage climate change risk.

West Midlands Pension Fund is supportive of the objective for consistency across the LGPS, as
well as continuing to develop and enhance climate risk modelling to enable useful analysis which
can drive real world change and will review the revised 2025 climate change principles document
and expect to publish consistent analysis for the 2025 valuation.

5.50

Funds which carried out climate change analysis in line
with the principles document considered between three
and five climate change scenarios. We have
summarised the results in Charts B7 and B8 in
Appendix B. This has been provided for information only
as a high-level summary of the analysis reported. It
should not be used to comment on differences in 5.51
impacts across funds. This is because, under the broad
principles agreed, different funds can reasonably adopt
a range of assumptions within scenarios and therefore
Page 31 of 56

differences can arise due to assumptions as well as
modelled impacts. Further, the summary presented is a
snapshot at one point in time and therefore might
misrepresent a more considered comparison of
projected trajectories over time.

MHCLG has consulted on proposals for new
requirements for assessing and reporting on climate
risks in line with the recommendations of the Taskforce
on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) but



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13) Local Government Pension Scheme
Main report England and Wales

has not yet responded to the consultation. Climate risk
analysis is evolving rapidly and we anticipate a maturing
in analysis for the 2025 valuations. The importance of
climate risk analysis, and in particular the appropriate

Recommendation 2:

We recommend that the Scheme Advisory Board

communication of risks relative to scenarios presented, continue to consider emerging issues and, where
was highlighted in the recent (June 2024) Institute and appropriate, whether guidance would be helpful to
Faculty of Actuaries (IFoA) risk alert on climate change support greater consistency.

scenario analysis . We strongly promote the further

development of climate risk analysis and its integration As part of greater consistency on climate risk, we

in decision-making by funds. We recommend that the recommend that work continues to refine the climate

SAB continue to work with stakeholders to refine the
climate risk analysis principles document prior to the
2025 valuations.

change principles document in advance of the 2025
fund valuations.

;? .
= Other risks

=~5.52  There are a number of risks and issues which have the

8 potential to affect the LGPS pension funds in future. In
particular, the recent growth in the number of funds in
surplus has the potential to affect risks and
opportunities. These issues require consideration from
the funds and their advisors as they emerge. We
encourage continued dialogue with a view to
recognising the benefits of consistency across the
scheme in the 2025 valuation and beyond.

5.53 We would encourage consistency of approach to be a
consideration for the SAB when discussing emerging
issues, where appropriate and among other factors.

Page 32 of 56



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

60T abed

6. Solvency

Key Solvency findings

Funding levels have continued to improve on local bases
since 2019, primarily due to asset outperformance. In
aggregate, the funds of the LGPS are 106% funded on their
local funding bases. This reduces current solvency concerns,
but we note future solvency risk remains an important
consideration.

Growth of funds’ assets relative to the size of the underlying
local authorities means that those funds that are in deficit are
more likely to trigger our asset shock measure. Where this is

the only concern raised, we have considered this a white flag.

No other solvency flags have been raised. However, risks
clearly remain particularly in the context of competing
pressures on employer budgets and noting the sensitivity of
funding levels to future experience (especially investment
market conditions).

We encourage funds to continue to review their risks and to
respond to emerging issues, and to ensure they have
appropriate governance structures in place in relation to any
asset transfer arrangements.

Page 33 of 56

Statutory requirement and chapter content

6.1

6.2

Under section 13(4)(c) of the Act, the Government
Actuary must report on whether the rate of employer
contributions to the pension fund is set at an appropriate
level to ensure the solvency of the pension fund.

In this chapter we outline the results of our solvency
analysis and consider more broadly how funds manage
solvency risk.

Definition of Solvency

6.3

In line with the definition in CIPFA’s Funding Strategy
Statement Guidance, which we adopt for the purposes
of section 13, we consider that the rate of employer
contributions has been set at an appropriate level, to
ensure the solvency of the pension fund, if:

o the rate of employer contributions is set to target a
funding level for the whole fund of 100% over an
appropriate time period and using appropriate
actuarial assumptions

and either:

o employers collectively have the financial capacity
to increase employer contributions, should future
circumstances require, in order to continue to
target a funding level of 100%

or



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

o there is an appropriate plan in place should there
be an expectation of a future reduction in the
number of fund employers, or a material reduction
in the capacity of fund employers to increase
contributions as might be needed

Funding position at March 2022

6.4

OTT obed

6.5

Over the period from 31 March 2019 to 31 March 2022,
the aggregate funding position of LGPS funds has
improved markedly, mainly driven by strong investment
returns. At the date of writing, we are aware that many
funds are likely to have seen further subsequent
improvements in their funding position, although this will
depend on individual fund circumstances. These
improvements in funding reduce the immediate
concerns around current solvency risks relative to
previous section 13 reviews. However, the range of
funding positions across the scheme, the sensitivity of
funding levels to future experience and competing
pressures on employers’ budgets mean that solvency
risks still exist.

To provide some context on the current position,
following the 2022 valuations 78 funds (90%) were in
surplus on GAD'’s best estimate basis, with the
aggregate best estimate funding level being 119%. This
compares to the position in 2019, where 62 funds were
in surplus with an aggregate funding level of 109%.
GAD'’s best estimate basis is the set of assumptions
derived by GAD without allowance for prudence, hence
with an intended 50:50 likelihood of actual future
experience being higher or lower than the assumption

Page 34 of 56

6.6

6.7

adopted, in our opinion, across the LGPS. Where the
funding level on such a basis is greater than 100%, we
expect there is a greater than 50% likelihood that
existing assets would be sufficient to cover benefits in
respect of accrued service when they fall due. This
basis is applied consistently across the LGPS and so
does not reflect fund specific circumstances or
experience.

Not all funds are above 100% funded on GAD’s best
estimate basis. Funding levels on this basis range from
83% to 164% (excluding the Environment Agency
Closed fund, as benefits payable and costs of the fund
are met by Grant-in-Aid funding by DEFRA).

The solvency definition above means those funds that
are relatively poorly funded are not considered
insolvent, but they do need to be taking adequate action
to resolve that deficit (which is the subject of long term
cost efficiency) and monitor the affordability of any
additional future contributions that may be required.



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

TTT abed

SAB Funding Level Metric

6.8

Five funds have a “white” flag in relation to their SAB
funding level as they are the poorest funded on the SAB
basis, with the distance in percentage points below the
average SAB funding level shown below:

Fund

SAB Funding
Level Distance
below average

Royal County of Berkshire Pension

(o)

Fund ok
London Borough of Brent Pension 259,
Fund
Bedfordshire Pension Fund 22%
London Borough of Hillingdon Pension

22%
Fund

6.9 This is a purely relative measure and we did not engage

with funds that flag on this measure only. We consider
this a “white” flag. However, the lowest two funds on this
metric, London Borough of Waltham Forest Pension
Fund and the Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund,
are both also raising a flag in relation to long term cost

6.10

efficiency and are considered further in the next chapter
of this report.

We encourage the funds shown above to monitor
closely the risk that additional pension contributions may
be required in the future to eliminate the deficit.

Non-statutory Members Metric

6.11

6.12

Page 35 of 56

Different employers have different covenants. We
consider taxpayer-backed employers to have a stronger
covenant value than other employers and note that the
majority of LGPS employers fall into this category.

The London Borough of Barnet Pension Fund has over
a third of its members employed by non taxpayer-
backed employers, for example private sector
employers and higher education establishments. We are
encouraged to note that Barnet actively considered the
covenant of one of its larger such participating
employers, Middlesex University, as part of its 2022
valuation. We understand that the fund undertook an
extensive engagement exercise with Middlesex
University in 2022 and agreed a funding strategy which
reflects and manages the relevant risks. Given the clear
consideration given to the risk and the fact that there are
no other flags being raised for the fund, we consider this
a “white” flag on this metric.



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

21T abed

Asset Shock Metric

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

This is a stress test. It considers what may happen if
there is a sustained reduction in the value of return-
seeking assets for tax-raising employers (those
employers whose income is covered by core spending
and financing data). For example, a market correction in
which asset values do not immediately recover and
losses are not absorbed by changes in assumptions.

We model the additional contributions that would be
required by tax-raising employers to meet the emerging
deficit. This is different to considering the total
contributions required following the shock — i.e. we are
looking at where there is a risk of large changes to the
contribution rate, rather than a risk of the total
contribution rate exceeding some threshold.

Funds with a high level of return-seeking assets are
more exposed to asset shocks and more likely to trigger
this flag.

Fewer funds flag on the asset shock measure in 2022
than in 2019.

Funds have grown considerably, measured by the value
of either their assets or liabilities, over recent years. The
size of the employers, and particularly that of the
relevant local authorities as measured by their core
spending power and financing data, has not grown at
the same pace as their pension assets. (Core spending
power and financing data is used as a measure of the

6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

Page 36 of 56

financial resource of the underlying tax-raising
employers, as detailed in Appendix C).

We considered this situation carefully in 2019 and
concluded that it would be difficult for funds to take
specific action in response to individual fund flags which
have been primarily driven by the increase in the size of
funds relative to the possible resource available. We
have adopted the same approach for this review and
are noting these concerns as a “white” flag only in
Appendix C. This is a “for information” flag that
highlights a risk, but which may require monitoring
rather than action.

This highlights an ongoing risk across the LGPS due to
the nature of open but maturing funds. If a shock were
to occur, that shock would be more significant now and
in the future, as funds have grown relative to the size of
the local authority. This also needs to be considered in
the context of competing pressures on local authorities’
and other employers’ budgets.

The table of solvency measures by fund in Appendix C
includes the funds with a white flag (5 funds in total).

The potential for future variations in contribution rates is
discussed further in our Asset Liability Modelling (ALM)
section in the long term cost efficiency chapter.



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

cTT obed

Management of Risks

Funding

6.22

6.24

6.25

The general risk comment made in the 2019 section 13
report remains relevant. Local authorities and other
employers have finite resources. In recent years, the
size of pension funds has increased more than their
budgets and there has been increased focus on
competing pressures on budgets. Given the sensitivity
of pension funding levels to changes in market
conditions and other experience, it is possible that a
period of increased pension contributions will be
required in the future despite current strong funding
positions.

If additional pension contributions are required, this may
lead to a further strain on local authority and other
employers’ budgets at a future date.

We expect that administering authorities are aware of
this risk in relation to solvency and factor this into
funding decisions. Administering authorities should
discuss the potential volatility of future contributions with
employers in relation to overall affordability.

The risk of contribution rate increases and how stability
mechanisms might influence contribution rates over time
are discussed further in the Asset Liability Modelling
(ALM) section included within Chapter 7.

Governance and other risks

6.26

6.27

6.28

Page 37 of 56

Whilst the current positive funding position of funds in
the LGPS reduces immediate solvency concerns, there
are new challenges which could impact future solvency
which are discussed further in this section.

In some circumstances, an employer can elect to leave
the fund, at which point any debt (or surplus) in respect
of some fund members may be crystallised. After such
an agreement is reached, there is no further recall on
the exiting employer for additional funds if the future
funding position changes. Recent improvements in
funding positions could affect employers’ preferences. It
is important that funds understand and manage the
implications of any employer exits on the ongoing
solvency of the fund.

Pension funding is long term in nature. We support the
approach adopted by the actuarial advisors in relation to
the 2022 valuation reports, which note the expected
improved funding position between the valuation date
and date of signature of the report but did not look to
review the valuation results given the long term nature
of pension funding. Improvements in funding positions
could lead to requests from some employers for mid-
cycle reviews of employer contributions based on
particular market conditions. Mid-cycle reviews of
employer contributions are only appropriate in limited
circumstances and both statutory and SAB guidance
should be carefully considered prior to carrying out such
a review.



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

v TT abed

6.29

6.30

6.32

GAD does not comment on the investment strategy that
LGPS funds should adopt or the types of investments
which LGPS funds should invest in. Nevertheless, when
choosing an investment strategy, we would expect
funds to consider the ongoing cost of the benefits and
their capacity to increase contributions if required,
alongside the appropriateness of the investment for the
fund.

Concerns were raised in the 2019 section 13 report in
relation to contingent property transfers or other asset
transfer arrangements from local authorities within the

LGPS. 6.33

A contingent property transfer is where councils commit
to transferring property they own, for example, a
portfolio of social housing owned by the council, to the
pension fund. The assets are not immediately
transferred to the pension fund but at the end of the
agreed management period often a large number of
years into the future, the property portfolio is transferred
to the pension fund, possibly on a contingent basis, on
the expectation that the underlying properties will
generate revenues and/or sales proceeds that will
reduce or eliminate any deficit that remains in the
pension fund at that time. In return, the council
committing to the future transfer receives an immediate
reduction in deficit contributions, calculated as a present
value of the expected future revenue from the portfolio
of properties.

While we are not aware of any new arrangements being
put in place over the 3 years to March 2022, competing

Page 38 of 56

pressures on employer budgets could lead to such
options being considered in the future, particularly if
there is a market downturn. The risks, additional
complexity and ongoing monitoring and governance
requirements of such arrangements need to be
balanced against the benefits they may provide. As a
minimum we would expect the pension fund to receive
specialist advice on the suitability of such assets as
pension investments and to demonstrate that the
conflict of interest between the fund and the council has
been appropriately recognised and managed.

Whilst we are not commenting on the actions of any
fund that already holds such an asset, potential
concerns, that we expect would need to be addressed if
any new arrangements were to be considered include:

o Funds need to carefully consider compliance
aspects of such arrangements, including:

> Compliance with local authority capital
requirements, which specify that pension
contributions should be met via revenue
rather than capital accounts. At the point the
transfer is realised, this could be considered
a capital asset transfer arrangement

> Compliance with restrictions on employer
related investments in the Occupational
Pension Schemes (Investment) Regulations
2005 (as amended)

> Management of any conflicts of interest



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

o The assets may not be the form of asset which
best meets a pension fund’s long term objectives

o Due to complexity, such asset transfer
arrangements are likely to be associated with high
set-up and management costs

6.34 These arrangements are utilised in the private sector to
act as a security for the risk of defaults by scheme
sponsors. The difference in covenant strength between
private sector employers and local authorities means
that different considerations apply.

6.35 We recommend that the SAB consider if additional
guidance on local authority asset transfers would be
helpful as part of their Funding Strategy Statement
guidance review (see Recommendation 3).

GTT obed

Page 39 of 56



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

9TT abed

7. Long term cost

efficiency

Key long term cost efficiency findings

In 2022, we are flagging two funds in relation to deficit
recovery periods. This is the same as the number of funds
flagged in 2019.

For a further fund, we are concerned that employer
contribution rates are decreasing (reducing the burden on
current taxpayers) at the same time as the deficit recovery is
being extended further into the future (increasing the burden
on future taxpayers).

We acknowledge there are different approaches to the
utilisation of surpluses and funds should consider relevant
factors and the trade-off between competing priorities. We set
out the approach we intend to use to assess how funds have
utilised surpluses at future valuations.

We propose that the Scheme Advisory Board consider the
approach to surpluses in their review of the Funding Strategy
Statement (FSS) guidance.

We have undertaken an Asset Liability Modelling (ALM)
exercise to illustrate two different surplus sharing options.
The ALM also highlights the potential contribution volatility
and funding risks even though an “average” fund may find
itself in a strong funding position currently.

Page 40 of 56

Statutory requirement and chapter content

7.1

7.2

Under section 13(4)(c) of the Act, the Government
Actuary must report on whether the rate of employer
contributions to the pension fund is set at an appropriate
level to ensure the long term cost efficiency of the
scheme, so far as relating to the pension fund.

This chapter sets out:
. A definition of long term cost efficiency

o The results of our analysis on long term cost
efficiency.

o The outcome of our engagement with funds
o Future considerations in respect of fund surpluses

o Outcomes of our asset liability modelling

Definition of long term cost efficiency

7.3

In line with the definition in CIPFA’s Funding Strategy
Statement Guidance, which we adopt for the purposes
of section 13, we consider that the rate of employer
contributions has been set at an appropriate level to
ensure long term cost efficiency if the rate of employer
contributions is sufficient to make provision for the cost
of current benefit accrual, with an appropriate
adjustment to that rate for any surplus or deficit in the
fund. We note the Funding Strategy Statement
Guidance is currently under review.




Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

/TT abed

Long term cost efficiency outcomes

7.4

7.6

Long term cost efficiency (LTCE) relates to making
sufficient provision to meet the cost of benefit accruals
with an appropriate adjustment to reflect the funding
position of the fund. The LTCE part of the 2019 section
13 review focused on deficits, and not deferring deficit
payments too far into the future so that they affect future
generations of taxpayers disproportionately. This
reflected the aggregate funding position of the scheme
at that time. Whilst this remains a key consideration, as
more funds have moved into surplus at the 2022
valuations, the use of surpluses has been given greater
consideration at this review. Our focus is on
intergenerational fairness, and whether the current
generation of taxpayers is benefiting from any surplus
appropriately relative to future taxpayers.

7.7

7.8

Two funds are flagged in relation to deficit recovery
periods in the 2022 review, the same as the number of
funds flagged in 2019.

For the two funds (Royal County of Berkshire Pension 7.9

Fund and London Borough of Waltham Forest Pension
Fund), we are concerned that flags are still being raised
despite using the same flag thresholds as at the 2019
section 13 review. The average funding level of funds
has increased by 8% since 2019, which has driven a
reduction in the number of flags. Whilst we recognise
funding plans are long term in nature and both these
funds have improved their funding position, where a flag
remains, despite the generally positive movements in

7.10

Page 41 of 56

economic conditions for the scheme, this identifies some
risk.

We have also considered graphically the positioning of
funds on a consistent basis. Chart 7.1 on the next page
plots the funding level relative to the scheme average
(normalised to the SAB basis) against total employer
contributions (expressed as a percentage of
pensionable earnings). The two funds identified above
stand out as having relatively weak funding on the
consistent basis. This combination of flag and relative
positioning led us to engage with those funds.

For a further fund, London Borough of Redbridge
Pension Fund, we are concerned that employer
contribution rates are decreasing (reducing the burden
on current taxpayers) at the same time as the deficit
recovery end point is being extended further into the
future (increasing the burden on future taxpayers). This
led to this fund raising a flag in relation to its deficit
recovery plan.

Some other funds raised initial flags against LTCE
measures, but on closer review most were not
considered to be sufficiently wide outliers or present
sufficient risk to warrant further investigation or
engagement.

We have not flagged any funds on the utilisation of
surplus at this review. We comment on the range of
approaches adopted by funds in surplus and set out our
approach to this issue for future valuations.



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

Deficit Metrics (Required period, required return and return scope)

Chart 7.1 SAB relative funding level vs Employer contribution rate

8TT abed

Employer contribution rate 2023-25 (% pay)

35%

London Borough of

30% Waltham Forest Pension

25%

20%

15%

10%
-40%

Fund

Royal County of
Berkshire Pension
Fund

-30%

-20% -10% 0% 10% 20%

Funding level relative to overall average at 31 Mar 2022 (SAB basis)

Aon
Barnett Waddingham
Hymans Robertson

® Mercer

30% 40% 50%

Page 42 of 56




Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

6TT obed

Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

The Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund is one of
the least well-funded funds on a local basis, with a
funding level of 86%. It is the lowest funded on the
common SAB basis (excluding the Environment Agency
Closed fund).

Chart 7.1 shows that, although the Royal County of
Berkshire Pension Fund is ranked lowest on funding
level, its employer contribution rate, whilst above
average, is lower than around 10 funds, all of which
have much higher funding levels on the common SAB
basis.

Employer contributions are 25.2% of pensionable pay.
This has increased from 24.0% of pay in 2019.
However, this increase is driven by an increase in
primary rates (up 1.5% to 16.9% of pay). Average
secondary rates have decreased slightly as a
percentage of pay.

The Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund raised an
amber flag in relation to deficit recovery period (12 years
on GAD’s best estimate basis). In other words, current
contribution rates are not estimated to be sufficient to
reach full funding on a best estimate basis within 10
years.

More generally it is positive to note the reduction in the
number of amber flags on long term cost efficiency for
Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund (which have

reduced from four in 2019 to one in 2022).

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

Page 43 of 56

We were also pleased to observe that the Royal County
of Berkshire Pension Fund has retained its deficit
recovery end point, although this remains relatively long
at 2040.

Following engagement with the Royal County of
Berkshire Pension Fund, we were advised that
employers participating in the fund have been
continuing to increase their total contributions to reduce
the deficit over the longer term. We were reassured by
this long-term commitment.

The officers we engaged with appreciated that
additional funding will be required over a long timeframe
and reaffirmed their commitment to do so.

It was noted that committees have been put in place to
assist with the management of the fund and it was noted
that investment returns have been relatively strong in
recent years.

Overall we were pleased to note the improvements
made over the past three years, however given its
relative funding position and relative to the contribution
rates being paid into other funds, we consider that an
amber flag for long term cost efficiency is appropriate.



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

02T abed

London Borough of Waltham Forest Pension Fund

7.21

7.22

7.23

7.24

The London Borough of Waltham Forest Pension Fund
has the second lowest funding level on a local basis at
81%. The funding level increased by 1% since the 2019
valuation, much less than most other funds which on
average saw an 8% increase. It is the second lowest
funded on the common SAB basis (excluding the
Environment Agency Closed fund).

Chart 7.1 shows that, although the London Borough of
Waltham Forest Pension Fund is ranked second lowest
on funding level, around 7 funds, all of which have
higher funding levels on the common SAB basis, are
receiving greater contributions.

Employer contributions are 26.6% of pensionable pay.
This has increased from 25.9% of pay in 2019.
However, this increase is driven by an increase in
primary rates (up 1.6% to 17.2% of pay). Average
secondary rates have decreased as a percentage of

pay.

The secondary contribution rate for one major employer
in the fund incorporates a deduction to reflect the
assumed value placed on the residual property
investments currently held as a contingent asset
transfer that will be transferred to the Fund in 36 years’
time, if it is in deficit at that time. The value of the
contingent asset is not allowed for in the asset values or
used in our metric calculations.

7.25

7.26

7.27

7.28

7.29

Page 44 of 56

The London Borough of Waltham Forest Pension Fund
also raised an amber flag in relation to deficit recovery
period (just over 10 years on GAD’s best estimate
basis). In other words, current contribution rates are not
estimated to be sufficient to reach full funding on a best
estimate basis within 10 years. However, we
acknowledge that London Borough of Waltham Forest
Pension Fund is just above the required threshold, and
no allowance was made for the contingent asset in this
assessment.

We were pleased to observe that the London Borough
of Waltham Forest Pension Fund has retained its deficit
recovery end point, although this remains relatively long
at 2039.

Following engagement with the London Borough of
Waltham Forest Pension Fund we were advised that
employers have been adhering to their plan to remove
the deficit by 2039. We were reassured by this long-term
commitment to improving the funding position.

London Borough of Waltham Forest Pension Fund also
referred to the modest increase in funding being the
result of below expected returns. The fund is continuing
to monitor asset performance and has already taken
action to improve performance since 31 March 2022.

The London Borough of Waltham Forest Pension Fund
also provided additional information on the contingent
asset arrangement referred to in their 2022 valuation
report. The allowance for this when setting contributions
is dependent on the fund receiving satisfactory legal



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

T2T obed

7.30

confirmation on the arrangement, with GAD’s
understanding being that this is now the case. GAD
highlighted the points raised in the 2019 section 13
report, which London Borough of Waltham Forest
Pension Fund were aware of. Through our engagement,
we have been made aware by the London Borough of
Waltham Forest Pension Fund that the governance
structure in place, in relation to the contingent asset
referred to above, was strengthened as part of the 2022
valuation and this includes a regular flow of information
between the relevant parties and annual ratification of
the arrangement’s viability provided to the Pension
Committee.

We acknowledge that the London Borough of Waltham
Forest Pension Fund has increased contributions but
given its relative funding position and relative to the
contribution rates being paid into other funds, we
consider that an amber flag for long term cost efficiency
is appropriate.

Deficit Reconciliation

7.31

w2

=SS

7.34

Page 45 of 56

Where a fund is in deficit administering authorities
should avoid continually extending the deficit recovery
period end point at subsequent actuarial valuations as
this will not meet the LTCE requirements. Over time and
given stable, or better than expected market conditions,
administering authorities should aim to:

° Maintain the levels of contributions and/or

o Reduce deficit recovery periods by maintaining the
end point of the recovery period

We believe it is appropriate for funds to consider their
plans for the duration of the deficit recovery period, so
that future contributions are recognised and these form
part of employers’ budgeting process.

We would not normally expect to see employer
contribution rates decreasing (reducing the burden on
current taxpayers) at the same time as the deficit
recovery end point is being extended further into the
future (increasing the burden on future taxpayers). This
expectation balances intergenerational fairness between
current and future generations of taxpayers, which is
required for LTCE.

We appreciate there may be circumstances where new
deficit emerges between valuations, as a result of the
fund’s experience, where it may then be appropriate to
extend the recovery period. For example, if a fund within
the last three years of its deficit recovery period



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

7.35

7.36

7.37

2¢T abed

7.38

7-39

experienced a material reduction in its funding level, it
would not be appropriate in the context of
intergenerational fairness to repay that new deficit within
three years also.

We consider that reconciliation of the deficit recovery
plan is an essential component for all funds to
demonstrate they meet LTCE requirements.

We note that most funds have maintained their deficit
recovery end points in accordance with
recommendation 2 from our 2019 section 13 report.

The 2019 section 13 review recommended the inclusion
of additional information on total contributions, discount
rates and reconciliation of the deficit recovery plans in
the dashboard. We are grateful that funds have
disclosed this additional information, which has aided
our analysis on deficit reconciliation.

Hymans Robertson use stochastic techniques to set
contribution rates, analysing the probability of success
(“meeting the funding target by the funding time
horizon”) over a projection period (for example, twenty

years). This makes reconciliation as outlined in 7.31 7.40
difficult, as additional information is required to illustrate
a continuation of the plan. We are grateful to Hymans
Robertson for providing information to facilitate
reconciliation.
7.41

In relation to the funds advised by Hymans Robertson
whose total employer contributions have reduced and

Page 46 of 56

their likelihood of success, at the previous valuation end
point, has also decreased we note the following:

o In respect of two funds London Borough of Brent
Pension Fund and London Borough of Croydon
Pension Fund we did not think it was appropriate
to retain an amber flag. Both funds had
contributed above the minimum required in 2019
and had not reduced the minimum likelihood of
success in 2022. Further we note a reasonable
degree of prudence in the minimum likelihood of
success probability. We therefore considered this
to be a white flag.

o London Borough of Redbridge Pension Fund,
where the funding level is 99%: total employer
contributions have reduced by 2.7% of pay and
the likelihood of success at the 2022 valuation on
the 2019 time horizon has reduced. We recognise
that contribution rates are set considering an
analysis of future funding risk over a time horizon
of 17 years, however we consider it appropriate to
retain the amber flag.

We engaged with Durham Pension Fund that flagged
initially on this measure where the funding level is 97 %:
there was a reduction in total employer contributions of
1.8% of pay and the end point increased by one year.

In the engagement with Durham Pension Fund, it was
noted that the fund is close to being fully funded and the
end point increased by only one year. This was part of a
package of changes which included an increase in



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

c¢T obed

7.42

7.43

7.44

prudence within their funding basis; and an increase in
the surplus buffer for those employers in surplus.

7.45
Aon provided evidence that total contributions payable

following the valuation are greater than those which
would have been required had the 2019 valuation basis
been retained with a three year reduction in the deficit
recovery end point. In effect, the one year increase in
end point reflected the new deficit arising due to the
increase in prudence. The fund demonstrated they had
considered relevant options and issues when deciding
on funding strategy and agreed with the importance of
being able to reconcile deficit recovery plans between
valuations.

7.46

In light of this evidence, we agreed that it would not be
appropriate to maintain the amber flag under the deficit
recovery plan metric for Durham Pension Fund, and
agreed to adopt a white flag. We draw attention to the
definition of white flags in Appendix D: an advisory flag
that highlights a general issue but one which does not
require an action in isolation. It may have been an
amber flag if we had broader concerns.

We recommend that the SAB consider if additional
guidance on deficits would be helpful, and in particular
how funds ensure that the deficit recovery plan can be
demonstrated to be a continuation of the previous plan
(see Recommendation 3).

7.47

Page 47 of 56

Surplus considerations

At the 2022 valuations, 61 funds (over 70% of funds by
number) were in surplus on a local basis, an increase
from 24 at the 2019 valuations.

There is a range of reasonable uses of fund surpluses,
with strategies varying by fund to manage their specific
risks and circumstances. Examples of surplus uses
include (where the list below is not exhaustive):

° Reductions in contributions, which may be
managed via a surplus buffer (i.e. only surplus
above an agreed funding level is utilised) or
stability mechanism (with restrictions on the extent
to which contribution rates can change over an
agreed time period)

o Review of investment strategy

o Reviewing the level of prudence within funding
strategies, which changes the chance that future
experience is better/worse than assumed

GAD does not comment on the investment strategy that
LGPS funds should adopt, and it is proper that funds
make decisions appropriate to their specific risks and
circumstances. The statutory requirements for this
review do require GAD to consider whether
contributions have been set to ensure long term cost
efficiency. Therefore, our focus is on contribution rate
outcomes and intergenerational fairness, i.e. whether



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

y2T abed

7.48

7.49

7.51

the current generation of taxpayers is benefiting from
any surplus appropriately relative to future taxpayers.

Overall, there needs to be a balance between funds:
o Utilising surplus too quickly; and
o Retaining large surpluses

On this basis, we have reviewed the different
approaches adopted by funds in surplus at the 2022
valuations. We are grateful to the actuarial advisors for
providing general insights into the range of
considerations taken into account by administering
authorities. We also engaged with the SAB surplus
working group on surpluses and have had regard to the
SAB statement on surpluses issued in December 2023.

We are aware of recent commentary around competing
pressures on local authority (and other employers’)
budgets, and whether current fund surpluses could help
alleviate some of those pressures. Our approach to long
term cost efficiency considers such points, in terms of
whether the current generation of taxpayers is benefiting
from surplus appropriately relative to future taxpayers.
We consider it important that funds and employers take
account of all relevant factors when making decisions
on funding, considering risks and implications over an
appropriate time horizon.

Outcomes from the 2022 valuations depend on the
priorities given by funds to different uses of surpluses.

7.52

In our view, the uses outlined in 7.46 are consistent with
current CIPFA and SAB guidance and SAB statements
on scheme contributions. However, inconsistencies in
outcomes across funds can arise where funds place
different weights on the options for use of surplus. We
support the SAB in facilitating a review of the guidance
on Funding Strategy Statements with relevant
stakeholders. We recommend that the treatment of
surpluses and deficits, together with the governance on
asset transfers, should be included as part of this
review.

Recommendation 3:

We recommend that the Scheme Advisory Board
consider the following:

e Where funds are in surplus, whether additional

guidance can be provided to support funds in
balancing different considerations.

Where deficits exist, how can all funds ensure
that the deficit recovery plan can be
demonstrated to be a continuation of the
previous plan.

Whether additional guidance is required in
relation to the treatment of asset transfers from
local authorities.

Page 48 of 56




Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

7.53

Funds

7.54

GeT abed

7.55

7.56

GAD has not flagged any funds on the utilisation of
surplus at this review. This is in part because, from the
discussions we have had at a high level, funds appear
to have made decisions on surplus at the 2022
valuations having considered relevant factors
signposted in CIPFA and SAB guidance and SAB
statements. Therefore, we instead set out our approach
to this issue for future valuations.

7D

utilising surpluses too quickly 7.58
For future reviews, GAD will introduce a surplus

retention metric to consider how quickly a surplus is

being utilised on GAD’s best estimate basis, if the total

employer contribution rate being paid is less than GAD’s

best estimate contribution rate. The aim is to highlight

any funds where contribution reductions in respect of

surplus could lead to too great a funding risk in the

short- to medium-term, measured on GAD’s best

estimate basis.

The rationale for this metric is to ensure
intergenerational fairness. If surpluses are being
realised too quickly, current taxpayers might be
benefiting inappropriately relative to the risk being

passed to future taxpayers. 7.59

If we had introduced such a metric in the 2022 section
13 review, all funds would have a green flag.

Page 49 of 56

Funds retaining “large” surpluses

The counter risk to funds utilising surpluses too quickly
is funds retaining too great a surplus and not
recognising the strong funding position in the fund’s
contribution rates. In such a scenario the fund may be
seen as being unfair to current taxpayers, with future
taxpayers expecting to benefit disproportionately.

For future reviews, GAD will adopt a three-step
approach:

1. ldentify the highest funded funds, considering both
the local bases and on a standard basis

2. ldentify those funds which are relatively well funded,
on the local and standard basis, and are also paying
relatively high contributions

3. For those funds identified in steps one to two, we
would undertake qualitative analysis, for example
considering how contribution rates have evolved
since the previous valuation and any stated rationale
behind the approach adopted

Steps one to three aim to identify funds which are
exceptionally well funded, or those which are relatively
well funded and paying relatively high contributions. We
propose considering results on two bases, initially using
the SAB funding level to provide a consistent basis.
However, as this is not a funding basis we will also
consider the position on the local funding basis. The
funds identified in steps one to three will not raise an



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

immediate flag as we also wish to consider any other
relevant circumstances and the decision-making
process.

7.60 We would then engage with any funds identified from
this process to discuss any concerns before deciding
which funds to flag.

7.61 In order to aid comparison on the approaches to
surpluses and to facilitate this process, we will discuss
with the fund actuaries if further information could be
provided in their dashboard as discussed in Chapter 5.

7.62  Toillustrate the potential impacts of surpluses and the
trade-offs between the considerations referred to above,
we have undertaken an ALM analysis to illustrate the
potential implications of different approaches and
relationship to solvency risks.

o¢T abed

Page 50 of 56



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

/2T abed

Asset Liability Modelling (ALM)

Introduction

7.63

7.64

7.65

7.66

An Asset Liability Model (ALM) allows us to
simultaneously project the assets and liabilities of the
scheme under a range of simulations to investigate
possible outcomes for key variables and metrics.
Modelling the scheme in this way allows us to
understand not only central, expected outcomes but
also the wider range of possible outcomes and
uncertainties. It also demonstrates the importance of
considering the assets and liabilities together to
understand how particular risks and relationships might
manifest in simultaneous movements on both sides of
the balance sheet.

The ALM exercise was undertaken to illustrate:

o Uncertainty of future employer contributions and
funding position

o Impact of different surplus strategies

The contribution and funding analyses in the ALM
section are for illustrative purposes and are based on a
set of assumptions and methodology set by GAD. This
type of analysis is particularly dependent on the
assumptions and methodology adopted. Other models
could produce different outcomes.

The ALM models the whole scheme rather than
individual funds. Whilst the positions of funds will vary,

with differing contributions and funding levels, the risks
considered in the ALM are expected to be relevant for
individual funds.

7.67 The methodology used for the ALM is set out in
Appendix E.

Uncertainty of future employer contributions and
funding position

7.68 Even though the overall scheme funding position has
improved since 2019, with 61 funds in surplus on their
local funding bases at March 2022, significant financial
risks remain particularly over the longer term.

7.69 Charts 7.2 and 7.3 illustrate the variability of total
employer contributions (primary and secondary rates
combined) and funding levels projected at future
valuations from a large number of simulations of future
asset returns and economic conditions. The projections
assume that any funding deficits are paid off over a 20-
year period with no adjustment to contributions for any
surplus.

7.70 In both charts:

o the thick black line represents the median
simulation at each point in time (in other words,
the scenario which falls exactly in the middle of
the range of simulated values, with half of the
simulations having higher outcomes than the
median and half having lower)

Page 51 of 56



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13) Local Government Pension Scheme

8¢T abed

Main report England and Wales
o each shade of purple represents the range of Chart 7.2 — lllustrations of the variability in total
outcomes for a decile (10%) of scenarios, with the employer contributions relative to the median scenario
subsequent lighter shade representing the next (% of pay)

decile - we have not shown the most extreme
deciles (0-10% and 90-100%) .

o the limits of the shaded area illustrate the range of
outcomes whereby 80% of the simulations lie
within the shaded area and the most extreme 20%
are outside (with 10% of outcomes being above
the top of the shaded area, and 10% of outcomes
being below the bottom of the shaded area)

10%

5%

0%

to average scenario

-5%

-10%
2025 2028 2031

Year

Total contribution rate relative

7.71  Chart 7.2 shows the uncertainty around future employer
contributions. For example, Chart 7.2 shows that,
relative to an expected (median) projected future
employer contribution rate following the 2028 valuation,
there is a 20% chance that the future employer
contribution rate could be more than 5% of pay higher
than this central expectation due to uncertainty in
economic conditions. While the precise values shown in
Chart 7.2 reflect the modelling assumptions used and a
simplified approach to setting employer contribution
rates, the feature being illustrated is the uncertainty in
how future employer contribution rates might develop
relative to current expectations.

Page 52 of 56



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

7.72

Chart 7.3 illustrates the modelled range of future funding
levels under the same set of scenarios as in Chart 7.2.
Chart 7.3 shows that, even with an assumed increase in
aggregate funding level from around 106% at March
2022 to 125% at March 2023, there remains a nearly
one in ten chance of a funding deficit two years later at
the March 2025 valuation. A material chance of
valuation deficits remains in the longer-term despite the
model assuming additional contributions are paid to
meet deficits and any surplus is retained.

7.74

Chart 7.3 — lllustrations of funding level

7.73

7.75

2031

2025 2028

Year
7.76

Chart 7.3 also shows a high chance of very favourable
outcomes. This reflects an expectation that, on average,
future investment returns will exceed the prudent rates
assumed in local funding bases; the modelling
assumption that all surpluses are retained in the

Page 53 of 56

scheme; and a simplistic allowance for recent changes
in economic conditions that might not be borne out in
practice.

The model has limitations with high funding level
outcomes. Chart 7.3 is intended to illustrate the
significant downside risk that remains despite a
favourable central scenario, rather than to provide
detailed forecasts of such a central scenario or potential
favourable outcomes. In particular, it does not allow for
any actions taken to utilise surplus at each valuation.
For this reason, the chart is curtailed at a funding level
of 150%. Nevertheless, the very wide range of possible
future outcomes is clear from the chart.

The output of the ALM should not be regarded as a
prediction of future employer contribution rates or
funding level but rather an illustration of the range of
possible funding outcomes. Changes to employer
contribution rates in the short term do not affect the long
term cost of the scheme (which depends on the level of
scheme benefits and scheme experience, including
asset returns) but do affect the balance of costs
between different generations of taxpayers.

Impact of different surplus strategies

The previous section in this Chapter outlined different
approaches to surplus. We have considered the impacts
on future employer contribution rates of two options
adopted by funds, surplus buffers and stability
mechanisms:



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

0¢T abed

Main report
o “Surplus buffer” — For illustration, we have
assumed:
e Any valuation deficit is recovered over 20 7.78

7.77

years through additional contributions

e Any valuation surplus up to 20% of the liability
value (so where the funding level is between
100% and 120%) is retained in the scheme 7.79

e Any valuation surplus in excess of 20% of the
liability value (so a funding level above 120%) 7.80
is spread over 20 years through reduced
employer contributions

o “Stability mechanism” (or smoothing) — For
illustration, we have assumed the same approach
to setting contributions as the “Surplus buffer”
scenario, but employer contribution rate changes
are limited to 2% of pay each year (relative to the
previous year)

Some funding strategies set by LGPS funds seek to
maintain stability of contributions at least for local
authority employers. Stability assists year-to-year
budgetary management and helps to avoid frequent
upward and downward changes in employer
contributions as a result of short-term volatility.
However, it can be difficult to know whether recent
experience at a valuation is a result of short-term
volatility or the start of a long-term trend. Any delay in
changes in employer contributions to reflect such

Page 54 of 56

experience could lead to more extreme funding levels in
the medium-long term.

While this discussion focuses on approaches to surplus,
a stability mechanism also restricts contribution
increases in response to a deficit which may delay a
return to being fully funded.

For illustration, the analysis in this part assumes a
starting funding level of 100% at March 2023.

Charts 7.4 and 7.5 illustrate the potential impacts of the
two surplus scenarios on the changes in employer
contribution rates at successive actuarial valuations.
Each chart shows the distribution of increases (positive
numbers) or decreases (negative numbers) in employer
contribution rates at an actuarial valuation relative to the
rates from the previous valuation. Chart 7.4 shows the
“Surplus Buffer” scenario and Chart 7.5 shows the
“Stability Mechanism” scenario.



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13) Local Government Pension Scheme

Main report England and Wales
Chart 7.4 — lllustrations of distribution of change in 7.81  These charts reflect the underlying scenario, with an
employer contributions (% of pay) between actuarial increase in median funding level over time but

significant volatility around this median position. The
modelling adopted is a simplified approach to setting
100% contribution rates, as it does not reflect all factors taken
into account by funds in practice. In this case:

valuations for “Surplus Buffer” scenario

c 80%
o
E 60% o The charts illustrate the impact of the stability
= 40% mechanism limiting contribution rate changes.
a 20% Chart 7.4 shows that, without a stability
mechanism, there is a chance of relatively large
0% contribution rate changes at valuations (for
2028 v 2031 example, a combined chance of nearly 40% that
ear contribution rates either increase or decrease by
Less than-6%  -6%to-4% = -4% to -2% m-2% to 0% more than 6% of pay at the 2028 valuation relative
g-? 0% 10 2% 2% 10 4% 4% 10 6% More than 6% to those from the previous valuation). The stability
Q mechanism illustrated in Chart 7.5 limits such
® Chart 7.5 - lllustrations of distribution of change in contribution rate changes to no more than 6% of
[EEY . . . . . : - . o
wemployer contributions (% of pay) between actuarial pay (in either direction), equivalent to 2% a year

Fvaluations for “Stability Mechanism” scenario over the 3 years between valuations.

100%
60%

o In the modelled scenario, the smallest contribution
changes (increases or decreases of less than 2%

IS of pay at a valuation) are more likely in the
g “Surplus Buffer” scenario in the 2028 and 2031
= 40% valuations. This is due to that scenario adjusting
8 500 more guickly to any change |n economic_
conditions whereas the stability mechanism
0% spreads changes over a longer period of time.
2028 2031
Year 7.82  As noted above, the impacts of a stability mechanism
Lessthan-6%  7-6% 10 -4% w-4% 10 -2% =-2% 10 0% depend on whether recent experience at a valuation is a
0% to 2% 2% to 4% 4% 10 6% More than 6% result of short-term volatility or the start of a long-term

Page 55 of 56



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Main report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

2sT abed

trend, which can only be known over time. The central
economic scenario adopted for these illustrations
assumes the latter. However, if the expectation is that
this is short-term volatility, we would expect the “stability
mechanism” approach to maintain a more stable
contribution rate between valuations when compared to
the “surplus buffer”.

7.87

Asset Liability Modelling Limitations

7.83

7.84

7.85

7.86

None of the lines shown in the above charts represent a
single simulated scenario — instead they are intended to
represent the distribution of possible outcomes in the
future and how the range of simulated scenarios
changes over the projection period.

The scenarios considered are only two illustrative
surplus approaches. Funds may reasonably adopt other
parameters and approaches. Further, for modelling
purposes we have adopted a simplified approach to
calculating funding levels and setting contribution rates
which does not reflect all factors taken into account by
funds in practice.

The illustrations are based on one perspective of the
future economic environment (using an economic
scenario generator provided by Moody’s Analytics
based on the March 2023 outlook) and scheme
experience. Alternative assumptions and models are
reasonable and would lead to different results.

In particular, the projections reflect one view of the
economic outlook at March 2023. This differs to the

Page 56 of 56

outlook three years ago, which explains in part why
these illustrations are different from those shown in the
2019 section 13 review report.

Rather than placing too great a reliance on the precise
values shown in this section, it is helpful to consider a
range of measures of risk and the impacts of actions in
response to future changes. For example, the solvency
section illustrates a deterministic scenario, whereby
there is an asset shock, with no immediate rebound,
with the risk of higher employer contributions. The
modelling in this section is not intended to illustrate
likely future contribution rates since the modelling
assumptions are too simplified for that purpose. Rather,
the modelling is intended to illustrate the wide range of
uncertainty in future outcomes and the importance of
understanding this uncertainty.



Government

Actuary’s
Department

Local Government Pension
Scheme England and Wales

Review of LGPS fund valuations as at 31
March 2022 under Section 13

Appendices

Fiona Dunsire FIA and Aidan Smith FIA
14 August 2024




Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Contents

Appendix A: COMPLIANCE.........coiiiiieeciiiirreecrr e s e r s s e e e e nnmnn s 3
Appendix B: CONSISTENCY ....cc..ciiiiiieeciiiirreecrr e s e rr s e s s s e s e e e nmmn s 9
ApPPENdiX C: SOIVENCY ....coeeeeeiiiiiirieier e rrrness s s s rnmsss s s s rrnns s s s e s nmas s s e e nnmssssssrnnnnnes 24
Appendix D: Long term cost effiCiencCy ... 39
oY o o 1= g Lo L1 = 1 1 52
Appendix F: Data Provided ... srses s s r s s 55
AppendixX G: ASSUMPLIONS ......ccuiiiiieiiiiiiirrss s s s s s e s s e nnnans 60
Appendix H: Section 13 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013..................... 62
Appendix |: Extracts from other relevant regulations...........ccccccoiireiiinreciinennnn. 63

The Government Actuary’s Department iq:pagé t¢ B4 accredited under the Institute and Faculty of
Actuaries’ Quality Assurance Scheme. Our websi?e describes the standards we apply.




Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Appendix A: Compliance

A1 In this appendix we set out the checks we conducted to determine whether the actuarial valuations
of the 87 Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) funds have been completed in accordance
with the scheme regulations.

Statement of Compliance

A.2 The Government Actuary’s Department (GAD) selected one fund as a representative example from
each of the firms of actuarial advisors. The following statements of compliance were contained
within the chosen reports by each firm:

Table A1: Statement of Compliance

Fund Statement of compliance

Powys County Council This report was commissioned by and is produced solely for the use of the
Pension Fund Administering Authority. It is produced in compliance with: Regulation 62
(Aon) of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013.

The purpose of the valuation is to review the financial position of the Fund
and to set appropriate contribution rates for each employer in the Fund for
the period from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2026 as required under
Regulation 62 of the Regulations.

Buckinghamshire Pension
Fund
(Barnett Waddingham)

We have been commissioned by Croydon Council (the Administering
Authority) to carry out a valuation of the London Borough of Croydon
Pension Fund (the Fund) as at 31 March 2022. This fulfils Regulation 62
of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013.

London Borough of
Croydon Pension Fund
(Hymans Robertson)

This report is addressed to the Administering Authority of the Clwyd
Pension Fund (“the Administering Authority”) and is provided to meet the
requirements of Regulation 62 of the Local Government Pension Scheme
Regulations 2013 (as amended) (“the Regulations”).

Compliance with valuation regulations

Actuarial Valuation Reports Regulation 62 (1 - 2)

A.3  Regulation 62 (1) requires the administering authority to obtain an actuarial valuation report on the
assets and liabilities of each of its pension funds, including a rates and adjustments certificate, as at
31st March 2016 and on 31st March in every subsequent valuation year (i.e. 31st March 2022).
Regulation 62 (2) requires that the above documents be obtained by the first anniversary of the date
at which the valuation is made, namely, 31 March 2023 in the case of the 2022 valuation.

Page 135



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Publication

A.4  Each chosen fund was published in accordance with the regulations. The following table sets out
dates of publication of the actuarial report.

Table A2: Publication date

Fund Date of publication
Powys County Council Pension Fund 30 March 2023
(Aon)

Buckinghamshire Pension Fund 31 March 2023

(Barnett Waddingham)

London Borough of Croydon Pension
Fund 31 March 2023

Hymans Robertson

30 March 2023

Demographic Assumptions

A.5 Regulation 62 (3) states that the actuarial valuation report must contain a statement of the
demographic assumptions that have been used in making the valuation and must show how these
assumptions reflect the experience that has occurred during the period since the last valuation. Each
valuation report contains a section on demographic assumptions including all the assumptions that
we would expect in an actuarial valuation report.

Page }36



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Table A3: Demographic Assumptions

London
Powys County Buckinghamshire Borough of
Demoarabhic Council Pension Fund Croydon
grap Pension Fund (Barnett Pension Fund
(Aon) Waddingham) (Hymans
Robertson)
Pre-retirement mortality v v v v
Post-retirement mortality v v v v
Dependant mortality v v v v
lll health retirement v v v v
Normal health retirements v v v v
Withdrawals v v v v
Promotional salary scale v v v N/A
Family details (partners
and dependants) v v v v
50:50 option take-up v v v v
Commutation v v v v

Mercer did not make a separate promotional salary scale assumption and therefore effectively this was
combined in their general pay increase assumption.

Local Experience

A.6  The regulation requires that the reports “must show how the assumptions relate to the events which
have actually occurred in relation to members of the Scheme since the last valuation” in respect of
the demographic assumptions. For the four chosen funds:

> All have shown differences between expectations and experience for the inter-valuation period

Additional information on demographic experience and assumption setting may be contained in
supporting (non-public) reports/advice.

Contribution Rates
A.7  Regulation 62 sets out that employer contributions are separated into two components:
> Primary rates which meet the cost of ongoing accrual for current active members; and

> Secondary rates, which are mainly established to meet deficit or eliminate surplus over a given
period (the deficit/surplus recovery period).

A.8 Regulation 62 (6) states that when setting the contribution rates the actuary must have regard to:
> the existing and prospective liabilities arising from circumstances common to all those bodies

> the desirability of maintaining as nearly constant a primary rate as possible

Page 137



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

> the current version of the administering authority’s funding strategy mentioned in regulation 58
(funding strategy statements), and

> the requirement to secure the solvency of the pension fund and the long-term cost efficiency of
the Scheme, so far as relating to the pension fund.

A.9 Regulation 62 (4) states that the rates and adjustments certificate must specify both the primary rate
of the employer’s contribution and the secondary rate of the employer’s contribution, for each year of
the period of three years beginning with 1st April in the year following that in which the valuation
date falls.

A.10 Each valuation report must set out primary and secondary employer contribution rates.

Primary Rates

A.11 Regulation 62 (5) defines the primary rate of an employer’s contribution as “the amount in respect of
the cost of future accruals which, in the actuary’s opinion, should be paid to a fund by all bodies
whose employees contribute to it so as to secure its solvency”, and specifies that this must be
expressed as a percentage of the pay of their employees who are active members.

A.12 The following table shows the primary rate of employer contribution for the administering authorities’
whole fund:

Table A4: Primary contribution rate

Primary
Fund contribution rate
% of pay
Powys County Council Pension
Fund 21.4%
(Aon)
Buckinghamshire Pension Fund 19.7%

(Barnett Waddingham)

London Borough of Croydon
Pension Fund 20.4%

Hymans Robertson

18.8%

A.13 Each primary rate of employer contribution has been calculated to cover the cost of future benefits
accrued by their employees. Each valuation also provides a breakdown of the primary rate for each
employer.

Page E:;L38



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Secondary Rates

A.14 Regulation 62 (7) states that the secondary contribution rate may be expressed as either a
percentage or a monetary amount.

A.15 Each valuation report provides a secondary rate for each employer (expressed as a cash amount
and/or percentage of pay for each employer). The secondary rates of employer contributions for
each valuation have been defined to be adjustments to the primary rate as required. In all cases, the
secondary rates have been provided for the next three years for each employer.

Table A5: Whole fund Secondary Contribution Rates

Fund 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
Powys County Council Pension

Fund £2,194,000 £1,919,000 £1,619,000
(Aon)

Buckinghamshire Pension Fund £8.870,000 £8.360,000 £7.920,000

(Barnett Waddingham)

London Borough of Croydon
Pension Fund £5,385,000 £5,526,000 £5,464,000
(Hymans Robertson)

-£4,500,000 -£12,700,000 -£12,900,000

Rates and Adjustments Certificate (Regulation 62 (8))

A.16 Regulation 62 (8) states that the rates and adjustments certificate must contain a statement of the
assumptions on which the certificate is given as respects:

(a) the number of members who will become entitled to payment of pensions under the provisions of
the Scheme; and

(b) the amount of the liabilities arising in respect of such members
during the period covered by the certificate.

A.17 In the following table we set out where the assumptions for each valuation can be found.

Page 139



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Table A6: Location of assumptions

F Statement in rates and Location of assumptions in
und - g .
adjustments certificate valuation report

Powys County Council
Pension Fund v Further information - Assumptions
(Aon)
Buckinghamshire Pension
Fund v Appendix 2
(Barnett Waddingham)
London Borough of Croydon
Pension Fund v Appendix 2
Hymans Robertson

v Appendix A

Regulation 62 (9)

A.18 Regulation 62 (9) states that the administering authority must provide the actuary preparing a
valuation or a rates and adjustments certificate with the consolidated revenue account of the fund
and such other information as the actuary requests.

A.19 For each of the four valuation reports examined we have seen evidence of having received relevant
data from the administering authority.

Page %40



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Appendix B: Consistency

B.1 In this appendix we set out analysis we undertook in relation to whether the actuarial valuations were
carried out in a way which is not inconsistent with other valuations completed under the scheme
regulations. This appendix contains comments and a number of charts referring to the following
aspects:
> Key information
> Funding levels
> Discount rates

> Demographic assumptions

> Climate risk

Key Information

B.2  All funds provided a standardised dashboard of results, which was originally recommended in the
2016 section 13 review and subsequently refined following the 2019 review. The agreed format of
the dashboard for the 2022 valuations is as follows:

Table B1: Dashboard

Item requested Format

Past service funding position — local funding basis

Funding level (assets/liabilities) %
Funding level (change since last valuation) %
Asset value used at the valuation £m
Value of liabilities (including McCloud liability) £m
Surplus (deficit) £m
Discount rate — past service % pa
Discount rate — future service used for contribution rate setting % pa
Assumed pension increases (CPI) % pa

Method of derivation of discount rate, plus any changes since the previous

: Freeform text
valuation

Page 141



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Assumed life expectancies at age 65

Life expectancy for current pensioners — men currently age 65 years
Life expectancy for current pensioners — women currently age 65 years
Life expectancy for future pensioners — men currently age 45 years
Life expectancy for future pensioners — women currently age 45 years
Past service funding position — SAB basis (for comparison purposes
only)
Market value of assets £m
Value of liabilities £m
Funding level on SAB basis (assets/liabilities) %
Funding level on SAB basis (change since last valuation) %
I 2022 2019
Contribution rates payable Valuation Valuation
Primary contribution rate % of pay % of pay
Secondary contribution - 15t year of rates and adjustment certificate £m £m
Secondary contribution - 2" year of rates and adjustment certificate £m £m
Secondary contribution - 3™ year of rates and adjustment certificate £m £m
Total expected contributions - 15t year of rates and adjustment certificate c
. m £m
(£ figure based on assumed payroll)
Total expected contributions — 2" year of rates and adjustment certificate c
) m £m
(£ figure based on assumed payroll)
Total expected contributions — 3™ year of rates and adjustment certificate
. £m £m
(£ figure based on assumed payroll)
Assumed payroll - 1t year of rates and adjustment certificate £m £m
Assumed payroll — 2" year of rates and adjustment certificate £m £m
Assumed payroll — 3™ year of rates and adjustment certificate £m £m
3-year average total employer contribution rate % of pay % of pay
Average employee contribution rate (% of pay) % of pay % of pay
Employee contributions (£ figure based on assumed payroll of £m) £m pa £m pa

Page 142
g 10



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Deficit recovery plan

2022 2019
Valuation Valuation

Latest deficit recovery period end date, where this methodology is used by

Year Year

the fund’s actuarial advisor

Earliest surplus spreading period end date, where this methodology is

Year Year

used by the fund’s actuarial advisor

The time horizon end date, where this methodology is used by the fund’s

Year Year

actuarial advisor

The funding plan’s likelihood of success, where this methodology is used

% %

by the fund’s actuarial advisor

Percentage of liabilities relating to employers with deficit recovery periods

% %

of longer than 20 years

Additional information:

Percentage of total liabilities that are in respect of Tier 3 employers %

Included climate change analysis/comments in the 2022 valuation report Yes/No

Value of McCloud liability in the 2022 valuation report (on local funding

£m

basis)

B.3

All information was included for the sample fund reports we considered in more detail, as listed
below:

Powys County Council Pension Fund (Aon)

Buckinghamshire Pension Fund (Barnett Waddingham)

London Borough of Croydon Pension Fund (Hymans Robertson)

Funding Levels

B.4

B.5

Chart B1 shows a plot of SAB funding level against the fund’s local basis funding level, with different
firms of actuarial advisor plotted in different colours. If there was no difference in funding on the SAB
standard basis and that on the local funding basis all funds would sit on the dotted line. If differences
in bases were consistent across funds, all funds would sit along a different line. There is
considerable variation, with most funds having a higher SAB funding level than that on the local
basis (which means that the liability value is lower on the SAB standard basis than on the local
funding basis), but to different extents (evidenced by variations in the distance from the dotted line).
Some funds lie below the dotted line (i.e. the funding level on the SAB basis is less than on the local
funding basis). Note in this chart and throughout this chapter we have used shortened fund names
in some charts for presentation ease.

Chart B2 shows the same information in a different format by illustrating the difference between the
SAB funding level and the local funding level for individual funds. There is a considerable range of
differences both across the funds as a whole, the range is -4.5% to +35%, and between funds
advised by the same advisors.

Pa1g1e 143



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

B.6

The SAB standard basis is a helpful comparator but it is not useful for assessing liabilities for funding
purposes. The standard nature of this basis assists in analysis of the difference in prudence adopted
in the local funding bases; i.e. it is the relative differences that are of interest rather than the absolute
difference. We do not suggest the SAB standard basis as an appropriate or target local funding
basis.

Chart B1: Standardising Local Valuation results

SAB funding level

Funding level on SAB/Local basis

180% -
160%
° el
140%
o0’ i
ol Aon
120% ® L7
° e Barnett Waddingham
e e
, s 7 Hymans Robertson
,/, ® Mercer

100% i

80%

60%

60% 80% 100% 120% 140% 160% 180%

Local funding level

Page 144
J 12



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Chart B2: Difference Between Funding Level on SAB Standardised Basis and Funding Level on
Local Basis

Environment Agency Active
Bromiey
West Sussex
Essex |
Manchester
Suffolk
Lambeth
Wandsworth
Cheshire
Isle of Wight
Lewisham
Hertfordshire
Derbyshire |
Cumbria
Havering
Lincolnshire
Lancashire
North Yorkshire
Southwark
Swansea |
Rhondda Cynon Taf
Bexley |
Enfield
Dyfed
Gwynedd |
Tyne and Wear |
Warwickshire
Merseyside |
Croydon
West Midlands
Wiltshire |
Ealing
Worcestershire
Avon |
Kingston-Upon-Thames
Gloucestershire |
Barking and Dagenham
Hampshire
Cardiff
Leicestershire |
Clwyd |
Kensungton and Chelsea
Islington |
Environment Agency Closed
Norfolk
West Yorkshire |
Teesside |
Hillingdon
Sutton
Powys |
Kent
Northamptonshire |
Hackney |
Somerset
Gwent (Torfaen) |
Shropshire |
Staffordshira
Haringey
Surrey I
Redbridge
Brent
East Sussex
South Yorkshire
Buckinghamshire |
East Riding
Hammersmith and Fulham |
Harrow
Camden
Durham
Bedfordshire |
Comwall
City of London
Nottinghamshire |
Hounslow
Waltham |
Devon
Newham
Barnet |
Ofordshire |
Tower Hamlets
Merton
Dorset
Greanwich
Westminster |
Cambridgeshire
Berkshire
London Pensions Fund

P

5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% A
Difference between funding level on SAB and on local basis

b4
g

WAON W BARNETT WADDINGHAM ™ HYMANS ROBERTSON ~ mMERCER

Pa%e 145




Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Discount Rates

B.7 Each firm of actuarial advisors applies a specific method for calculating discount rates as shown in
the table below.

Table B2: Discount Rate Methodology

Fund Discount rate methodology

Powys County Council Pension Fund (Aon) Stochastic modelling

Buckinghamshire Pension Fund (Barnett Weighted average prudent estimated return on long
Waddingham) term asset classes

London Borough of Croydon Pension Fund

(Hymans Robertson) Stochastic modelling

B.8 Some funds (advised by Mercer) used different discount rates to assess past service liabilities and
future service contribution rates, we consider only the former here.

B.9 The discount rates set by each fund are likely to be linked to the mix of assets held by the fund, and
we would therefore expect to see differences in discount rate from fund to fund. These differences
are clear in Chart B3 overleaf (all discount rates in this chart have been reduced by a constant risk
free rate, however the relative differences remain).

Page 146
J 14



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

B.10 We assess implied asset outperformance as the discount rate less the risk-free rate, where the risk-
free rate is assumed to be the Bank of England UK nominal 20 year spot rate as at 31 March 2022
(1.86%).

Chart B3: Implied Asset Outperformance within Discount Rate

Envirenment Agency Closed®
Emvironment Agency Active
Lambeth

Havering

West Sussex

Manchester
Liaviah

Suffalk

Ishe af Wight
Cheshire
Dertyshire

I @
Woarnwickshire
Creydon
Lincolnshire
Southwark
Wiltshire

Bromley
Swansea

Kingston-Upon-Thames
Gloucestershire
Powys

North Yorkshire
Merton

Teesside

Sutlon

Brent

Gwent [Torfaen)
Norfolk

West

Hackney
Redbridge
Rhondda Cynon Taf
Essex

Barking and D

EeY

Nor e
EpafFardeh

e
Baudey
Cumbria
Comwall

and Chelsea
Harrow

East Riding
Surrey

ith and Fulham
Durham
Enfield
Hampshire

th

Camden

South Yorkshire
Tyne and Wear
Ealing

West Yorkshire
Cardiff
Lancashire
Kent

Dyfed

Tower Hamlets
Barnet

Avon

Worcestershire

Clwyd

Buckingh

City of London
East Sussex

(s ire
Islington

Devon

Shropshire
G ich

Cambridesshi

Dorset

Berkshire
London Pensions Fund

0.0% 0.5% 10% 15% 2.0% 25% 3.0% 3.5% 4.0%
Asset Outperformance

mAON = BARNETT WADDINGHAM = HYMANS ROBERTSON = MERCER

*The implied asset outperformance for the Environment Agency closed fund is -0.1% (not shown in chart)

Pa%e 147



9l

(311eYd Ul UMOYS J0U) % |- SI puny paso|o Aouaby JuswuoldiAug 8y} 1o} |dD JO J8U 8jel JuUnodsIp ay| ,

sjesse snsUSlo mmmm  S)esse Bupjses uinsy

|dO 18U 8jel Junoasig

FERIENN uospsqoy suewiy wieyBulppen yeuleg uoy
( / \( A \f A \ ; ,
[-m I il |
, o
M.U I
o = L] =
33 3 o ) w -
=3 3 5 g 8 5
o ] e o = 3 ol
uw b [ =] =3 3 =3
=0 « Z 0O « w « S o
>3 o 329 § 37 o 7 4 5 c z g =43
= Q 3 s ¥z 3 C 8 = 0 — ) 3 ud 9 3 &0 o0<=2 =
=] 2@ =T 8 @ 3 g = o =N Fpa i ER ®
] 5 = I c_p% 0 T o 5 0 2 s = o E] M- = Sw 5Z 430 ]
— = a %) o® ® Z o a=5203 ¢ T U T _ggo I ® m3 @ .95 a®o @ = T ~“n
o o o > =3 40 ©Ca3romp— X 3 = <I52 Ao @ = pa o 5 nwel % 585w 59 <00 =<
2 023w2 &3 o< 27 00223 J08 s SI8FS_o=93 o'F 2220100%0LFY B Z80,8 a oBowo 3~ 0325 o3 _o02?
0, Pam52235 %550 Srpelmod a8 a3 TS0 5a 52542 0eS 0 E8380 580735 302832508 53482Tmlo =23Moc5 U253
WVW%E U-SWSM.E% SwssﬂmmsuusaU-ES:..%WUSHSUEPSESSMSBH%U,%U 3= 25253 SMU-MESSBOMSSSU-SQSJ._U SMUN:EU-%OSMU
2552538853352 8228338385888 -220332328332022585haa R0a055088 cuasaBo3300228 24855 SpyTsacs25¢
dS3<cd@b3e<oaSae 00X =2 I0302832000usd<f<u=x0380<0@3200%5832@05a 6083508 Xx6552S003d83=x25 o022 aFH3066A0
%0 %00
%01
%S0
%02
%0€
%0°L 00)
IOlm 0
g %0F o —
= &
5 )
3 %05 %Sl § (@)
o E
® i @©
w (U]
o %09 DI
o
w
%07¢T
%0L
%08
%S8T
[ . 1. | ...

pasn o}kl JUNooSIp Uo Uoljeoo||e 1asse Jo 1oedw ay) Bulpueisiapun
9jkl JUNOISIP Y} pue spunj JO UOIIeIO||e }JdSSe aY} usaamiaq Jui g Heyo

"S9)eJ JUNOJSIp 8ouanyjul (syjedde

)SI Se yons) siojoe} Jayjo jey buiisebbns ‘pajdope ajel Junoasip ay) pue sjasse Buess uinjal Jo uoiiodoud ay) usamiaq uone|aliod

Jeajo ou sl aJay] "wuly [euenjoe Ag Jds ‘(sixe puey Ya|) aul usaib e se uonejul | 4D JO 18u ajel Junodsip Buipuodsaliod ay) Smoys pue

(sixe puey jybu) ueyo Jeq ayy ul syesse Bupjaas uinjal Jo uoiuodoud Jivyy AQ spuny si1apio mojaq g Hey)D ‘(spuoq juswulanob yn ajdwexa
J1o}) aAIsuajep ale yolym asoy) pue (seiinba sjdwexs Joy) Buyess uinjal aie yolym sjosse ‘salioba)ed peosq oM} Ul palopisuod 8q ued s}essy | 1°g

MBIABI €| UOI08S ZZ0Z 941 01 sadlpuaddy



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Demographic assumptions

B.12 Mortality assumptions determine how long members of a fund are expected to live and hence the
amount of pension benefits they will receive. The longer a member's life expectancy the more
pension they will receive. Chart B5 shows the life expectancy for current pensioners, female and
male, at age 65, and the life expectancy for future pensioners (active and deferred member currently
aged 45) at age 65. The funds are ordered by increasing future life expectancy for females. We note
these assumptions will be dependent on local variation.

Chart B5: Life expectancy for pensioners and future pensioners at age 65

Female Male
Lincolnshire 243 210
Devon 243 230
Newham 24.4 209
Greenwich 244 209
Somerset | 24.6 226
Nottinghamshire | 249 219
Wandsworth 249 223
Merton 249 223
Kent 249 22.3
Essex 249 223
City of London 249 223
Barking and Dagenham 25.0 22.1
Hounslow 252 223
Berkshire 252 223
Gwent (Torfaen) 25.3 me— w217
London Pensions Fund 253 221
Manchester 25.4 m— w218
West Midlands 25.4 we— =220
Durham | 254 234
Teesside 25.5 m— w219
East Sussex 255 224
South Yorkshire 25.5 we— - 2.0
Enfield 255 230
Cheshire 25.5 we— =222
East Riding 25.5 m— - 219
Dorset 256 234
‘West Yorkshire 256 228
Southwark 256 28
Rhondda Cynon Taf 25.6 228
Swansea | 257 228
Staffordshire 257 - -222
Environment Agency Closed 25.7 m— w218
cardiff 25.7 231
Tower Hamlets | 257 mem w228
Lewisham 25.7 we= s
Bedfordshire | 25.7 223
Northamptonshire | 258w - 225
Havering 25.8 - 226
Derbyshire | 25.8 me - 222
Cornwall 25.8 - 224
Hackney | 258 mem = 228
Leicestershire 259 m— =223
lambeth 250 we w—23.0
Gwynedd | 25.9 e —223
A i 25.9 230
Isle of Wight 25.9 - - 225
Croydon | 25.9 e - 2238
Buckinghamshire 259 223
Redbridge 26.0 - 227
Warwickshire | 26.0 we = 226
Tyne and Wear 260 2.8
lancashire | 26.0 231
Clwyd 26.0 233
North Yorkshire | 26.0 234
Sutton 26.0 == - 330
Hilingdon | 260 me = 330
Gloucestershire 260 m— - 226
Hammersmith and Fulham 261w w132
Haringey 261 - w—23.0
Hertfordshire = 26.1 me = 229
Camden 26.1 w— — 3.2
Waltham | 26.1 235
Bexley | 26.1 241
Wiltshire 26.1 m— - 22.7
Cambridgeshire 261 meem - 22.8
Kensington and Chelsea | 261w - 33
Norfolk  26.2 e = 219
Suffolk 26.2 m— - 227
Shropshire 26.2 234
Islington | 26.2 234
Barnet 26.2 m— - 23.1
Environment Agency Active 26.2 w— - 3.1
Westminster | 26.2 we = 236
Oxfordshire | 26,3 mem = 230
Powys | 263 2 234
Surrey 263w - 23.1
Brent 26.3 m— 3.4
Kingston-Upon-Thames 264w = 234
Worcestershire | 26.4 23.7
galing | 26.4 23.7
Dyfed | 26.4 3.7
cumbria | 264 237
Harow | 264w == 731
West Sussex | 26.5 e == 23.)
Bromley | 26.5 23.7
Hampshire | 26.6 237
Avon 267 241
30 20 10 [ 10 20 30
Life Expectancies of Current and Future Male and Female Members
m Aon Barnett Waddingham Hymans Robertson = Mercer

The paler shade in the middle of the bar represents the life expectancy of current pensioners whilst the total
bar including the darker shade represents the life expectancy of future pensioners.

Pa1g]e 149



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

B.13 Chart B5 shows that overall members of funds advised by Barnett Waddingham are assumed to
have a lower life expectancy when compared to other advisors. For funds advised by Mercer, future
pensioners generally have higher life expectancy than average, but this does not appear to be the
case for current pensioners. There is more variation in the ranking of life expectancy for funds
advised by Aon and Hymans Robertson.

B.14 Commutation assumptions (the extent to which members on average exchange pension in favour of
a tax free cash benefit) are set as the percentage of the maximum commutable amount that a
member can take on retirement. Chart B6 shows the assumed percentages for both pre 2008 and
post 2008 pensions, which may be set separately.

Chart B6: Commutation Assumptions for Pre and Post 2008 Pensions

PRE 2008 PENSION POST 2008 PENSION
Norfolk a5% 45%
Croydon 5% e————— 45%
Sutton 45% 45%
Kingston-Upon-Thames A —— 45%
Hertfordshire 45% 45%
South Yorkshire 50% 50%
Merton 50% 50%
London Pensions Fund 50% 50%
Barking and Dagenham 50% 50%
Kent 50% 50%
Hounslow | 50% 50%
Greenwich | 50% 50%
Essex 50% 50%
East Sussex 50% 50%
Dorset 50% 50%
City of London | 50% 50%
Buckinghamshire | 50% 50%
Berkshire | 50% 50%
Bedfordshire | 50% 50%
Wandsworth 50% 50%
50% 50%
Nottinghamshire 50% 50%
Newham | 50% 50%
Lincolnshire | 50% 50%
Devon | 50% 50%
West Sussex 50% 50%
i 50% 50%
ith and Fulham S50% 50%
Kensington and Chelsea 50% 50%
Isle of Wight 50% 50%
Hackney | 50% 50%
Environment Agency Closed 50% 50%
West Midlands 50% 50%
Wiltshire 50% 50%
Oxfordshire 50% 50%
Manchester 50% 50%
Camden | 50% 50%
Barnet | 50% 50%
Gloucestershire | 50% 50%
Brent 50% 50%
Harrow 50% 50%
Enfield | 2% 70%
Hampshire | 32% 70%
Cambridgeshire | 51% 51%
Haringey | 52% 52%
Redbridge | 53% 53%
Leic hi 55% 55%
illi 55% 55%
Surrey 55% 55%
suffolk | 55% 55%
Northamptonshire | 55% 55%
Lambeth | ] — 65%
Lewisham 50% 65%
Clwyd 43% 75%
Tyne and Wear 43% 75%
Worcestershire 43% 75%
Waltham 43% 75%
Shropshire | 43% 75%
Merseyside 43% 75%
[E i 43% 75%
Islington 43% 75%
Ealing 43% 75%
Dyfed | 43% 75%
Cumbria | 43% 75%
Bromley | 43% 75%
Bexley | 43% 75%
Avon A43% 5%
Tower Hamlets 60% 60%
Environment Agency Active | 60% 60%
Havering | 60% 60%
Cornwall | 60% 60%
Derbyshire | 60% 60%
Staffordshire | 65% 65%
Gwynedd 65% 65%
Cheshire 65% 65%
Warwickshire 65% 65%
East Riding 65% 65%
Gwent (Torfaen) | 65% 65%
North Yorkshire 55% 80%
West Yorkshire 55% B0%
Powys 55% 80%
Cardiff 66% 85%
Southwark 66% 85%
Rhondda Cynon Taf | 66% 85%
Durham | 66% 85%
Swansea 66% 85%
Teesside 80% 80%
100% 80% 60% A0% 20% 0% 20% 0% 60% 80% 100%
PROPORTION OF MAXIMUM COMMUTABLE AMOUNT ASSUMED TO BE COMMUTED
W AON BARNETT WADDINGHAM W HYMANS ROBERTSON W MERCER

Page 150
J 18



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

B.15

B.16

Other things being equal, it is more prudent to assume a lower rate of commutation, because the
cost of providing a pension benefit is higher than the commutation factor. Some cash lump sum was
provided as of right in the LGPS prior to 2008 whereas for benefits accrued after that date, cash was
available only by commutation of pension.

Chart B6 shows that the funds advised by Barnett Waddingham assume that members commute
50% of the maximum allowable cash amount for both pre-2008 and post-2008 pension. Funds
advised by Mercer assume that members take 43% of the maximum allowable cash amount for pre-
2008 pension and 75% of the maximum allowable cash amount for post-2008 pension. There is
more variation in the commutation assumptions made by funds advised by Aon and Hymans
Robertson.

Pa%e 151



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Climate risk

B.17 Most funds completed climate risk analysis in accordance with an agreed broad principles document
agreed between MHCLG, fund actuaries and GAD, with the results of the analyses included in the
2022 valuation reports. The broad principles agreed for the 31 March 2022 valuations are shown in
B.19. Where the data has been provided, we have summarised the information provided on the
impact of two scenarios on funding positions at a single point in time, 31 March 2042. Results are
relative to the disclosed funding positions, the base case. The two scenarios are:

a. Paris aligned
b. High temperature scenario

B.18 Chart B7 shows the projected funding levels under each of these two scenarios at 31 March 2042
relative to the base case funding level, for Aon, Barnett Waddingham and Mercer funds who have
disclosed a funding level for each scenario. Hymans Robertson funds disclosed a success
probability and, as this is not directly comparable to funding level, we have shown this information
separately in Chart B8. Whilst we note Hymans Robertson have not given a funding level, the
approach of considering the impact on success probability is consistent with their underlying
valuation methodology. These charts are included for information only in order to illustrate the
analyses set out in funds’ valuation reports. The values shown are at a single future point in time
and looking at a different time could produce very different results. Further we acknowledge that this
summary relates to two specific scenarios and therefore does not in any way represent the full range
of possible future outcomes. A full comparison and understanding of these results must take into
account differences in assumptions and methodology as well as the projected impacts.

Chart B7: Ratio of funding level under climate change scenarios to base funding level, as at March
2042 (for funds reporting projected funding level)

Ratio of scenarios to the Base funding level

120%

100%

2
3
[+ 4]
A ‘.l.
g 80% °
g L]
g
@
=
T 60%
w
e
=
2
(1]
g
S 40%
£
[y
i
=
@
I

20%

0%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100% 120%

Paris scenario/Base scenario

Aon @ Mercer Barnett Waddingham

Page 152
g 20



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Chart B8: Ratio of success probabilities under climate change scenarios to base scenario, as at
March 2042 (for funds reporting success probabilities)

Ratio of success probabilites
105%

100%

95%

90%

85%

High tempreature scenario/Base scenario

80%
80% 85% 90% 95% 100% 105%
Paris scenario/Base scenario

Hymans Robertson

Pazqe 153



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

B.19 The broad principles agreed for the 31 March 2022 valuation are shown below. These principles
were agreed between the four actuarial firms, MHCLG and GAD.

Climate Change Valuation Reporting Principles

1. 5Scope of the analysis

An important part of any analysis for the valuations will be to identify the impact of transition
risk [shorter term] and physical risks (longer term) on the potential funding outcomes._ It is
therefore critical that any analysis covers an appropriate spectrum of outcomes e g. degree of
warming/rate of transition to low carbon state and also timeframe of analysis. This is the
fundamental principle of how the core analysis should be considered.

Funds will consider at the outset the scope of the analysis to be undertaken and the scenarios
to be considered at the Whole Fund level, comprising at least two altermate scenarios covering
differing rates of transition. These may be considered refative to a base scenarno with only
implicit adjustment to assumptions for scenarios, which include varying degrees of climate
change transition, consistent with the funding assumptions. This might be used, for example, to
test whether the funding strategy is sufficiently robust in the context of the scenario analysis
considered and therefore any potential contribution impacts.

This also should be supported by gualitative commentary on what potential actions are being
taken to improve resiliznce to climate change and the potential implications. For example the
path to net zero and any interim targets, and how they correspond to the scenarios modelled.
Where action has already been taken, Funds may request some analysis to quantify the impact
retrospectively if they wish (aithough we would expect this work te be done by the investment
consultant or custodian).

2. Scenarios to be considered
- One of the scenarios will be Paris aligned scenaric and there will be at lzast one other
scenaric consistent with a higher temperature cutcome.
. Funds should comsider both the projected potential global average temperature rise, and
the nature of the transition to that temperature rise (e.g. timing and level of disruption).
- Ukimately Funds will take advice from their Fund Actuary {and other advisers as
appropriate) on the analysis to be undertaken as part of the valuation.
- The detailed method and assumptions underpinning the climate change scenarios is not
prescrived and will be determined by Funds working with their advisers based on their own
plans to address climate change. However, as an example, the following impacts may be
considersd:
= the potential impact on the future investment return outlook [and therefore discount
rate] and inflation (and therefore inflation-finked assumptions), for the purpose of
projecting liability values; and

o the impact on the investment returns delivered by the Fund's investment strategy for
the purpose of projecting asset values

- Funds could also consider with their advisers the extent to which the scenarios will
consider additional elements such as the potential impact on life expectancy changes and
employer covenant.

- As well as Funds having different approaches to dealing with climate change in their
portfolic construction, it is recognised that different actuarial firms/GAD will legitimately
have differing views on the methodology and assumptions underpinning different climate
change scenarios although we would expect some commonality here.

Page 154
J 22



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Time horizon and output

The output from the scenarios will include consideration of the results (which will include the
funding level on each scenario modelled) over a period of at least 20 years to ensure there is
sufficient recognition of the transition and physical risks of climate change.

To ensure consistency with other reporting regquirements, if a Fund chooses to do so then
separate analysis could be undertaken to be consistent with the expected TCFD reguirements
i.e. giving consideration to the short, medium and long term impacts, but this would be subject
to the final TCFD reguirements for the LGRS,

Reporting

# The Fund Actuary will summarise the analysis/commentary in the final valuation report,
including the headline assumptions underpinning the analysis, in line with the profession’s
expectations. Limited reporting in an agreed format could be included in the dashboard for
consideration by GAD for S3action 13 reporting requirements, though given the different
possible approaches and scenanos the results may not be directly comparable.

= ‘We recommend that Funds include in their Funding Strategy Statemant a statement that the
Fumd has undertaken scenaric analysis to assess the resilience of the strategy against climate
change risk over the agreed period.

Paz%e 155



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Appendix C: Solvency

CA

In this appendix we set out the analysis we undertook in relation to whether the rate of employer
contributions to the LGPS pension fund is set at an appropriate level to ensure the solvency of the
pension fund. This appendix contains a description of:

> Solvency considerations

> Core Spending Power

> Mapping of solvency considerations to measures adopted

> Methodology used for solvency measures

> Table of outcomes for each fund

Potential for default

C2

In the context of the LGPS:

> Our understanding based on confirmation from the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government (MHCLG) is that, in contrast to employers in the private sector, there is no
insolvency regime for local authorities

> Therefore, for the purposes of our analysis we assume that local authority sponsors cannot
default on their pension liabilities through failure

> Members’ benefits are therefore dependent on the assets of the scheme and future contributions
from employers including local authorities

Solvency considerations

C.3

C4

In assessing whether the conditions for solvency are met, we will have regard to:

Risks already present:

> funding level on the SAB standard basis

> whether or not the fund continues to be open to new members. If the fund is closed to new
members or is highly mature and without any guarantee in place, we will focus on the ability to
meet additional cash contributions.

> the ability of tax raising authorities to meet employer contributions

Emerging risks:

> the risks posed by changes to the value of scheme assets (to the extent that these are not
matched by changes to the scheme liabilities)

> the proportion of scheme employers without tax raising powers or without statutory backing

We express the emerging risks in the context of Core Spending Power (for English local authorities,
described below) or financing data (for Welsh local authorities). For funds which have no or limited
Core Spending Power we have followed the same approach used in 2019 and previous reviews.

Page 156
24



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Core Spending Power

C.5

C.6

C.7

C.8

C.9

GAD'’s stress tests are designed to test the ability of the underlying tax raising employers to meet a
shock to the fund; one that results in a sustained reduction to the funding position, requiring remedial
action from those employers in the form of long term additional contributions.

The intention is to put this in the context of the financial resources available to those tax raising
employers. In order to do that, MHCLG has pointed to an objective, well used and publicly available
measure referred to as Core Spending Power. This applies for all local authorities across England
and is published here.

Core Spending Power has the following components:

> Settlement Funding Assessment

> Compensation for under-indexing the business rates multiplier

> Council Tax Requirement excluding parish precepts

> Improved Better Care Fund

> New Homes Bonus

> New Homes Bonus returned funding

> Rural Services Delivery Grant

> Transition Grant

> Adult Social Care Support Grant

>  Winter Pressures Grant

> Social Care Support Grant

> Social Care Grant

> Market Sustainability and Fair Cost of Care Fund

> Lower tier services grant

> 2022/23 Services Grant

GAD have referenced Core Spending Power for 2022-23 (to be consistent with the effective date of
the data provided for section 13) as the measure of financial resource of the underlying (tax raising)
employers, and amalgamated these up to the fund level, in order to compare like with like. After the
date of the calculations, the Core Spending Power 2022-23 data was subsequently revised, however
the results were not revised as this would not have materially changed the results of the solvency
metrics.

Core Spending Power is not a measure of total local authority income. It does not include
commercial income, sales fees and charges, or ring-fenced grants (except improved Better Care
Fund). Core Spending Power includes an assumed modelled amount of locally retained business
rates and as such does not include growth (or falls) in actual retained business rates. In some
authorities, non-uniformed police employees participate in the LGPS, but their funding comes from

Home Office. On the basis that the majority of this applies to uniformed police officers, no
adjustment is made for it. Similarly, DfE funding for academies is not included.

Paz%e 157



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

C.10

C.11

C.12

C.13

C.14

Core Spending Power is publicly available and objective, therefore MHCLG have advised it is the
best such measure available currently.

Core Spending Power does not apply to Welsh local authorities. For Welsh funds GAD have used
“financing of gross revenue expenditure” (“financing data”), which is broadly comparable with Core
Spending Power, following discussions with Welsh Government in 2016. This applies for all local
authorities in Wales and is published here. The 2022-23 “financing of gross revenue expenditure”
data was also subsequently revised after these calculations were completed, however the results
were not revised as this would not have materially changed the results of the solvency metrics.

Financing data has the following components which GAD have included for the purpose of section
13 analysis:

> Adjustments (including amending reports)

> Council tax reduction scheme (including RSG element)
> Discretionary non-domestic rate relief

> General government grants

> Share of re-distributed non-domestic rates

> Amount to be collected from council tax

Financing data also has the following components which we have not included for the purpose of
section 13 analysis:

> Specific grants
> Appropriations from(+) / to(-) reserves ie increasing reserves (+) / decreasing reserves (-)

Similarly to Core Spending Power, financing data excludes income from sales, fees, and charges
and we have excluded police funding from the analysis.

Funds with no or low core spending

C.15

C.16

There were four funds with no or low core spending:

> City of London Corporation Pension Fund

> Environmental Agency Active Fund

> Environmental Agency Closed Fund

> London Pension Fund Authority Pension Fund

For each of these funds, we have reverted to the methodology used in previous reviews for asset

shock and employer default, which expressed the resulting additional contributions to meet the
emerging deficit as a percentage of pensionable pay.

Mapping of solvency considerations

CA7

The five solvency metrics adopted in the 2019 exercise have been retained for the 2022 exercise.
We developed and considered other measures but have excluded, for example the liability shock
used previously as it did not add value under current circumstances beyond what was already
measured under the asset shock.
Page 158
26



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Table C1: 2022 solvency measures

Consideration

Measure Used

Risks already present:

The relative ability of the fund to meet its
accrued liabilities

The extent to which the fund continues to be
open to new members. If a fund is closed to new
members or is highly mature, we will focus on
the ability to meet additional cash contributions

The proportion of scheme employers without tax
raising powers or without statutory backing

SAB funding level: A fund’s funding level using the SAB
standard basis, as set out in Appendix G

Open fund: Whether the fund is open to new members

Non-statutory members: The proportion of members
within the fund who are/were employed by an employer
without tax raising powers or statutory backing

Emerging risks:

The cost risks posed by changes to the value of
scheme assets (to the extent that these are not
matched by changes to the scheme liabilities)

The impact that non-statutory employers
defaulting on contributions would have on the
income of sponsoring employers as a whole

Asset shock: The change in average employer
contribution rates expressed as a percentage of Core
Spending Power (or financing data) after a 15% fall in
value of return-seeking assets

Employer default: The change in average employer
contribution rates as a percentage of Core Spending
Power (or financing data) if all employers without tax
raising powers or statutory backing default on their
existing deficits

C.18 Emerging risk measures require assumptions. We used best estimate assumptions for this purpose,
details of which can be found in Appendix G. Details of the methods used to calculate scores under
each measure and the criteria used to assign a colour code can be found in this Appendix.

Solvency measures — methodology

C.19 We detail the methodology behind the measures used to assess a fund’s solvency position. The
analysis is carried out a fund level, except where stated, but individual employers within any fund
may be in a different position. Some of the measures listed below were calculated using a market
consistent set of assumptions. For more information on this best estimate basis please see

Appendix G.

C.20 The 2016 section 13 exercise developed the approach of setting red, amber and green (‘RAG’) flags
for the solvency measure, where amber and red flags were raised when a fund breached thresholds
set by GAD. For the 2019 and 2022 exercises, GAD has adopted the same RAG approach, however
the flag allocations have been revised since 2016 taking into account the following:

> The scheme funding position has improved significantly since 2016 when the metrics were

introduced;

> The size of funds has grown considerably since 2016 but the ability of tax backed employers to
increase contributions if required (as measured by core spending power and financing data) has
not kept pace. This could pose a risk to the LGPS, for example if there is a severe shock to

return seeking asset classes.

Pazgle 159



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

C.21 Following discussions with MHCLG, GAD agreed that it is not helpful to raise individual fund flags
which have been primarily driven by the relatively larger increase in the scale of liabilities relative to
the possible contributions available, and introduced the “white” flag. The white flag is an advisory
flag that highlights a general risk but does not require action in isolation.

C.22 The chart below illustrates the steps taken by GAD in determining the flag colours for the metrics.

Standard S13 metrics

Quantative analysis Green Amber Red

Qualitative analysis Green Amber White Red

C.23 The text box below defines each flag colour.

Key

RED  indicates a material issue that may result in the aims of section 13 not being
met. In such circumstances remedial action to ensure solvency may be considered.

AMBER indicates a potential material issue that we would expect funds’ to be aware
of. In isolation this would not usually contribute to a recommendation for remedial
action in order to ensure solvency.

is an advisory flag that highlights a general issue but one which does not require
an action in isolation. It may have been an amber flag if we had broader concerns.

GREEN ndicates that there are no material issues that may contribute to a
recommendation for remedial action in order to ensure solvency.

C.24 GAD will assess the position again at the time of the 2025 section 13 report and will decide whether
to retain the white flag, return to the RAG approach or use other metrics/thresholds that are
appropriate for the circumstances of the LGPS at that point in time.

SAB funding level: A fund’s funding level using the SAB standard basis

C.25 This measure highlights possible risks to a fund as a result of assets being significantly lower than
liabilities, where liabilities are those estimated on the SAB standard basis detailed in Appendix G.

C.26 A fund in deficit will need to pay additional contributions in order to meet the liabilities that have
already been accrued.

Page 160
J 28



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

C.27 This measure assesses the relative funding levels of individual funds. All funds have been ordered
by this measure (highest funding level first) and the five funds ranked 82 to 86 out of 86 (i.e. not
including the Environment Agency Closed Fund) are assigned an initial amber code. All other funds
are assigned a green colour code.

C.28 As set out in the methodology section above, GAD undertook a subsequent qualitative analysis on
whether initial amber flag colours should be revised to white.

Open fund: Whether the fund is open to new members

C.29 A scheme that is closed to new members will be closer to maturity than a scheme which is still open.
This creates a possible risk to sponsoring employers as there is less scope to make regular
contributions and receive investment returns on those contributions. Additionally, if problems do
occur with the scheme funding level, the reduced time to maturity of the scheme means that
additional contributions must be spread over a shorter timeframe and could be more volatile as a
result.

C.30 This measure is a ‘Yes’ when a fund is still open to new members and a ‘No’ otherwise. A ‘Yes’
results in a green colour code, while a ‘No’ results in a red colour code. As at 31 March 2022, the
Environment Agency Closed Fund is the only closed fund. However, given that this fund has a
DEFRA guarantee we consider it appropriate to set the flag to green in this circumstance.

Non-statutory members: The proportion of members within the fund who are employed by
an employer without tax raising powers or statutory backing

C.31 We have considered taxpayer-backed employers of stronger covenant value than other employers.
It is important, in this context, that administering authorities and other employers understand the
potential cost that may fall on taxpayers in the future if employers without statutory backing or tax
raising powers are unable to meet their required contributions and those with such powers become
responsible for the accrued costs.

C.32 Data for this measure has been taken from the publicly available ‘Local government pension scheme
funds local authority data: 2022 to 2023’ published by MHCLG here. The data contains the number
of employees within each fund by employer group, where:

> Group 1 refers to local authorities and connected bodies
> Group 2 refers to centrally funded public sector bodies
> Group 3 refers to other public sector bodies and
> Group 4 refers to private sector, voluntary sector and other bodies

C.33 For the purposes of this measure, and unless information has been provided to the contrary, it has
been assumed that employers listed under groups 1 and 2 are those with tax raising powers or
statutory backing and that employers listed under groups 3 and 4 are those without tax raising

powers or statutory backing.

C.34 The measure therefore gives the proportion of members within the fund that are/were employed by
group 1 and 2 employers as a proportion of all members within the fund.

C.35 Under this measure a fund has been allocated an amber colour code if its proportion of members
who are employed by an employer without tax raising powers or statutory backing is between 25%
and 50%, a red colour code would be allocated if the proportion is more than 50% and a green
colour code is allocated in all other cases. It is not applicable to consider this metric in relation to the
Environmental Agency funds.

Paz%e 161



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

C.36

As set out in the methodology section above, GAD undertook a subsequent qualitative analysis on
whether initial amber flag colours should be revised to white.

Asset shock: The change in average employer contribution rates expressed as a
percentage of Core Spending Power or financing data after a 15% fall in value of return-
seeking assets

C.37

C.38

C.39

C.40

C.41

This measure shows the effect on total employer contribution rates of a one-off decrease in the
value of a fund’s return seeking assets equal to 15% of the value of those assets expressed as a
percentage of Core Spending Power or financing data. Defensive assets are assumed to be
unaffected.

For the purposes of this measure liabilities have been restated on the standardised best estimate
basis and deficit recovery periods have been standardised using a period of 20 years to ensure that
results are comparable.

For the scenario where a fund is in deficit on the standardised best estimate basis after the asset
shock (the funding level is less than 100% after the shock) and the relevant threshold has been
breached (over 3%) as described below, then an initial amber flag is raised. However, where the
fund is in surplus after the shock, the fund will not raise a flag even if it had breached the threshold
but the risk remains that such an event could bring forward the need to increase contributions.
Return-seeking asset classes are assumed to be:

> Equities (UK, Overseas and Unquoted or private equities)

> Property

> Infrastructure investments which are equity type

>  “Multi asset” funds (examples include diversified growth funds, managed funds, balanced funds,
multi asset credit or absolute returns)

> “Other” return seeking investments

Defensive asset classes, which are less volatile but may still generate a return, are assumed to be:
> Cash

> Bonds (Gilts, Corporate Bonds or index linked)

> “Other” defensive investments

We calculated the emerging deficit from the shock following a 15% fall in return seeking assets
which would be attributed to the employers covered by core spending or financing data (which we
refer to as “% tax raising employers” below):

New Deficit = (Pre stress asset value - post stress asset value) X % Tax raising employers

We spread this over 20 years of annual payments and express as a percentage of Core Spending
Power (or financing data for Welsh funds)

New Deficit
a,o X Core Spending Power

Where:

Page 162
g 30



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

> new deficit is calculated on the standardised best estimate basis as at 31 March 2022

> 3,, is a continuous annuity over the 20-year deficit recovery period at the rate of interest equal to
(1+i)
(1+e)

> iis the nominal discount rate assumption on the standardised best estimate basis.
> e is the general earnings inflation assumption on the standardised best estimate basis

C.42 Afundis allocated an initial amber colour code if its result is above 3% and a green colour code
otherwise.

C.43 For those funds with no/low core spending the measure was expressed as a percentage of
pensionable pay, with an amber flag raised if that was greater than 5% and is in deficit after the
asset shock. Where such funds remain in surplus after the asset shock, we show a theoretical
change in contributions. This is an illustration of sensitivity and there is no restriction on the
theoretical contribution rate either pre or post asset shock. No results are available for the
Environment Agency Closed Fund as there are no remaining active members within the fund with
which to calculate a revised contribution rate.

C.44 As set out in the methodology section above, GAD undertook a subsequent qualitative analysis to
consider whether it was felt that the risk identified was potentially material to the fund, and hence
whether the initial amber flag should be maintained.

Employer default: The change in average employer contribution rates as a percentage of
payroll if all employers without tax raising powers or statutory backing default on their
existing deficits

C.45 LGPS regulations require employers to pay the contributions set in the valuation. MHCLG has
confirmed that:

> there is a guarantee of LGPS pension liabilities by a public body
> that public body is incapable of becoming insolvent, and

> the governing legislation is designed to ensure the solvency and long term economic efficiency
of the Scheme.

C.46 Itis important, in this context, that administering authorities and other employers understand the
potential cost that may fall on taxpayers in the future if employers without statutory backing or tax
raising powers are unable to meet their required contributions and those with such powers become
responsible for the accrued costs.

C.47 A fund’s deficit will not change as a result of the default, but as the deficit is spread over a smaller
number of employers, the contribution rate for each of the remaining employers will increase.

C.48 For the purposes of this measure liabilities have been restated on the standardised best estimate
basis and deficit recovery periods have been standardised using a period of 20 years to ensure that
results are comparable.

C.49 For funds in surplus under the standardised best estimate basis, the flag colour for a fund is green,
as there would be no deficits attributed to non-taxed backed employers. The measure therefore
solely considers those funds in deficit on the standardised best estimate basis.

C.50 We calculated the amount of deficit attributed to tax raising authorities if other public sector bodies &
private sector, voluntary sector and other bodies were to default:

Pasg1e 163



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

C.51

C.52

C.53

C.54

Share of Deficit = Deficit X % non — tax raising employers

We spread this over 20 years of annual payments and express as a percentage of Core Spending
Power for most funds (Welsh funds use financing data and funds with no/low Core Spending use
pensionable pay, as set out in C.53 below).

(Share of Deficit)
(a,9 x Core Spending Power)

Where:
> Share of deficit is calculated on the standardised best estimate basis as at 31 March 2022

> a,is a continuous annuity over the 20 year deficit recovery period at the rate of interest equal to
(1+i)
(1+e)

> iis the nominal discount rate assumption on the standardised best estimate basis.
> e is the general earnings inflation assumption on the standardised best estimate basis

A fund is allocated an initial amber colour code if its result is greater than 3% and a green colour
code otherwise.

For those funds with no/low core spending the change of contribution rate was expressed as a
percentage of pensionable pay, with an amber flag raised if that was greater than 2% and is in deficit
after the asset shock. It is not applicable to consider this metric in relation to the Environmental
Agency funds.

As set out in the methodology section above, GAD undertook a subsequent qualitative analysis on
whether initial flag colours should be revised.

Page 164
32



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Solvency measures — by fund

Table C2: Solvency measures by fund

Asset shock

Employer default

Open SAB Non- Deficit or Impact on Impact on
Pension fund fund funding Statutory surplus core Deficit or core
level employees post di surplus di
shock SPending spending
- Yes 107.5% 4.9% Deficit 1.9% Surplus N/A
sedforashire Yes  96.9% 6.8% Deficit 2.5% Deficit 0.1%
Buckinghamshire v 11010 3.99 Defici 289 Surol N/A
Pension Fund es A% 9% eficit 8% urplus
Cambridgeshire oo 423 gy 72%  Surpl 27%  Surpl N/A
Pension Fund es .6% 2% urplus T% urplus
Cardiff and Vale
of Glamorgan Yes 108.8% 9.1% Deficit 1.6% Surplus N/A
Pension Fund
Cheshire Pension o o o
Fund Yes 135.7% 7.0% Surplus 2.8% Surplus N/A
City and County
of Swansea Yes 117.0% 3.4% Surplus 2.5% Surplus N/A
Pension Fund
City of
Westminster Yes 127.3% 2.2% Surplus 3.5% Surplus N/A
Pension Fund
Yes 116.5% 5.3% Surplus 2.0% Surplus N/A
comwall Pension  ves  100.7% 3.6% Deficit 22%  Surplus N/A
- Yes 128.9% 6.4% Surplus 3.3% Surplus N/A
TS Yes  119.2% 55%  Surplus 34%  Surplus N/A
Ej;’g" FENSE Yes  101.7% 4.7% Deficit 21%  Surplus N/A
ey Yes  97.9% 3.9% Deficit 2.1% Deficit 0.0%
Durham County
Council Pension Yes 102.9% 4.2% Deficit 3.0% Surplus N/A
Fund
Yes 129.3% 3.6% Surplus 2.8% Surplus N/A
8 Mg Yes  126.2% 26%  Surplus 41%  Surplus N/A
=€) SIEEEX Yes  129.4% 1.8% Surplus 3.0% Surplus N/A

Pension Fund

Pas%e 165



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Asset shock Employer default
Open SAB Non-  Deficit or Impact on Impact on
Pension fund fEnd funding Statutory surplus P core Deficit or P core
level employees post di surplus di
shock spending spending
Eiﬁix FENS O Yes  132.9% 150%  Surplus 29%  Surplus N/A
CloveesiziEhie Yes  121.4% 92%  Surplus 25%  Surplus N/A
Pension Fund
Greater Gwent
(Torfaen) Pension Yes 104.9% 7.9% Deficit 1.8% Surplus N/A
Fund
Greater
Manchester Yes 132.4% 22.4% Surplus 5.3% Surplus N/A
Pension Fund
Gwynedd o o o
Pension Fund Yes 136.2% 3.4% Surplus 3.2% Surplus N/A
Hampshire
County Council Yes 118.2% 3.5% Surplus 3.3% Surplus N/A
Pension Fund
Hertfordshire
County Council Yes 126.3% 4.8% Surplus 2.7% Surplus N/A
Pension Fund
Isle of Wight
Council Pension Yes 123.5% 2.5% Surplus 2.6% Surplus N/A
Fund
- Yes 105.5% 5.8% Deficit 3.6% Surplus N/A
A R Yes  110.8% 8.1% Deficit 24%  Surplus N/A

Fund

- Yes 132.0% 8.7% Surplus 3.1% Surplus N/A

Leicestershire

County Council Yes 116.0% 1.3% Deficit 3.1% Surplus N/A
Pension Fund
Lincolnshire Yes  118.2% 6.2%  Surplus 22%  Surplus N/A

Pension Fund

London Borough
of Barking and

D Yes 112.1% 51% Deficit 3.0% Surplus N/A
agenham
Pension Fund
London Borough
of Barnet Pension Yes 98.2% 35.5% Deficit 1.4% Deficit 0.1%
Fund

Yes 130.0% 5.2% Surplus 1.4% Surplus N/A
London Borough
of Brent Pension Yes 94.1% 17.9% Deficit 1.8% Deficit 0.2%

Fund

Page 166
g 34



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Asset shock

Employer default

Open SAB Non-  Deficit or Impact on Impact on
Pension fund fund funding Statutory surplus core Deficit or core
level employees post spendin surplus spendin
shock P ing P ing
Yes  149.6% 2.9% Surplus 1.4% Surplus N/A
London Borough
of Camden Yes 119.1% 4.3% Surplus 4.0% Surplus N/A
Pension Fund
London Borough
of Croydon Yes 109.8% 4.5% Deficit 2.0% Surplus N/A
Pension Fund
Yes 108.4% 1.0% Deficit 1.9% Surplus N/A
London Borough
of Enfield Pension Yes 120.4% 1.7% Surplus 21% Surplus N/A
Fund
London Borough
of Hackney Yes 113.6% 10.5% Deficit 3.0% Surplus N/A
Pension Fund
London Borough
of Hammersmith o 440 6% 16.6% Deficit 29%  Surplus N/A
and Fulham
Pension Fund
London Borough
of Haringey Yes 120.7% 2.6% Surplus 3.6% Surplus N/A
Pension Fund
London Borough
of Harrow Yes 102.1% 1.9% Deficit 2.0% Surplus N/A
Pension Fund
London Borough
of Havering Yes 98.1% 0.8% Deficit 2.0% Deficit 0.0%
Pension Fund
London Borough
of Hillingdon Yes 97.6% 1.0% Deficit 2.3% Deficit 0.0%
Pension Fund
London Borough
of Hounslow Yes 108.4% 12.6% Deficit 2.5% Surplus N/A
Pension Fund
London Borough
of Lambeth Yes 119.3% 0.3% Surplus 3.3% Surplus N/A
Pension Fund
London Borough
of Lewisham Yes 116.9% 3.8% Surplus 2.5% Surplus N/A
Pension Fund
London Borough
of Merton Yes 111.5% 3.3% Deficit 2.8% Surplus N/A
Pension Fund
London Borough
of Newham Yes 103.5% 22.9% Deficit 2.5% Surplus N/A

Pension Fund

Pas%e 167



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Asset shock Employer default
. Open SAB Non-  Deficit or Impact on Impact on
Pension fund fund funding Statutory surplus core Deficit or core
level employees post : surplus :
shock spending spending

London Borough
of Redbridge Yes 105.8% 1.6% Deficit 2.2% Surplus N/A
Pension Fund

London Borough

of Southwark Yes  126.2% 0.0% Surplus 3.6% Surplus N/A

London Borough
of Tower Hamlets Yes 125.2% 5.8% Surplus 3.4% Surplus N/A
Pension Fund

Yes 84.7% 3.1% Deficit 1.7% Deficit 0.1%
Yes 120.3% 10.7% Surplus 3.7% Surplus N/A
norfolk Pension  ves  115.9% 82%  Surplus 27%  Surplus N/A
North Yorkshire o o o
Pension Fund Yes 132.7% 5.0% Surplus 3.0% Surplus N/A
Northamptonshire A o A
Pension Eund Yes 120.9% 4.0% Surplus 2.3% Surplus N/A
Nottinghamshire
County Council Yes 104.2% 5.7% Deficit 3.1% Surplus N/A
Pension Fund
Oxfordshire
County Council Yes 113.8% 5.1% Surplus 3.2% Surplus N/A
Pension Fund
Powys County
Council Pension Yes 107.8% 6.3% Deficit 1.6% Surplus N/A
Fund
Rhondda Cynon
et Sou Y Yes  122.8% 58%  Surplus 26%  Surplus N/A

Borough Council
Pension Fund

Royal Borough of
Greenwich Yes 104.4% 4.1% Deficit 2.5% Surplus N/A
Pension Fund

Royal Borough of
Kensington and
Chelsea Pension
Fund

Yes 164.4% 3.7% Surplus 4.4% Surplus N/A

Royal Borough of
Kingston-Upon-
Thames Pension
Fund

Yes 123.0% 7.7% Surplus 2.3% Surplus N/A

Royal County of
Berkshire Yes 83.4% 6.6% Deficit 1.8% Deficit 0.2%
Pension Fund

Page 168
g 36



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Asset shock

Employer default

Open SAB Non-  Deficitor .t on Impact on
Pension fund fEnd funding Statutory surplus P core Deficit or P core
level employees post spendin surplus spendin
shock P g P 9
Yes 106.8% 8.8% Deficit 2.8% Surplus N/A
Somerset County
Council Pension Yes 103.2% 8.3% Deficit 2.7% Surplus N/A
Fund
South Yorkshire o o o
Pension Fund Yes 125.3% 8.4% Surplus 3.9% Surplus N/A
Staffordshire o o o
Pension Fund Yes 127.9% 5.7% Surplus 3.4% Surplus N/A
Suffoll Pension Yes  130.7% 44%  Surplus 21%  Surplus N/A
‘:’L‘j:g’y FEUSIRT Yes  108.8% 4.3% Deficit 2.4% Surplus N/A
Sutton Pension Yes  109.2% 4.5% Deficit 19%  Surplus N/A
feesside Pension ves  125.0% 44%  Surplus 32%  Surplus N/A
Tyne and Wear o o o
Pension Fund Yes 125.9% 9.9% Surplus 3.7% Surplus N/A
Wandsworth
Council Pension Yes 138.7% 5.0% Surplus 2.8% Surplus N/A
Fund
Warwickshire
; Yes 118.3% 7.3% Surplus 2.7% Surplus N/A
Pension Fund
RO SIS Yes  116.3% 89%  Surplus 33%  Surplus N/A
Pension Fund
West Sussex
County Council Yes 159.1% 4.0% Surplus 2.9% Surplus N/A
Pension Fund
West Yorkshire Yes  118.0% 19.8%  Surplus 44%  Surplus N/A
Pension Fund
‘é\ﬂ:zh're Pension  ves  115.3% 40%  Surplus 24%  Surplus N/A
Yes 112.8% 71% Deficit 2.8% Surplus N/A
City of London
Corporation Yes 102.1% 10.5% Deficit 7.2% Surplus N/A
Pension Fund*
London Pensions
Fund Authority Yes 123.1% 0.0% Surplus 10.2% Surplus N/A
Pension Fund*
Environment
Agency Active Yes 138.0% N/A Surplus 4.9% N/A N/A
Fund*

Pa%e 169



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

SAB

Asset shock

Employer default

Non- Deficit or

Pension fund ?Eﬁg funding Statutory surplus Impacctoc:: Deficit or Impac:ot)r:
level employees post spendin surplus spendin
shock P ing P 9
Environment
Agency Closed No 76.9% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Fund
Notes:

1. Funding levels are on the 2022 SAB standard basis.
2. For funds marked * the asset and employer default shocks are assessed as a percentage of pensionable

pay (as we did in the previous exercises).

Page 170
g 38



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Appendix D: Long term cost efficiency

D.1

We developed a series of relative and absolute considerations to help assess whether the

contributions met the aims of section 13 under long term cost efficiency. This appendix contains a

description of:

> Mapping of long term cost efficiency considerations to measures adopted

> Methodology used for long term cost efficiency measures

> Table of outcomes for each fund

> Proposed future long term cost efficiency measures

Long term cost efficiency — considerations and methodology

Table D1: Long term cost efficiency considerations and measures

Consideration

Measure Used

Relative considerations:

The implied deficit recovery period

The investment return required to achieve full
funding

The pace at which the deficit is expected to be
paid off

Deficit Period: Implied deficit recovery period
calculated on a standardised best estimate basis

Required Return: The required investment return
rates to achieve full funding in 20 years’ time on a
standardised best estimate basis

Repayment Shortfall: The difference between:
actual contributions in excess of GAD’s best
estimate of future service cost and the annual
deficit recovery contributions required as a
percentage of payroll to pay off the deficit in 20
years, where the deficit is calculated on a
standardised best estimate basis

Absolute Considerations:

The extent to which the required investment
return set out above is less than the estimated
future return being targeted by a fund’s
investment strategy

The extent to which any deficit recovery plan can
be reconciled with, and can be demonstrated to
be a continuation of, the previous deficit recovery
plan, after allowing for actual fund experience

Return Scope: The required investment return
rates as calculated in required return, compared
with the fund’s expected best estimate future
returns assuming current asset mix maintained

Deficit Reconciliation: Confirmation that the
deficit period can be demonstrated to be a
continuation of the previous deficit recovery plan,
after allowing for actual fund experience

D.2

For the 2022 section 13 report, GAD has adopted the same measures as those in 2019. As in 2019

a qualitative step was introduced to consider whether it was felt that the risk identified was

potentially material to the fund.

Pas%e 171



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

D.3

D4

The analyses and calculations carried out under these long term cost efficiency measures are
approximate. They rely on the accuracy of the data provided by the respective local firms of actuarial
advisors.

Although the calculations are approximate, we consider they are sufficient for the purposes of
identifying which funds are a potential cause for concern. While the measures should not represent
targets, these measures help us determine whether a more detailed review is required; for example,
we would have greater concern where multiple measures triggered amber for a given fund.

Long term cost efficiency measures — methodology

D.5

D.6

D.7

D.8

We detail the methodology behind the measures used to assess a fund’s long term cost efficiency
position below. The analysis is carried out a fund level, except where stated, but individual
employers within any fund may be in a different position. Some of the measures listed below were
calculated using a market consistent set of assumptions. For more information on this best estimate
basis please see Appendix G.

The 2016 section 13 exercise developed the approach of setting Red, Amber or Green (‘RAG’) flags
for the long term cost efficiency measure, where amber and red flags were raised when a fund
breached thresholds set by GAD. For the 2019 and 2022 exercises, GAD initially adopted the same
RAG approach and thresholds, however the flag allocation has been revised to concentrate on funds
which raised multiple flags. GAD also introduced a subsequent qualitative step, which utilised the
graph showing relative funding level relative and contributions, which assisted GAD in determining
whether to flag and/or engage with a fund.

Following discussions with MHCLG, GAD agreed that it is not helpful to focus on all individual fund
flags but rather to concentrate on funds with multiple flags or those highlighted from consideration of
the graph of relative funding level and contributions. This resulted in the introduction of a “white” flag.
The white flag is an advisory flag that highlights a general risk but does not require action in
isolation.

The chart below illustrates the steps taken by GAD in determining the flag colours for the metrics.

Standard S13 metrics

Quantitaive analysis Green Amber Red

Qualitative analysis Green Amber White Red

Page 172
g 40



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

D.9

D.10

D.11

D.12

D.13

D.14

The text box below defines each flag colour:

Key

AMBER  indicates a material issue that may result in the aims of section 13 not being
met. In such circumstances remedial action to ensure long term cost efficiency may be
considered.

indicates a potential material issue that we would expect funds’ to be aware
of. In isolation this would not usually contribute to a recommendation for remedial
action in order to ensure long term cost efficiency.

is an advisory flag that highlights a general issue but one which does not require
an action in isolation. It may have been an amber flag if we had broader concerns.

GREEN ndicates that there are no material issues that may contribute to a
recommendation for remedial action in order to ensure long term cost efficiency.

GAD will assess the position again at the time of the 2025 section 13 report and will decide whether
to retain the white flag, return to the RAG approach or use other metrics/thresholds that are
appropriate for the circumstances of the LGPS at that point in time.

Deficit period: The implied deficit recovery period calculated on a standardised best
estimate basis

This is a market related metric and calculations are done on a standardised best estimate basis.

The implied deficit recovery period in years on the standardised best estimate basis was found by
solving the following equation for x:

Deficit on standardised BE basis

., =
X Annual deficit recovery payment on standardised BE basis

Where:

> xis the implied deficit recovery period.

a+h
(1+e)

> a,is a continuous annuity over x years at the rate of interest equal to 1.

> iis the nominal discount rate assumption on the standardised best estimate basis.
> e is the general earnings inflation assumption on the standardised best estimate basis.
> The deficit on the standardised best estimate basis is as at 31 March 2022.

> The annual deficit recovery payment on the standardised best estimate basis is calculated as the
difference between the average employer contribution rate for the years 2023/24 to 2025/26,
allowing for both contributions paid as a percentage of salary and fixed monetary contributions
into the fund, where deficit contributions are fixed (i.e. the fixed monetary contributions, if any,
have been converted so that they are quoted as a percentage of salary roll), and the employer
standard contribution rate on the standardised best estimate basis for the years 2023/24 to
2025/26 (which is assumed to be equal to the future cost of accrual of that particular fund).

Funds that were in surplus or where the implied deficit recovery period was less than 10 years were
flagged as green. Those with recovery periods greater than or equal to 10 years were flagged as

Paﬂe 173



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

D.15

D.16

D.17

D.18

D.19

amber. If there were any funds that were paying contributions at a level that would result in an
increase in deficit, they would have been flagged as red.

As set out in the methodology section above, GAD undertook a subsequent qualitative analysis on
whether initial amber flag colours should be revised to white.

Required return: The required investment return rates to achieve full funding in 20
years’ time on the standardised best estimate basis

This is a market related metric and calculations are done on a standardised best estimate basis.
The following assumptions were made for the purposes of this calculations:

> Time 0 is 31 March 2022.

> Time 20 is 31 March 2042.

> A, is the value of the fund’s assets at time 0 and was obtained from the data provided by the
local firms of actuarial advisors.

> A, is the projected value of the fund’s assets at time 20 (using the equation below)
> L, is the value of the fund’s liabilities at time 0, on a standardised best estimate basis
> Ly, is the projected value of the fund’s liabilities at time 20 (using the equation below)
> C, is one year’s employer contributions paid from time 0

> Cy_y0 is the total employer contributions payable over the period time 0 — 20, assumed to occur
mid-way between time 0 and time 20 (i.e. at time 10)

> B, is the value of one year’s benefits paid (excluding transfers) from time 0

> By_,o is the total value of benefits payable (excluding transfers) over the period time 0 — 20,
assumed to occur mid-way between time 0 and time 20 (i.e. at time 10).

> SCRy is the standard contribution rate payable from time O to time 1 on a standardised best
estimate basis.

> SCRy_,ois the standard contribution rate payable from time 0 — 20, assumed to occur mid-way
between time 0 and time 20 (i.e. at time 10).

> Sal, is the salary roll at time 0 and was obtained from the data provided by the local firms of
actuarial advisors.

> iis the nominal discount rate assumption on the standardised best estimate basis.
> e is the general earnings assumption on the standardised best estimate basis.

> xis the required investment return that is to be calculated

The membership profile is assumed to be constant.

The assets and liabilities at time 20 were then equated and the resulting quadratic equation solved
to find the required rate of investment return to achieve full funding, i.e.:

Ay =Ly =0
Page 174
42



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Where:

D.20 Where the required investment return was higher than the nominal discount rate on the standardised
best estimate basis (i.e. i where i = 4.80%) funds would be classified as amber, whereas funds were
classified as green if the required return was less than 4.80%.

D.21 As set out in the methodology section above, GAD undertook a subsequent qualitative analysis on
whether initial amber flag colours should be revised to white.

Repayment shortfall: The difference between the actual contribution rate net of
GAD’s best estimate future service cost and the annual deficit recovery contributions
(on a standardised best estimate basis and assuming deficit is paid off in 20 years),
as a percentage of payroll

D.22 This is a market related metric and calculations are done on a standardised best estimate basis.

D.23 For this calculation we determine the difference between:
> The employer contributions in excess of GAD’s best estimate future service cost, and
> The required annual deficit recovery contribution rate on a standardised best estimate basis to

pay off the deficit in 20 years’ time

D.24 The required annual deficit recovery contribution rate to be paid on a standardised best estimate
basis is equal to:

Deficit on standardised best estimate basis
ayo X Salary Roll
Where:
> The deficit on the standardised best estimate basis is as at 31 March 2022.
> 3,, is a continuous annuity over the 20 year deficit recovery period at the rate of interest equal to
(1+i)
(1+e)
> iis the nominal discount rate assumption on the standardised best estimate basis.
> e is the general earnings inflation assumption on the standardised best estimate basis.
> The salary roll is as at 31 March 2022 and has not been adjusted.
D.25 The difference in deficit recovery contribution rates is then defined as:

> A= [A¢ X (1 +x)%°] + [(Co—20~ Bo—20 ) X (1 + 3]
> Lgo = [Lo x (1 +1)%°] + [(SCRo_20 = Bo_20) X (1 + D]
> Co_20=0Co X 20 x (1+e)*

> By_z0=Bg %20 x (1+¢e)'°

> SCRO_20 = Salo X SCRO X 20 X (1 + e)lo

Ave ER t rat :d - ER SCR on BE basi Deficit on BE basis
(Avg ER cont rate pald - on asis) a,o x Salary Roll

Paége 175



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Where:

D.26

D.27

D.28

D.29

D.30

D.31

D.32

D.33

D.34

D.35

D.36

> The average employer contribution rate is for the years 2023/24 — 2025/26, allowing for both
contributions paid as a percentage of salary and fixed monetary contributions into the fund
where deficit contributions are fixed (i.e. the fixed monetary contributions, if any, have been
converted so that they are quoted as a percentage of salary roll).

> The employer standard contribution rate on the standardised best estimate basis is for the years
2023/24 — 2025/26. It is assumed that the standard contribution rate is equal to the future cost of
accrual of that particular fund.

The data required for each of the funds to carry out the above calculation was provided by their
respective firms of actuarial advisors.

Where appropriate, data has been restated on the standardised best estimate basis.

Funds in surplus on GAD’s best estimate basis or where the difference in deficit recovery
contribution rates is greater than 0% are flagged as green. Where the difference between
contribution rates is between 0% and -3%, the funds would be flagged as amber and if the difference
in deficit recovery contribution rates is less than -3%, then the fund would be flagged as red.

As set out in the methodology section above, GAD undertook a subsequent qualitative analysis on
whether initial amber flag colours should be revised to white.

Return scope: The required investment return rates as calculated in required return,
compared with the fund’s expected best estimate future returns assuming current
asset mix maintained

This is a market related metric and calculations are done on a standardised best estimate basis.

The required investment return (x) calculated in the required return measure was compared against
the best estimate investment return expected from the fund’s assets held on 31 March 2022.

The asset data used in this calculation was provided by each fund’s respective firm of actuarial
advisors.

Funds where the best estimate future returns were higher than the required investment return by
0.5% or more were flagged as green. Those funds where this difference was between 0% and 0.5%
would be flagged as amber whilst those where the best estimate returns were lower than the
required investment returns were flagged as red.

As set out in the methodology section above, GAD undertook a subsequent qualitative analysis on
whether initial amber flag colours should be revised to white.

Deficit reconciliation: Confirmation that the deficit period can be demonstrated to be
a continuation of the previous deficit recovery plan, after allowing for actual fund
experience

This measure is used to monitor the change in the deficit recovery end point set locally by the fund
at each valuation and what the underlying reasons are for any adverse changes in this period.

This measure considers the following:

> Whether contributions have decreased since the previous valuations (reducing the burden on
current tax payers)

Page 176
44



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

> Whether the deficit recovery end point has moved further into the future, compared with the
previous valuation (increasing the burden on future tax payers)

D.37 Funds where both of the above have occurred are initially flagged amber otherwise funds are
flagged green. A subsequent qualitative assessment considered whether the flag was affected by

new deficit emerging over the inter-valuation period or by considered funding decisions at either the
previous or current valuations.

Long term cost efficiency measures — by fund

Table D2: Long term cost efficiency measures by fund

Deficit . Deficit
. . Required Repayment Return
Pension fund period recovery
return/(rank)  shortfall scope/(rank)
(rank) plan

_ Surplus 3.5% 56 Surplus 0.7% 81 Green

pedtordshire 2 (81) 35% 57  83% 10% 75 Green

S gRE Surplus  34% 50 Suplus  1.1% 69 Green

ggr’?s?gf%ﬁgre Surplus 31% 38 Surplus  19% 24  Green

Cardiff and Vale of

Glamorgan Pension Surplus 3.9% 76 Surplus 0.9% 77  Green

Fund

Cheshire Pension Suplus  24% 10  Surplus  16% 41  Green

City and County of

Swansea Pension Surplus 3.3% 46 Surplus 1.9% 23  Green

Fund

City of London

Corporation Pension Surplus 3.8% 72 Surplus 1.5% 46  Green

Fund

Cly of Westminster  Surpius ~ 3.0% 20 Suplus  21% 20 Green
_ Surplus 3.7% 66 Surplus 1.3% 51 Green

cornwall Pension Surplus  39% 77  Surplus  13% 58  Green
- Surplus 2.9% 25 Surplus 1.6% 38 Green

IE__)Sr:t()jyshlre FENET Surplus 3.2% 43 Surplus 1.5% 47  Green

Esxgn RS Surplus 3.8% 73 Surplus 0.9% 78  Green

gg;ﬁfgﬂ:gy 3 (82) 41% 83  51% 05% 86 Green

Durham County

Council Pension Surplus 4.0% 78 Surplus 0.8% 79  White

Fund

Pa%e 177



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Deficit . Deficit
Pension fund period Required Repayment Return recovery
(rank) return/(rank)  shortfall scope/(rank) plan
_ Surplus 3.1% 37 Surplus 1.9% 28  Green
castRiding Pension g rpius 30% 31 Surplus  22% 18  Green
Egﬁ;iﬁ‘j’;d Surplus 2.7% 22 Surplus 2.1% 19  Green
'Iig;/\l/r;)r::rlr}re]gt A Surplus 2.6% 14 Surplus 1.3% 55  Green
Essex Pension Fund Surplus 2.1% 5 Surplus 2.8% 5 Green
Sle%usci:;?tg[lsnhcllre Surplus 2.2% 8 Surplus 2.4% 14  Green
Greater Gwent
(Torfaen) Pension Surplus 3.5% 595 Surplus 1.1% 68 Green
Fund
S;iasi; I\gizghester Surplus 2.4% 12 Surplus 2.2% 17  Green
E&’%"edd FOTEIT Surplus  2.8% 23  Surplus  2.6% 8  Green
Hampshire County
Council Pension Surplus 3.4% 52 Surplus 1.3% 53 Green
Fund
Hertfordshire County
Council Pension Surplus 2.9% 24 Surplus 1.7% 35 Green
Fund
'Fft';;’i‘;\r’]v?:;founc” Surplus ~ 2.6% 15  Surplus  19% 27  Green
_ Surplus 3.6% 60 Surplus 1.5% 43  Green
Kent Pension Fund Surplus 3.3% 45 Surplus 1.5% 48  Green
Surplus 2.7% 21 Surplus 1.8% 29 Green
Leicestershire
County Council Surplus 2.4% 11 Surplus 2.6% 7  Green
Pension Fund
Ilzl::glnshlre SRS Surplus 2.3% 9 Surplus 2.5% 11 Green
London Borough of
gz:;ke";%:;dPension Surplus 3.6% 63 Surplus 1.3% 52  Green
Fund
London Borough of
Barnet Pension 1(79) 3.3% 44 9.9% 1.3% 57  Green
Fund
- Surplus 2.6% 16 Surplus 1.5% 44  Green
EOTEE ETELE] O 3 (84) 3.0% 32 12.2% 19% 25 White

Brent Pension Fund

Page 178
46



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Pension fund

London Borough of
Camden Pension
Fund

Deficit
period
(rank)

Required
return/(rank)

Repayment
shortfall

Return

scope/(rank)

Deficit
recovery
plan

Surplus

1.9%

3

Surplus

3.1%

1

Green

Surplus

2.1%

Surplus

2.9%

Green

London Borough of
Croydon Pension
Fund

London Borough of
Enfield Pension
Fund

Surplus

3.5%

53

Surplus

1.7%

32

White

Surplus

3.4%

49

Surplus

1.2%

61

Green

Surplus

3.3%

47

Surplus

1.3%

56

Green

London Borough of
Hackney Pension
Fund

Surplus

2.7%

20

Surplus

1.8%

30

Green

London Borough of
Hammersmith and
Fulham Pension
Fund

Surplus

3.6%

59

Surplus

1.0%

74

Green

London Borough of
Haringey Pension
Fund

Surplus

3.1%

39

Surplus

1.7%

33

Green

London Borough of
Harrow Pension
Fund

Surplus

4.1%

84

Surplus

0.5%

85

Green

London Borough of
Havering Pension
Fund

2 (80)

3.7%

65

6.9%

1.1%

66

Green

London Borough of
Hillingdon Pension
Fund

3 (83)

4.0%

80

5.3%

0.6%

83

Green

London Borough of
Hounslow Pension
Fund

Surplus

3.7%

67

Surplus

1.1%

72

Green

London Borough of
Lambeth Pension
Fund

Surplus

2.7%

19

Surplus

2.5%

12

Green

London Borough of
Lewisham Pension
Fund

Surplus

3.4%

51

Surplus

1.2%

65

Green

London Borough of
Merton Pension
Fund

Surplus

4.0%

81

Surplus

0.9%

76

Green

London Borough of
Newham Pension
Fund

Surplus

4.0%

79

Surplus

0.6%

82

Green

London Borough of
Redbridge Pension
Fund

Surplus

4.3%

86

Surplus

0.6%

84

Amber

Pa497e 179



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Deficit . Deficit
. . Required Repayment Return
Pension fund period recovery
return/(rank) shortfall scope/(rank)

(rank) plan
g‘;ﬁ‘t’ﬁxa'?l‘:mugh cif Surplus  25% 13 Surplus  23% 15  Green
London Borough of
Tower Hamlets Surplus 2.0% 4 Surplus 3.1% 2 Green
Pension Fund

10 (85) 3.8% 71 5.7% 1.1% 70  Green
London Pensions
Fund Authority Surplus 3.1% 35 Surplus 2.2% 16 Green
Pension Fund

Surplus 3.7% 64 Surplus 1.0% 73  Green
';‘3:3”‘ FEEE Surplus ~ 2.9% 26  Surplus  19% 22  Green
North VEIETE Surplus 3.0% 28 Surplus 1.3% 54  Green
Pension Fund
Northamptonshire c g
Pension Fund Surplus 3.0% 30 Surplus 2.0% 21 Green
Nottinghamshire
County Council Surplus 3.8% 69 Surplus 1.1% 71 Green
Pension Fund
Oxfordshire County
Council Pension Surplus 3.6% 62 Surplus 1.3% 60 Green
Fund
Powys County
Council Pension Surplus 3.5% 54 Surplus 1.2% 63  Green
Fund
Rhondda Cynon Taf
County Borough o o
Council Pension Surplus 3.2% 41 Surplus 1.4% 50 Green
Fund
Royal Borough of
Greenwich Pension Surplus 4.1% 82 Surplus 0.8% 80 Green
Fund
Royal Borough of
Kensington and a a
Chelsea Pension Surplus 2.7% 17 Surplus 2.5% 13  Green
Fund
Royal Borough of
Kingston-Upon- o o
Thames Pension Surplus 3.1% 36 Surplus 1.6% 40 Green
Fund
Royal County of
Berkshire Pension 12 (86) 4.2% 85 3.3% 1.2% 64  Green
Fund

_ Surplus 3.8% 75 Surplus 1.3% 59  Green
Somerset County
Council Pension Surplus 3.6% 61 Surplus 2.6% 10 Green

Fund

Page 180
g 48



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Deficit Required Repayment Return Deficit
Pension fund period 9 pay recovery
(rank) return/(rank)  shortfall scope/(rank) plan
South Yorkshire Suplus  31% 40 Surplus  17% 37 Green
g;anf;?gispgﬁd Surplus 1.9% 2 Surplus 2.9% 4  Green
Eﬂgglk S Surplus 2.7% 18 Surplus 1.7% 36 Green
Elljrr]rgy FEUSEL Surplus 3.7% 68 Surplus 1.1% 67 Green
Sution Pension Suplus  3.3% 48 Surplus  15% 42 Green
;ﬁﬁzs"de Pension Surplus 3.8% 70 Surplus 1.4% 49 Green
;ﬁ;izzd’:m%ar Surplus 3.2% 42 Surplus 1.5% 45  Green
\I;Veanns?snwlc;ﬁ?‘founcﬂ Surplus 21% 7 Surplus 2.7% 6 Green
parucksnire Surplus 30% 33 Surplus  1.8% 31 Green
postMiclands Surplus  2.9% 27  Surplus  19% 26  Green
West Sussex County
Council Pension Surplus 1.8% 1 Surplus 2.6% 9 Green
Fund
Do YOSl Surplus ~ 3.8% 74  Surplus  12% 62 Green
\Ié\llj':(sjh're Pension Surplus 3.0% 34 Surplus 1.6% 39 Green
- Surplus 3.6% 58 Surplus 1.7% 34  Green
SIS N/A NA  NA N/A NA  NA  NA

Closed Fund

Long term cost efficiency measures — proposed future metrics
D.38 GAD propose introducing two new metrics to consider if funds are:

a. Utilising surpluses too quickly

b. Retaining “large” surpluses

Surplus retention: contributions from funds in surplus could lead to too great a
funding risk in the future (not utilising surpluses too quickly)

D.39 The fund would need to pay sufficient contributions after allowing for future costs of accrual, such
that either:

Avg ER cont rate paid — ER SCR on GAD's best estimate basis > 0

Paég)e 181



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

D.40

D.41

D.42

Or where
Avg ER cont rate paid — ER SCR on GAD’s best estimate basis < 0

The implied surplus sharing period on GAD’s best estimate basis was found by solving the following
equation for x:

- Surplus on GAD’s best estimate basis
A = Annual deduction to GAD’s best estimate ER SCR

Where:

e xis the implied surplus sharing period.

(1+1) 1

e 3, is a continuous annuity over x years at the rate of interest equal to (1ro)

e iis the nominal discount rate assumption on the standardised best estimate basis.
e e is the general earnings inflation assumption on the standardised best estimate basis.
e The surplus on the standardised best estimate basis is as at 31 March 2022

e The average employer contribution rate is for the years 2023/24 — 2025/26, allowing for both
contributions paid as a percentage of salary and fixed monetary contributions into the fund
where deficit contributions are fixed (that is, the fixed monetary contributions, if any, have
been converted so that they are quoted as a percentage of salary roll).

e The employer standard contribution rate on the best estimate basis is for the 2023/24 —
2025/26. It is assumed that the standard contribution rate is equal to the future cost of
accrual of that fund.

Funds flag green where:
> the difference in contribution is greater than zero; or

> the difference in contributions is less than zero and the implied surplus sharing is greater than 10
years.

Otherwise, the funds are flagged amber.

Surplus retention: proposed approach to consider if funds are retaining too much
surplus

GAD will adopt a three-step approach:
1. Identify the highest funded funds, considering both the local bases and on a standard basis

2. ldentify those funds which are relatively well funded, on the local and standard basis, and are
also paying relatively high contributions

3. For those funds identified in steps one to two, we would undertake qualitative analysis, for
example considering how contribution rates have evolved since the previous valuation and
any stated rationale behind the approach adopted.

Steps one to three aim to identify funds which are exceptionally well funded, or those which are
relatively well funded and paying relatively high contributions. We propose considering results on
two bases, initially using the SAB funding level to provide a consistent basis. However as this is not
a funding basis we will also consider the position on the local funding basis. The funds identified in

Page 182
g 50



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

steps one to three will not raise an immediate flag as we also wish to consider any other relevant
circumstances and the decision-making process.

D.43 We would then engage with any funds identified from this process to discuss any concerns before
deciding which funds to flag.

Pa5q1e 183



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Appendix E: ALM

Why perform an Asset Liability Modelling (ALM) exercise?

E.1

E.2

E.3

E.4

E.5

E.6

An ALM exercise allows us to simultaneously project the assets and liabilities of the scheme under a
range of simulations (known as stochastic economic scenarios), to investigate possible outcomes for
key variables and metrics. Modelling the scheme in this way allows us to understand not only
central, expected outcomes but also the wider range of possible outcomes and associated
probabilities.

A common use of ALM studies is to help pension scheme managers and sponsors determine
investment, contribution and funding policy by illustrating the impact of changing policy on key
variables, such as the funding level (i.e. ratio of assets to liabilities) of the scheme under a range of
scenarios.

For this piece of work, we modelled the whole LGPS Scheme rather than individual funds and our
focus was on variation in the employer contribution rates and funding level over time. We also
analysed the impact of two potential surplus strategies (“surplus buffer” and “stability mechanism”),
as a broad measure of long term cost efficiency. We are primarily interested in the extent to which
contribution rates can vary from current levels as well as the projection of funding levels.
Consequently, we have assumed that the current investment policy remains in place and is constant
over the projection period.

Stochastic modelling techniques allow us to simulate a large number of economic scenarios — with
different outturns and paths of key parameters and variables. The simulations are calibrated to
reflect views on expected returns and relative behaviours between key variables, but importantly
include an element of randomness in order to capture volatility observed in financial markets. By
running the scenario generator many times, the spread of different possible outcomes can be
illustrated, and the probability of certain outcomes can be estimated.

As with all models, the outcomes are a function of the assumptions adopted, and the outcomes are
not intended to be predictors of the future but are illustrations of the range of possible outcomes. It is
highly unlikely that the assumptions made will be borne out in practice and adjustments might be
made to manage any pressures that arise. Actual future experience could be more extreme than any
of the outcomes shown.

Our study models changes in economic outcomes only — we have not looked at any other possible
changes such as demographic changes, including mortality, nor management changes such as
changes to the investment approach or the impacts of climate change.

Methodology

E.7

E.8

E.9

Our model projects the entire Scheme and assumes that the asset strategy and demographic future
valuation assumptions are an average of those used for the individual funds as at 31 March 2022. In
practice, schemes are likely to have specific asset strategies and valuation assumptions, for
example the discount rate will have regard to the expected return for each fund.

Projected contribution rates are determined based on the liability and asset values at each future
triennial valuation and these are assumed to remain consistent for the following three years.

To project the development of the scheme we must make assumptions about the following:

> Expected new entrants into the scheme

Page 184
52



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

> The way in which liabilities will evolve — for example, the rate at which current active liabilities
“migrate” to being non-active (i.e. deferred/pensioner liabilities) over time or the extent to which
liabilities are increased by CPI inflation and wage inflation at each point in time

> The way in which liabilities are assessed, and

> The way in which contributions are determined — both in respect of ongoing accrual and in
respect of any surplus or deficit that arises.

E.10 Any change to manage up or down employer contribution rates in the short term do not alter the long
term cost of the scheme (which depends on the level of scheme benefits and scheme experience,
including asset returns) and more generally might have some other less desirable outcomes, for
example:
> increasing the length of recovery periods transfers costs onto future generations

> choosing a more return seeking investment strategy would be expected to increase volatility and
risk

> maintaining stable contributions when in surplus may result in a greater burden falling on current
tax payers

Assumptions

E.11 An ALM produces a broader amount of information than a traditional deterministic actuarial
valuation. Consequently, we need to make more assumptions to simplify the calculations involved in
the projections and make it practical to analyse all the key outcomes we are interested in.

E.12 The box below provides details on the key assumptions made in respect of the ALM.

Key assumptions made in the ALM

For the purpose of assessing liabilities and determining contribution rates, assumptions are needed
to carry out an actuarial valuation at each future point in time. In our modelling we have assumed
that:

> The discount rate is set based on a constant margin above the expected yield on
government bonds (gilts).

> The length of the recovery period is reset at each valuation, with deficit being spread
over a time horizon of 20 years (based on typical historical recovery periods in the
scheme).

> New entrants assumption — the scheme’s active membership is assumed to remain
stable over time

> The Scheme investment strategy is assumed to remain stable i.e. we assume the assets
are rebalanced each year to the same allocation as that in the 2022 valuation.

> Demographic experience is as assumed in the underlying GAD LGPS 2022 valuation

E.13 To project the development of the scheme we must make assumptions about the key economic
variables and financial assumptions for example price inflation, salary growth and returns on assets
held. These are determined from the economic scenario generator (ESG).

Pa%e 185



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

E.14

E.15

E.16

E.17

The ESG was provided by Moody’s, with a calibration date of 31 March 2023, and reflected the
market expectations at that time. The ESG is calibrated to conditions at that moment in time and
Moody’s expectations for the future and specifies how key economic variables may vary
(stochastically, according to probability distributions) in future. Moody’s ESG calibration is only one
view of possible future experience. Different assumptions would lead to different results.

GAD made the following adjustments:

> As the calibration was as at 31 March 2023 and the individual fund valuations were as at 31
March 2022, asset returns for the 2022/23 scheme year were introduced to allow for the known
financial outcomes and ensuring that the asset value as at 31 March 2023 is consistent with
publicly available SF3 data

> CPI simulations are derived based on projected RPI simulations less a margin. The margin, set
at 1.15% at 31 March 2023, is based on GAD’s house view for the current difference between
RPI and CPI and is expected to reduce to 0.1% at 2030, to reflect the RPI reforms which are
expected to be implemented in 2030.

The annualised mean return over the projection period is 6.7%. The expected return in the ALM is in
line with GAD’s expectation based on the economic environment as at 31 March 2023.

Chart E.1 shows the distribution of the annualised portfolio returns over the twenty-year period and
compares the projection to that of the 2016 and 2019 ALM exercises. The distributions of the returns
show:

> Current expectations are better than those at the previous exercises, which is expected due to
the change in the economic outlook since the previous valuations.

> Volatility in projected returns, even when annualised over a 20 year period. The chart illustrates
that whilst annualised returns are mainly clustered between 0% and 14%, with the mean just
below 7%, significant risks of low returns over the 20-year period remain but so does the upside
potential.

Chart E1: Distribution of annualised nominal investment returns

% of scenarios

0%
8%
6%
4%
2%
0%

-6% -4% -2% 0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14% 16% 18% 20%

Return (%pa)
=——2016 =—2019 =—2022

Page 186
J 54



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Appendix F: Data Provided

F.1

F.2

F.3

F.4

F.5

F.6

At the request of MHCLG, GAD collected data from each fund’s 2022 valuation via the fund
actuaries. These actuarial funding valuations were conducted by four firms of actuarial advisors:

> Aon

> Barnett Waddingham
> Hymans Robertson
> Mercer

Data was received from the relevant firm of actuarial advisors for all 87 pension funds and included
additional information provided to the fund actuaries by administrators in respect of their fund’s
employers.

Limited checks, consisting of spot checks to make sure that data entries appear sensible, have been
performed by GAD and the data received appears to be of sufficient quality for the purpose of
analysing the 2022 valuation results. These checks do not represent a full, independent audit of the
data supplied. The analysis contained in this report relies on the general completeness and
accuracy of the information supplied by the administering authority or their firms of actuarial
advisors.

In addition, data has been collated from the ‘Local government pension scheme funds local authority
data’, which is published annually by MHCLG at Local government pension scheme funds for
England and Wales: 2022 to 2023 - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk). This published data may be
referred to elsewhere as SF3 statistics.

Unless otherwise stated the data detailed above has been used to inform the analysis contained in
the LGPS England and Wales section 13 2022 Report.

The information provided to GAD is, in many instances, more detailed than that provided in the
actuarial valuation reports.

Pa%e 187



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Data specification
1) Membership Data

Data split by gender

a) Active Members

Number of Members
Unweighted average age (to 2dp)

Total rate of annual actual pensionable pay at 31
March 2022 and 31 March 2019 (2014 pay definition)

b) Deferred Member

Number of members
Unweighted average age (to 2dp)

Total annual preserved pension revalued to 31 March
2022 for both 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2019.

Note this should exclude undecided members.

c) Pensioners (former members)

Number of Members
Unweighted average age (to 2dp)

Total annual pensions in payment at 31 March 2022
and 31 March 2019

d) Pensioners (dependants including partners
and children)

Number of Members

Average age (weighted as appropriate)

Total annual pensions in payment at 31 March 2022
and 31 March 2019

2) Financial Assumptions

Assumptions used to value the liabilities of the most secure employers (e.g. local authorities)

a) Specify what proportion of the liabilities is calculated using the assumptions below

b) Provide assumptions used for past service
liabilities, these have been given for both as at
31 March 2022 and 31 March 2019.

Nominal discount rate (pre & post retirement
separately if applicable)

RPI inflation

CPl inflation rate

Earnings inflation

c) Provide assumptions used for future
contributions, these have been given for both as
at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2019.

Nominal discount rate (pre & post retirement
separately if applicable)

RPI inflation

CPl inflation rate

Earnings inflation

d) Short term assumptions used in the valuation (if
applicable)

CPI
Salary Increases
Discount Rate

e) Maximum deficit recovery period

f) Minimum surplus spreading period

g) Likelihood of success of valuation funding plan on the previous valuation time horizon (where a fund is

in deficit at the valuation date)

Page 188
g 56




Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

3) Demographic Assumptions

Rates to be provided at sample ages split by gender
Each could be split further in Group 1, Group 2, Group 3, Group 4, and Group 5

Pensioner members aged 65 (for members retiring on normal
health) (to 2dp) (with mortality improvements)

Pensioner members aged 65 (for members retiring on normal

a) Assumed life expectancy for health) (to 2dp) (without mortality improvements)
members retiring in

normal health Active / deferred members at age 65 if they are currently aged 45

(to 2dp) (with mortality improvements)

Active / deferred members at age 65 if they are currently aged 45
(to 2dp) (without mortality improvements)

Pre 2008 pension Commutation Assumptions (as % of maximum
lump sum allowed under HMRC rules).

Post 2008 pension Commutation Assumptions (as % of maximum
lump sum allowed under HMRC rules).

b) Commutation

4) ASSETS

These are split to provide information for 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2019

a) Market value of assets

b) Value of assets used in the valuation

¢) Do you use a smoothed asset value in the valuation? If yes please attach an explanation

d) Were there any “asset transfer” arrangements, as classified in the 2019 S13 report (page 59) for local
authorities? If so please include

Proportion of assets held in  Proportion of bonds which are fixed
Bonds interest government bonds

Proportion of bonds which are fixed
interest non-government bonds
(investment grade)

Proportion of bonds which are fixed
interest non-government bonds (high
yield)

Proportion of bonds which are
inflation linked bonds

Proportion of assets held in  Proportion of equities which are UK
Equities equities
Proportion of equities which are
overseas equities
Proportion of equities which are
unquoted or private equities

e) Actual Asset Distribution split
into the following:

Proportion of assets held in Property

Proportion of assets held in Deferred or immediate fully insured
annuities

Proportion of assets held in Hedge funds

Proportion of assets held in Cash and net current assets

Proportion of assets held in ABC arrangements

Proportion of assets held in Infrastructure — debt type

Pagle 189




Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Proportion of assets held in Infrastructure® — equity type

Proportion of assets held in Multi asset funds (examples include
diversified growth funds, managed funds, balanced funds, multi
asset credit or absolute returns)

Proportion of assets held in “Other” investments — defensive

Proportion of assets held in “Other” investments — return seeking

f) Weighted best estimate return

Proportion of assets held in:
Bonds
g) Strategic asset distribution (if Equities
significantly different to actual Property
asset Infrastructure
distribution) Cash and current assets
Other investments — defensive
Other investments — return seeking

h) Weighted best estimate return (strategic asset distribution)

5) LIABILITIES AND FUTURE CONTRIBUTION RATE

These are split to provide information for 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2019

a) Past service liability — split between Actives, Deferred,
Pensioners and Total

b) Funding level

c¢) Surplus / deficit

d) Assumed member contribution yield

e) Total employer contributions paid in respect of

i) Local Assumptions 2022/23

f) Other notable events that have occurred in respect of

2022/23

g) Other notable Post valuation events that have been
considered as part of the 2022 valuation (including
asset transfer or large contributions not covered
in 4d)

a) Past service liability — split between Actives, Deferred,
Pensioners and Total
ii) SAB Standardised Basis b) Funding level
¢) Surplus / deficit
d) SAB future service costs (excluding expenses) %

6) EMERGING ISSUES AND ACADEMIES

a) Is there a comment in your report that climate change is implicitly included in the funding basis

b) Is climate change acknowledged in your FSS

c) The next section is split for 4 distinct climate Funding level at 31 March 2042
scenarios, Base case, Paris scenario, High Success percentage at 31 March 2042
temperature scenario, Alternative scenario (if Nominal discount rate, pre and post retirement
applicable) RPI inflation

Page 190
g 58




Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

CPI inflation rate
Earnings inflation
Change in assumptions volatility

d) General allowances made for COVID-19 in 2022 valuation.

7) Post 2014 scheme

a) Assumption for members in 50/50 scheme (if a proportion of members include details in 7b below)

b) Proportion of members assumed to be in 50/50 scheme

8) Documentation required

Valuation Report @ 31 March 2022

Relevant related reports

Compliance Extract

Statement of Investment Strategy

Funding Strategy Statement

Other

ALTERNATIVE FINANCIAL ASSUMPTIONS

Specify where a significant proportion of employer liabilities have been valued using alternative
assumptions — provided as above in section (2) above.

Pa%e 191




Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Appendix G: Assumptions

G.1 Each piece of analysis contained in the main report is based on one of three sets of assumptions:

> The local fund assumptions, as used in the fund’s 2022 actuarial valuation

> The SAB standardised set of assumptions, or SAB standard basis: this is used as a comparator
between funds but is not market related

> A best estimate set of assumptions: this is a standardised market consistent basis which is used
to assess potential impacts to solvency and long term cost efficiency.

G.2 Details of local fund assumptions can be found in each fund’s actuarial valuation report as at 31
March 2022. Details of the SAB standard basis and the standardised best estimate basis can be

found in the table below.

Table G1: SAB standard basis and best estimate basis

Assumption

SAB standard basis

Best Estimate basis

Methodology

Projected Unit Methodology with 1
year control period

Projected Unit Methodology with 1
year control period

Rate of pension increases

2% per annum

2.4% per annum

Public sector earnings
growth

3.5% per annum

3.9% per annum

Discount rate

4.45% per annum

4.8% per annum

Changes to State Pension
Age (SPA)

As legislated

As legislated

Pensioner Baseline
mortality

Set locally based on Fund
experience

Set locally based on Fund
experience

Mortality improvements

Core CMI_2021 (no allowance for
2020 and 2021 mortality data) with
long term reduction in mortality

Improvements in line with those
underlying the ONS 2020-based
principal population projections for

rates of 1.5% per annum the UK
. Set locally based on Fund Set locally based on Fund
Age retirement : .
experience experience

Il health retirement rates

Set locally based on Fund
experience

Set locally based on Fund
experience

Withdrawal rates

Set locally based on Fund
experience

Set locally based on Fund
experience

Death before retirement
rates

Set locally based on Fund
experience

Set locally based on Fund
experience

Promotional salary scales

None

As set out in GAD’s 2020 valuation

Commutation

SAB future service cost
assumption of 65% of the
maximum allowable amount

As set out in GAD’s 2020 valuation

Page 192
g 60



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Assumption SAB standard basis Best Estimate basis

Family statistics

Set locally based on Fund Set locally based on Fund
experience experience

G.3

G4

The financial assumptions for the best estimate basis are based on GAD’s neutral assumptions for
long term inflation measures and asset returns, and the split of LGPS assets held, as at 31 March
2022. These neutral assumptions are not deliberately optimistic nor pessimistic and do not
incorporate adjustments to reflect any desired outcome. We believe there is around a 50% chance
of outcomes being better and a 50% chance of outcomes being worse than these assumptions
imply, based on market conditions as at 31 March 2022.

Future asset returns are uncertain and there is a wide range of reasonable views on what future
asset returns will be and therefore the best estimate discount rate should be. We have presented
GAD’s neutral view above, but there are other reasonable best estimate bases which may give
materially different results.

Pabg1e 193



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Appendix H: Section 13 of the Public
Service Pensions Act 2013

13 Employer contributions in funded schemes

(1) This section applies in relation to a scheme under section 1 which is a defined benefits scheme with a
pension fund.

(2) Scheme regulations must provide for the rate of employer contributions to be set at an appropriate level
to ensure

(a) the solvency of the pension fund, and
(b) the long term cost efficiency of the scheme, so far as relating to the pension fund.
(3) For that purpose, scheme regulations must require actuarial valuations of the pension fund.

(4) Where an actuarial valuation under subsection (3) has taken place, a person appointed by the
responsible authority is to report on whether the following aims are achieved

(a) the valuation is in accordance with the scheme regulations

(b) the valuation has been carried out in a way which is not inconsistent with other valuations under
subsection (3)

(c) the rate of employer contributions is set as specified in subsection (2).

(5) A report under subsection (4) must be published and a copy must be sent to the scheme manager and
(if different) the responsible authority.

(6) If a report under subsection (4) states that, in the view of the person making the report, any of the aims
in that subsection has not been achieved

(a) the report may recommend remedial steps

(b) the scheme manager must
i. take such remedial steps as the scheme manager considers appropriate, and
ii. publish details of those steps and the reasons for taking them

(c) the responsible authority may
i.  require the scheme manager to report on progress in taking remedial steps

ii. direct the scheme manager to take such remedial steps as the responsible authority
considers appropriate.

(7) The person appointed under subsection (4) must, in the view of the responsible authority, be
appropriately qualified.

The section of the legislation can be viewed on legislation.gov.uk, Public Service Pensions Act 2013

Page 194
J 62



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

Appendix I: Extracts from other
relevant regulations

Regulations 58 and 62 of ‘The Local Government Pension Scheme
Regulations 2013’

Funding strategy statement (Regulation 58)

(1) An administering authority must, after consultation with such persons as it considers appropriate,
prepare, maintain and publish a written statement setting out its funding strategy.

(2) The statement must be published no later than 31st March 2015.

(3) The authority must keep the statement under review and, after consultation with such persons as it
considers appropriate, make such revisions as are appropriate following a material change in its policy
set out in the statement, and if revisions are made, publish the statement as revised.

(4) In preparing, maintaining and reviewing the statement, the administering authority must have regard to

(a) the guidance set out in the document published in October 2012 by CIPFA, the Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy and called “Preparing and Maintaining a Funding
Strategy Statement in the Local Government Pension Scheme 2012” and
(b) the current version of the investment strategy under regulation 7 (investment strategy statement)
of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations
2016.
Actuarial valuations of pension funds (Regulation 62)

(1) An administering authority must obtain

(a) an actuarial valuation of the assets and liabilities of each of its pension funds as at 31st March
2016 and on 31st March in every third year afterwards

(b) a report by an actuary in respect of the valuation, and
(c) arates and adjustments certificate prepared by an actuary.

(2) Each of those documents must be obtained before the first anniversary of the date (“the valuation date”)
as at which the valuation is made or such later date as the Secretary of State may agree.

(3) A report under paragraph (1)(b) must contain a statement of the demographic assumptions used in
making the valuation and the statement must show how the assumptions relate to the events which
have actually occurred in relation to members of the Scheme since the last valuation.

(4) A rates and adjustments certificate is a certificate specifying

(a) the primary rate of the employer’s contribution and

(b) the secondary rate of the employer’s contribution,

Pab%e 195



Appendices to the 2022 section 13 review

for each year of the period of three years beginning with 1st April in the year following that in which the
valuation date falls.

(5) The primary rate of an employer’s contribution is the amount in respect of the cost of future accruals
which, in the actuary’s opinion, should be paid to a fund by all bodies whose employees contribute to it
so as to secure its solvency, expressed as a percentage of the pay of their employees who are active
members.

(6) The actuary must have regard to-

(a) the existing and prospective liabilities arising from circumstances common to all those bodies

(b) the desirability of maintaining as nearly constant a primary rate as possible

(c) the current version of the administering authority’s funding strategy mentioned in regulation 58
(funding strategy statements) and

(d) the requirement to secure the solvency of the pension fund and the long term cost efficiency of
the Scheme, so far as relating to the pension fund.

(7) The secondary rate of an employer’s contributions is any percentage or amount by which, in the
actuary’s opinion, contributions at the primary rate should, in the case of a Scheme employer, be
increased or reduced by reason of any circumstances peculiar to that employer.

(8) A rates and adjustments certificate must contain a statement of the assumptions on which the certificate
is given as respects

(a) the number of members who will become entitled to payment of pensions under the provisions of
the Scheme and

(b) the amount of the liabilities arising in respect of such members
during the period covered by the certificate.
(9) The administering authority must provide the actuary preparing a valuation or a rates and adjustments

certificate with the consolidated revenue account of the fund and such other information as the actuary
requests.

Page 196
g 64



Government
Actuary’s
Department

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

srunding Analysis Report in conjunction with the review of
~LGPS fund valuations as at 31 March 2022 under

“Section 13

Fiona Dunsire FIA and Aidan Smith FIA
14 August 2024

The Government Actuary’s Department is proud to be accredited under
the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries’ Quality Assurance Scheme.
Our website describes the standards we apply.




86T abed

Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Funding Analysis report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

Funding levels

The aggregate scheme funding level using the
local funding bases (outlined in section 5) has
increased from 98% in 2019 to 106% at 2022.
Over this period assets have generally
performed well.

There is considerable variation in funding
levels across individual funds. Around 30% of
funds have a funding level below 100% (so the
value of their assets is less than the value of
their liabilities).

Assumptions (local
funding bases)

Past service discount rates and inflation
assumptions have both increased on average
between 2019 and 2022 (see section 3).

Life expectancy assumptions have remained
broadly unchanged on average between 2019
and 2022 (see section 4).

Investments

On average there has been a small shift from
defensive assets to return seeking assets
between 2019 and 2022 (see section 7).

Membership

The number of members in the LGPS has
increased by 300,000 since 2019 (section 2).
The 10 largest funds have 35% of all
members.

Employer contribution rates

The average primary contribution rate to cover future benefit accruals has increased from 18.6%
to 19.8% pay following the 2022 valuations (section 6). Secondary contribution rates in respect of
surplus or deficit have decreased on average reflecting the better overall funding position.




66T obed
© © N o g »» WD

Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Funding Analysis report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

Contents

INtrodUCHION.......ceeeeee e e e e mnns

SN

Membership Data..........ccooemirmiii e
Financial Assumptions ........ccccooimeciiimeeinineannnns
Post Retirement Mortality ..........cccceiiiieiiininnnnnnes
Funding levels ...
Employer contribution rates..........cccovveiivennnennns
Investments.........coociiiiimii s
Net cashflow position..........cocceeirieciiiiciiiies

Further information .......couvmieiieiiiicieececrcereeaes



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Funding Analysis report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

1.

1.1

1.2

00z abed

1.3

1.4

Introduction

The Government Actuary has been appointed by the
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
(MHCLG) to report under section 13 of the Public Service
Pensions Act 2013 in connection with the actuarial
valuations of the 87 funds in the Local Government
Pension Scheme in England and Wales (LGPS).

This report contains our analysis of information from the
actuarial valuations of the funds in the LGPS as at 31
March 2022. It is largely factual, background information
and is intended to supplement the analysis in our main
section 13 report published on 14 August 2024. It may be
read in conjunction with that report or as a standalone
paper.

This paper will be of relevance to LGPS stakeholders
including MHCLG, administering authorities and other
employers, actuaries performing valuations for the funds
within the LGPS, the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board
(SAB), HM Treasury (HMT) and the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).

The 2022 data used in this report comes from three
sources:

e Data available from individual funds’ 2022 valuation
reports

e Additional data from the 2022 actuarial valuations
provided by funds and their actuarial advisors

1.5

e Data published annually by MHCLG in their “Local
government pension scheme funds local authority
data”; commonly referred to as SF3 statistics

We have used data from the 2019 section 13 report
published in 2021 as a comparator.

Most of our analysis is based on all 87 funds in the LGPS.
However, in some cases one or both of the Environment
Agency Funds have been excluded, either because

the Environment Agency Closed Fund does not have any
active members or where data is not available. We have
noted where this is the case.

Compliance

1.6

1.7

1.8

This report has been prepared in accordance with the
applicable Technical Actuarial Standard: TAS 100 issued
by the Financial Reporting Council (FRC). The FRC sets
technical standards for actuarial work in the UK.

Any checks that GAD has made on the data used in this
report do not represent a full independent audit of the data
supplied. In particular, GAD has relied on the general
completeness and accuracy of the information without
independent verification.

GAD has no liability to any person or third party for any act
or omission taken, either in whole or in part, on the basis
of this report.



TOg abed

Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Funding Analysis report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

2.

2.1

2.2

Membership Data

The total number of member records in the LGPS as at
31 March 2022 was 6.4 million which was an increase
of around 300,000 from 31 March 2019. A single
individual may have multiple member records in the
LGPS. For example, they may have worked for
different LGPS employers and not aggregated their
service. Throughout this report, we analyse member
records rather than individual members.

The following chart shows the overall member record
split by gender and member type.

Chart 1: Number of active, deferred, pensioner and
dependent member records split by gender in 2022 and 2019
(thousands)

<

<X

()
- -
N~ 0O
.

1,811

1,439

170
167

Actives Deferred Pensioners Dependants

m Males, 2019
Females, 2019

mMales, 2022
HFemales, 2022

2.3

24

2.5

2.7

Member records were not provided separately for male
and female members by the 13 pension funds advised
by Mercer. Chart 1 assumes that the gender distribution
for these 13 funds is the same as the gender
distribution across the other LGPS funds. The same
approach is adopted for the average ages in table 1
below.

In chart 1, ‘Pensioners’ refers to former members and
‘Dependants’ to the partners and children of former
members currently in receipt of a LGPS pension.

In aggregate, there is a greater increase in the number
of female members than male members across all
scheme categories.

The average number of member records for an
individual fund in 2022 is 73,000 (compared to 69,100
in 2019). There is significant variance in member
records between funds, with the smallest open fund
having a total membership of 13,000 records and the
largest fund having a total membership of 379,600
records. Chart 2 illustrates this variance.

As in 2019, the 10 largest funds in the LGPS comprise
about 35% of the total membership.



20z abed

Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Funding Analysis report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

Chart 2: Funds split by number of member records in 2022

Number of funds

45
40
35
30
25
20
15
10

5

0

10 to 50 50 to 100 100 to 150 150 to 400
Number of members (thousands)

Average ages

2.8 The average age of all member categories has
increased apart from dependants which decreased by
0.2 years. The overall average age of members
increased by 0.8 years.

Table 1: Average age of active, deferred, pensioner and
dependent member records in 2019 and 2022

Average age (years)
Member category

2019 2022
Actives 45.9 46.0
Deferred 47.0 47.6
Pensioners 711 71.4
Dependants 73.1 72.9
Overall 53.7 54.5

2.9 The average age of an individual LGPS member record
in each of the four member categories is shown in table
1. The overall figure shows the average unweighted
age across all member categories based on data for all
funds.



jab)
«Q
®
N
o
w

Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Funding Analysis report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

3.

3.1

Financial Assumptions

Financial assumptions are a key driver of funding levels
in the LGPS. There is variation between the financial
assumptions used by individual funds to value their past
service liabilities. Some variation is to be expected and
may reflect differences in circumstances (for example,
different investment strategies, types of employers and
attitudes to risk) and differences in views of unknown
future experience (for example future investment
returns). The range of assumptions, excluding the
Environment Agency Closed Fund, is given below:

Table 2: Minimum, maximum and average rates (% a year)
—u for key financial assumptions in 2022 and 2019 (excluding
Environment Agency Closed Fund)

Minimum Maximum Average*
2019 2022 2019 2022 2019 2022
Past service
discount rate 31% 31% 53% 54% 4.1% 4.3%
E]‘;i‘l;q:ggs 23% 27% 39% 46% 32% 3.7%
CPl inflation 20% 23% 26% 31% 24% 2.8%
Past service
discount rate 0.7% 06% 26% 24% 1.8% 1.5%

net of CPI

* Average weighted by funds’ past service liabilities.

3.2

Many funds used the same financial assumptions when
calculating past service liabilities and future contribution
rates, although this was not the case for funds advised
by Mercer. Mercer’'s approach allows for contributions

3.3

3.4

3.5

made after the valuation date receiving a future
investment return that is not directly linked to market
conditions at the valuation date. This resulted in a
higher discount rate assumption for setting future
contribution rates than used to value past service
liabilities in the 2022 valuations. Hymans Robertson
use an asset liability model to set contribution rates by
analysing the probability of success over a projection
period. Therefore, future contribution rates are not set
deterministically using a discount rate, although
projected liabilities are valued consistently with past
service liabilities.

Table 2 opposite summarises the minimum, maximum
and average of four key financial assumptions for the
LGPS and includes comparison with the corresponding
assumptions for the 2019 valuations. Chart 3 shows the
cumulative frequency of the discount rate net of CPI.

The key financial measure in valuing pension scheme
liabilities is the excess of the discount rate above the
inflation assumption. This relationship reflects the
amount by which the return on assets held by a fund is
expected to exceed increases in benefits, which
generally increase by earnings inflation before
retirement or deferment and CPI inflation afterwards. In
general, a higher discount rate net of CPI inflation will
lead to a lower value of liabilities.

Since 2019 discount rates used to value past service
liabilities net of CPI inflation have decreased by 0.3%
on average. In isolation this would increase the value
of past service liabilities and, where the same discount
rate is adopted for future service, the contributions
required for future service.



0z abed

Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13) Local Government Pension Scheme
Funding Analysis report England and Wales

Chart 3: Cumulative frequency of funds’ assumptions for the discount rate net of CPI inflation for past service liabilities (% a
year, excluding Environment Agency Closed Fund)

3.0%
2.5%

2.0%

1.5%

1.0%

0.5%

Annual Percentage

0.0%
0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

-0.5%

-1.0%

-1.5%
Cumulative Frequency

— = Discount Rate net of CPI Inflation (Past Service Liabilities) 2019

Discount Rate net of CPI Inflation (Past Service Liabilities) 2022
Liability Weighted Average 2019 + Liability Weighted Average 2022



G0g abed

Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)

Funding Analysis report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

4. Post Retirement

Mortality

Table 3: Average life expectancy (years) for current and
future normal health pensioners split by gender, assumed
by funds in local valuations in 2019 and 2022 and by GAD

in the 2020 scheme valuation

2019 2022 GAD 2020
average average .
- » Vvaluation
local local

Current normal health
pensioners aged 65 21.7 21.5 21.7
(male)
Future normal health
pensioners from age
65, currently aged 45 23.0 226 233
(male)
Current normal health
pensioners aged 65 24 .1 24 1 24 .1
(female)
Future normal health
pensioners from age o5 7 o5 7 25 6

65, currently aged 45
(female)

*weighted by valuation liabilities

4.1

4.2

Table 3 summarises the average life expectancy
assumptions used for funds’ 2019 and 2022 actuarial
valuations and the GAD’s scheme-wide LGPS
valuation as at 31 March 2020 (the latest whole
scheme valuation, where the cost of LGPS benefits
are evaluated and assessed against the agreed cost
control mechanism, under directions set by HM
Treasury). The average life expectancy assumptions
used in the local 2022 valuations are overall similar to
those used in the 2019 fund valuations and GAD’s
2020 scheme valuation.

However we note that there is variation between
assumptions adopted by funds. This is shown in the
cumulative frequency chart, chart 4, below. The
cumulative frequency chart shows the different life
expectancies assumed by the individual funds.
Diamonds represent liability weighted averages and
circles represent the assumptions used by GAD for
the 2020 whole scheme valuation, as detailed in table
3.



90¢ abed

Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13) Local Government Pension Scheme
Funding Analysis report England and Wales

Chart 4: Cumulative frequency of life expectancy (years) assumed by funds in local valuations in 2022 and by GAD in the 2020
scheme valuation, for current and future normal health pensioners split by gender

30

28
3 R
-O(E _—--—---—.‘-+---- 4
8 rcemm=e™ " 256 25.7 ccmem===’
% ——‘— ) __-———-----—--—-——------’---
o PR ——
= T 241 2441 o
o O 23.3
2 22 22.6
z f’”v o °

21.5 217
20
18
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
Cumulative Frequency

e Current Normal Health Pensioners aged 65 (Males) — Future Normal Health Pensioners from age 65, currently aged 45 (Male)
= ==« Current Normal Health Pensioners aged 65 (Female) = ==« Future Normal Health Pensioners from age 65, currently aged 45 (Female)

+ Liability Weighted Averages ®  GAD 2020 Valuation Assumptions

10



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Funding Analysis report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

4.3

4.4

10z abed

Life expectancies are calculated using post retirement
mortality rates. The assumed post retirement mortality
rates in the 2022 actuarial valuations have a direct
impact on each fund’s liabilities. A high mortality
assumption (i.e. a low life expectancy) will result in a
lower value being placed on the liabilities as benefits
are expected to be paid for a shorter period of time. Life
expectancies for the younger active or deferred
members are higher than for current pensioners, as
they allow for mortality improvements over time.

Some of the differences in the life expectancies will also
be due to the projection methodology used when
allowing for future mortality improvements and the
assumed long term future trend. All funds have based
their future assumptions on a standard actuarial model
produced by the CMI, the CMI 2021 projection model,
but with different parameters used. The CMI 2021
projection model requires users to select certain
parameters, for example the long term rate of mortality
improvement.

11



80¢ abed

Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Funding Analysis report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

5. Funding levels

Chart 5: Number of funds by local funding level in 2019 and
2022

Greater 5
N _
110% 27
o
110% 34
90% 45
o F
100% 20
o s
90% B
70%
to0 . 2
80% O

60% I1

Funding level

to
70%

Less than I 1
60% 0

o

10 20 30 40 50
Number of funds

m2019 m2022

12

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

The funding level is the value of assets divided by the
value of the past service liabilities (i.e. the expected
value of future payments due to members which have
been earned up to the valuation date). A funding level
of 100% means that a fund’s assets are expected to be
sufficient to meet future payments to members which
have been earned up to the valuation date, if the
assumptions used for the valuation were to be borne
out in practice.

The local funding bases are required to incorporate
prudence, i.e. there is intended to be a greater than
50:50 likelihood of actual future experience being better
than the assumptions, in the opinion of the fund
actuary.

The aggregate funding level for the whole scheme has
increased from 98% at 31 March 2019 to 106% at 31
March 2022. Chart 5 shows how the distribution of
funding levels has shifted over the inter-valuation
period, with fewer funds in the 80-90% and 90-100%
bands and more funds in the higher funding level
bands.

Whilst funding levels have improved overall since 2019,
there remains considerable variation between funds.
The highest funding level as at 31 March 2022 was
154% and the lowest funding level was 67%. This is a
wider range than as at 31 March 2019.

The distribution of funding levels by the funds’ total
liability values as at 31 March 2022 is shown in chart 6.



60¢ abed

Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Funding Analysis report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

Chart 6: Relationship between size of fund (using total
liability value) and funding level on local bases

Funding level on local fund basis

5.6

5.7

160%
150%
140%

130% o . ®
120%  ® ° o
° [ ]
110% & 2
o ¢
1000/0-)‘A.— O I I I I CE— CE— CE— —

90%
80%
70%
60%
0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 30
Total liability on local fund basis (£bn)

The shading in chart 6 above shows the changes in the
funding level on a local basis since the 2019 valuation
as indicated by the scale above. We note that on
average funding levels have increased by 8% but there
is considerable variation between funds with the range
being around -2.6% to +30%.

Chart 6 shows that there is no clear trend that funds
with a higher value of liabilities (i.e. larger funds) are
better funded or vice versa. However there appears to
be some correlation with better funded funds having
greater improvements in funding level.

13



0T¢ abed

Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13) Local Government Pension Scheme
Funding Analysis report England and Wales

Chart 7: Number of funds split by primary contribution rate

6 . E m p I Oye r contri b Utio n (% of pay) following the 2022 valuations (excluding

Environment Agency Closed Fund)

rates
40
6.1 This section looks at how employer contribution rates 35
have changed. The primary contribution rate is the
average rate paid by employers to cover future benefit “ 30
accrual. The secondary contribution rate is the S 25
additional contributions required to allow for a deficit or %
a surplus in a fund; these may be negative. In addition 5 20
to employer contribution rates, members contribute to €15
the fund but these rates are based on individual >
members’ salary and do not vary across funds. 10
5
6.2 The rates quoted in table 4 are in respect of the three 7] . . 7]
years following completion of the valuation; i.e. the 0 4ot 6% ¢ 189 ¢ 0% 1 - 049 1
agreed rates following the 2022 valuations will be o s oo o s Cope
payable between April 2023 and March 2926_3. Wg note Primary contribution rate
that average employer rates may change in individual
future years and will also differ for different employers. . o .
6.3 The average primary contribution rate (weighted by
Table 4: Average primary and secondary contribution rates salary) has increased from the 2016 to 2022
(% of pay) following the 2016, 2019 and 2022 valuations valuations, whereas the average secondary
(excluding Environment Agency Closed Fund) weighted by contribution rate (again weighted by salary) has
salary decreased. Details are shown in table 4 opposite.
6.4 Secondary contribution rates are negative where a
2016 2019 2022 fund has decided to reduce its surplus through lower
contributions. In such cases, the total contributions
Primary contribution rate 16.8% 18.6% 19.8% paid (being the primary rate plus the negative
Secondary contribution rate secondary rgte) wi.II be Iowe.r than the expected cost of
in respect of surplus or deficit 6.3% 3.7% 1.0% future benefits (being the primary rate).
Total 23.1% 22.3% 20.8% 6.5 There was some variation in primary contribution rates

as shown in chart 7. All funds set primary contribution

14



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13) Local Government Pension Scheme

TT¢ abed

Funding Analysis report England and Wales
rates between 14% and 26% of pay with around 80% Chart 8: Number of funds split by average secondary
of funds setting contribution rates between 18% and contribution rate (% of pay) following the 2022 valuations

[0)
22% of pay. 20
6.6 The decrease in average secondary contribution rates
reflects the improvement in the scheme’s overall 25
funding position. Funding positions vary across funds,

and Chart 8 shows the distribution of average g 20
secondary contribution rates for individual funds z
following the 2022 valuations. We note that there is B 15
more variation in the distribution of secondary s e
contributions than primary contributions. € 10
P4
15
. 13 »
! 5
0 12 2 2 2

-8% to -6%to -4% to -2% to 0%to 2%to 4%to 6%to 8%to 10% to
6% 4% -2% 0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12%

Secondary contribution rate

15



ZT¢ abed

Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Funding Analysis report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

7. Investments

Chart 9: The proportion of total LGPS assets in return
seeking and defensive asset classes by market value at 31
March 2019 and 2022

90%

80%

70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%

0%

Return Seeking Assets Defensive Assets

m2019 m2022

71 Chart 9 shows the total LGPS asset values split by
return seeking and defensive assets as at 31 March
2019 and 31 March 2022. There has been a shift
towards return seeking assets over this period, a

reversal of the change seen between 2016 and 2019.

7.2 The allocation of asset classes to return seeking and
defensive assets is somewhat subjective. We have
classified Overseas Equities, UK Equities, Other

16

7.3

7.4

Investments and Property to be return seeking assets
and Corporate Bonds, Gilts and Cash to be defensive
assets. We note this is a broad and subjective
categorisation. The proportion of assets by market
value invested in return seeking assets has increased
from 74% as at 31 March 2019 to 81% as at 31 March
2022, with a corresponding decrease in the proportion
invested in defensive assets. We note that whilst
defensive assets are expected to generate less volatile
returns overall relative to changes in liability values,
they may still be expected to generate a positive return
relative to the fund liabilities.

This analysis is based on the data provided by the fund
actuaries. There is a wide range of investments held
by LGPS funds and it is not always possible for fund
actuaries to allocate all assets to the categories used
for this purpose. As a result, this analysis should be
treated with caution particularly in relation to the asset
split between UK quoted equities and Overseas
equities. For example, a global equity fund holding
which includes some UK equities is likely to be
recorded only as an overseas equity holding. Further,
private equity is not separated between UK and
overseas. It is therefore likely that the UK asset
holdings are understated.

The majority of the LGPS assets are held in equities,
with the bulk of this investment being recorded as
overseas equities. Of the defensive asset category the
largest asset class remains in corporate bonds.



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13) Local Government Pension Scheme
Funding Analysis report England and Wales

Chart 10: The proportion of total LGPS assets split by broad asset class by market value at 31 March 2022

€T¢ obed

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% T0% 80% 90% 100%
» Private Equities = Property = Owerseas Equities = UK quoted equities Cther return seeking = Multiasset funds
= Corporate bonds s Fixedinterest Gilts = [ndex-Linked Gilts = Dther Cash

17



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13) Local Government Pension Scheme

Funding Analysis report England and Wales
7.5 There is some variance between the investment maximum proportions. (Note that where the middle
strategies of different funds. Chart 11 demonstrates coloured box includes 0% the lower black line may not
this variance by asset category. be clear). The black diamonds represent the asset
weighted averages as seen in chart 10 above. For the
7.6 The coloured box in the middle represents the range of purpose of this evaluation we have deducted values
proportions within which the middle 50% of funds sit. less than 0% (i.e. debts or negative derivative values)
The lower and upper lines represent the spread of from other assets.

proportions for the lower and upper 25% of funds such
that the end points represent the minimum and

Chart 11: Variation in asset split by broad asset class by market value at 31 March 2022 (provided by fund actuaries)

100%

90%

80%

70%

v T abed

60%

50%

N

30% l

20% H
10% £ 2

*
v, | ‘ - .L = e
Private Property = Overseas UK quoted Other return Multi-asset Corporate Fixed- Index-Linked  Other Cash
Equities Equities equities seeking funds bonds Interest Gilts Gilts

These categorisations are based on data provided by fund actuaries. We note there are some limitations in the data as explained
above.

18



GT¢ abed

Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Funding Analysis report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

8.

8.1

Net cashflow position

For the purpose of this analysis we have defined the
net cashflow position relative to assets of the individual
funds as:

Total income over the year (excluding investment returns)

less Total expenditure over the year

Market value of assets held at the beginning of the year

8.2

The higher a fund’s net cashflow position, the better
position it is in to meet pension payments without
reliance on current investment returns. A strongly
negative cashflow position (of less than -3% say)
means that cashflow requirements will be a potentially
material factor impacting investment strategy.

Chart 12 shows the distribution of funds by net
cashflow position in 2022. It highlights that there is
considerable variance within this measure. There are
three funds with a net cashflow position of less

than -2%.

19

Chart 12: Number of funds by net cashflow position in 2022
(excluding Environment Agency Funds)

Number of funds

8.4

8.5

50
45
40
35
30
25
20
15
10

43
19 19
1 2 1 0
| - |
4% to -3%to -2% to -1% to 0% to 1% to 2% to
-3% -2% -1% 0% 1% 2% 3%

Net cashflow position

Chart 13 has been derived from SF3 data publicly
available. The data is not available for the
Environment Agency Closed and Active Funds, which
have been excluded from this analysis. Funds sitting
above the dotted line have seen an improvement in
their net cashflow position from 2019 to 2022 and vice
versa.

The average net cashflow position across all funds was
-0.8% for the financial year starting April 2022. This is
a small deterioration of 0.2 percentage points on the
position for the financial year commencing April 2019
of -0.6%.



9T¢ abed

Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)

Funding Analysis report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

Chart 13: Change in net cashflow position as a proportion of assets between 2019 and 2022 (excluding Environment Agency

Closed and Active Funds)

Net cashflows as a proportion of year start assets 2022

5%

4%

3%

2%

1%

0%

-1%

-2%

-3%

-4%

-5%

-6%

-5%

-4%

-3%

[ ) .”
° oo ..?. °
”,/ ® ([ ] [ ]
PR ]
°
& Average
2% -1% 0% 1% 2% 3% 4% 5%

Net cashflows as a proportion of year start assets 2019

20



Review of 2022 fund valuations (section 13)
Funding Analysis report

Local Government Pension Scheme
England and Wales

9.

9.1

9.2

/T¢ abed

Further information

Further information and analysis can be found in:

¢ Review of LGPS fund valuations as at 31 March
2022 under Section 13 main report dated 14 August
2024

¢ Review of LGPS fund valuations as at 31 March
2022 under Section 13 appendices dated 14
August 2024

This analysis was undertaken based on the data and
funding positions as at 31 March 2022, see
Introduction for details. Changes may have occurred
since then.

21



This page is intentionally left blank



London Borough of
Havering Pension Fund

QD
®022 Valuation Section 13 Results

6T¢

Steven Law FFA
Ciaran Henry AFA

1 October 2024
For an on behalf of Hymans Robertson LLP

Hymans Robertson LLP is authorised and
regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority

‘IOGyMANS H ROBERTSON



HYMANS #
‘Io ""’”’L”“”' SECTION 13 — WHAT IS IT? SECTION 13 — GENERAL RESULTS S1SGlsl BRI L oL bl izl ac ol

HAVERING RESULTS

LOOKING AHEAD TO THE 2025
VALUATION

Contents

We will discuss:

Page
(g;%ection 13 — What is it? 3
%ection 13 — General Results 5
E\EJ’Section 13 — London Borough of Havering Results 9
Looking ahead to the 2025 valuation 13

HYMANS 3 ROBERTSON



‘I OUWANS 3 ROBERTSON

Section 13 — What 1s 1t?

4w D



SECTION 13 - WHAT IS IT?

SECTION 13 — LONDON BOROUGH OF
HAVERING RESULTS

LOOKING AHEAD TO THE 2025
VALUATION

SECTION 13 — GENERAL RESULTS

What is Section 13?

Under Section 13 of the Public Service Pensions Act the Ministry of

Housing, Communities and Local Government (‘MHCLG”)

appointed the Government Actuary’s Department (GAD) to carry

out a review of the LGPS local funding valuations. We previously

submitted data and information regarding the 2022 valuation on the
nd’s behalf to GAD and they used this data, along with data from

other LGPS Funds to carry out their analysis.
D
f=A\D published their report on the 2022 valuations on 14 August

%24.

The full report can be found at:

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/Igps-ew-review-of-the-
actuarial-valuations-of-funds-as-at-31-march-2022

What does the Section 13 report cover?

This GAD analysis is very analytical and presents various metrics in a “like-for-like”
fashion so that reasonable comparisons can be made between LGPS funds. Section 13
requires GAD to ascertain whether each local fund valuation has achieved the following
aims:

* The valuation complies with the LGPS regulations.

In assessing compliance, GAD has focussed on Regulation 62 covering mainly the
valuation report and employer contribution rate setting and has not considered other
elements of the valuation process, including the compliance of the Funding Strategy
Statement.

* The valuation has been carried out in a way which is not inconsistent with other
local fund valuations.

* The valuation has set employer rates that ensure the solvency and the long-term
cost efficiency of the fund.

For solvency GAD focuses on whether the assets held, together with employers’
contributions are sufficient to target 100% funding over an appropriate period.

For long-term cost efficiency GAD also considers issues of inter-generational fairness in
employer contribution rates, ensuring that employers pay a fair amount to cover
benefits earned during the current period of participation.

HYMANS 3 ROBERTSON

4w D



‘I OUWANS 3 ROBERTSON

Section 13 — General Results

4w D



SECTION 13 - WHAT IS IT?

SECTION 13 — GENERAL RESULTS

SECTION 13 — LONDON BOROUGH OF

LOOKING AHEAD TO THE 2025

HAVERING RESULTS VALUATION

What did GAD report for all LGPS Funds to consider?

Compliance

The valuations were considered compliant with the relevant Regulations.

n -
Bonsistency
9]

fSA\D recognised the improved presentational consistency in the 2022 valuations,
that the continued use of the section 13 dashboard (first introduced for the
19 valuations) greatly aids stakeholders’ understanding.

GAD noted concern around the continued lack of evidential consistency since
the previous review at 2019. Whilst GAD appreciate that specific fund circumstances
may merit the use of different actuarial assumptions, they believe that these
differences may lead to different outcomes, for example different contribution rates.
Wherever possible, GAD believe in the importance of information being presented in
a way that facilitates comparisons.

GAD made 2 formal recommendations in this area for the Scheme Advisory Board
to consider:

* Whether greater consistency could and should be achieved to allow easier
comparison between funds and better understanding of risks, and

* whether guidance would be helpful to support greater consistency on
6 emerging issues

4w D

Climate risk

GAD recognised the significant progress made by funds and actuarial
advisers in the presentation of climate risk analysis as part of the
2022 fund valuations. They recommended that work continues to refine
their Climate Change Principles Document in advance of the 2025 fund
valuations.

Hymans Robertson comments

On consistency recommendations:

“We have commented to GAD that it would be helpful to understand which
elements of a valuation they believe there could be greater consistency. There are
legitimate reasons why LGPS funds may have differing views and circumstances
regarding elements such as methodology, prudence, assumptions and a one size
fits all consistent approach would not be appropriate.

We are supportive of anything that helps awareness around emerging risks and
offers ideas about how these risks can be assessed, understood and reported on.
However, given such risks are emerging and typically uncertain, we believe that it
is beneficial for the LGPS if funds are free to proportionately explore a variety of
managing, measuring and mitigation options to avoid ‘group think’ and systemic
risk.

HYMANS 3 ROBERTSON



SECTION 13 — LONDON BOROUGH OF LOOKING AHEAD TO THE 2025

- ? -
SECTION 13 - WHAT IS IT? SECTION 13 — GENERAL RESULTS HAVERING RESULTS VALUATION

What did GAD report for all LGPS Funds to consider?

Flags

To assess solvency and long-term cost efficiency GAD
designed a number of metrics and raised flags against these
metrics against specific funds to highlight areas where risk
ay be present, or further investigation is required, using a
cved/amber/green/white rating approach.

(0]
N
N
U"ln Red = Material issue
Amber = Potential material issue
HE] White = Advisory highlighting a general issue

Green = No material issues

The London Borough of Havering Pension Fund received all

green flags for both Solvency and Long-Term Cost Efficiency.

Solvency

On solvency GAD reported:

In aggregate, the funding position of the LGPS has improved since 31 March 2019; and the
scheme appears to be in a strong financial position.

Total assets have grown in market value from £291bn to £379bn
Total liabilities disclosed in the 2022 local valuation reports amounted to £355bn.

The aggregate funding level of the LGPS on prudent local bases has improved from 98%
(in 2019) to 106% (at 2022) due in large part to strong asset returns over the 3-year period
to 31 March 2022.

The size of funds has grown significantly over the three years to 31 March 2022 relative to
the size of the underlying authorities. This means that funds in deficit were more likely to
trigger GAD’s asset shock measure, where there is a risk of a large changes in contribution
rates following a sustained reduction in the value of return-seeking assets. GAD raised
white flags against impacted funds.

Given the strong position, no red or amber flags were raised in the LGPS for solvency
concerns.

<] @ [> HYMANS 3 ROBERTSON



SECTION 13 - WHAT IS IT? SECTION 13 — GENERAL RESULTS

SECTION 13 — LONDON BOROUGH OF LOOKING AHEAD TO THE 2025

HAVERING RESULTS VALUATION

What did GAD report for all LGPS Funds to consider?

Long-term Cost Efficiency

In assessing long-term cost efficiency, GAD focussed mainly on Funds’
cpntribution levels, deficit recovery plans and on ensuring that Funds
(g’aintained a deficit recovery plan from one valuation to the next.

%D raised amber flags against 3 funds:

gFor 2 funds, GAD were concerned about their deficit recovery
periods. GAD estimated that current contribution rates will not be
sufficient to reach full funding on a best estimate basis within the
deficit recovery period used at the valuation.

* For a further fund, GAD were concerned that employer contribution
rates were decreasing (reducing the burden on current taxpayers) at
the same time as the deficit recovery is being extended further into
the future (increasing the burden on future taxpayers).

As in their 2019 valuation report, GAD recommended that (where
deficits exist) funds should be able to demonstrate that deficit recovery
plans are a continuation of the previous plan. Given the strong funding
positions across the LGPS, GAD further recommended that the
Scheme Advisory Board consider the approach to surpluses in
their review of the Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) guidance.

8

Hymans Robertson comments

On long-term cost efficiency recommendations:
We are supportive of the recommendation that additional guidance be provided to
support funds in balancing considerations when in surplus positions, so long as it

does not constrain individual funding strategy decisions.

We remain unconvinced that continuing the same plan (which GAD interpret to
mean recovering a deficit by a fixed end point) is appropriate for LGPS employers
that are expected to participate for the long term. It also ignores that there is no
single ‘deficit recovery’ for the fund, it is in effect the sum/average of all the
employers’ own funding strategies

HYMANS 3 ROBERTSON
< @ D>



‘I OUWANS 3 ROBERTSON

Section 13 — London Borough of
Havering Results

4w D



SECTION 13 — LONDON BOROUGH OF LOOKING AHEAD TO THE 2025

SECTION 13 - WHAT IS IT? SECTION 13 — GENERAL RESULTS HAVERING RESULTS VALUATION

Summary Metrics for London Borough of Havering Fund

Funding Level

The funding level calculated using the SAB “best

g-? estimate” basis. This facilitates like for like comparison
% but is not suitable for funding purposes
N
Required Retiy Funding Level 98% 81st
The required investment return rate to achieve full . o
funding in 20 years’ time on the standardised best Required return S i
timate basi
Rt Return Scope 1.1% 66th

Return Scope

The required investment return rate as calculated in

required return, compared with the fund’s expected best
estimate future returns assuming current asset mix is
maintained. The more positive the return scope is, the
more prudent the funding plan is.

10 <] @. [> HYMANS 3 ROBERTSON



SECTION 13 — LONDON BOROUGH OF LOOKING AHEAD TO THE 2025

SECTION 13 - WHAT IS IT? SECTION 13 — GENERAL RESULTS HAVERING RESULTS VALUATION

SOIVCHCY 2022 Funding Levels

180%

160% o
SAB standard basis — ranked
81 out of 86* LGPS funds

80%y (D11
Y ' _
L&al funding basis — ranked 60%

% out of 86* LGPS funds

40%

N
N 20%
(o]

0%
d Y
R O T e e S e T S A A e S S B A e S O S S S SR S
S &SP Lo AOE & TPt TS RE LB ST F oS S & (Fe> CefNS F & S PSS @ S 0 O 8T o0 ey St o QNS o SV O P 8" 8 £ 2 A0S S e T F P2 ¢
Lot NG T I O T R E T TR (PSS O O NE O TS ESRCE© R G N T TR QO s P P RS S o RE DS O S o
&S VS Fo¥ T FTS S E F e FNACES TS0 W S LS on® N S Y NN
N < S S Q¥ RGNNSO NN e & ER S 2 RS A A
W N e RS ¥ S £ NS IR S P O S e
& SN0 S So? @ éé\ Qi‘o f = \00%0\& &
& 6\»@(@ 8 & & \L@% PSS
[©) & & & R L =
& < &
\/Q
Funding Level on SAB Standardised Basis ‘ A .
2022 funding level ® 2022 SAB funding level = == 2022 LGPS average funding level

The funding level calculated using the SAB “best
estimate” basis facilitates like for like comparison but is
not suitable for funding purposes

London Borough of Havering have moved up 3 places versus 2019 on SAB’s Standardised Basis.
As a result, London Borough of Havering Pension Fund received no flags for solvency
concerns.

11  *Analysis excludes the Environment Agency Closed Fund 4 ,@ D HYMANS 3 ROBERTSON



SECTION 13 - WHAT IS IT?

SECTION 13 — GENERAL RESULTS

Long-term cost efficiency

Employer contribution rata@g—gi (@:ﬁEd

12

SAB relative funding level vs Employer contribution rate

35%

London Borough of
Waltham Forest Pension
Fund

30%

Royal County of
Berkshire Pension
20% Fund

15%

10%
-40% -30%

-10% 0%

-20%

10%

20%

Funding level relative to overall average at 31 Mar 2022 (SAB basis)

Reproduced from GAD’s Section 13 report published 14 August 2022

Aon
Bamett Waddingham
Hymans Robertson

® Mercer

4w D

LOOKING AHEAD TO THE 2025
VALUATION

SECTION 13 — LONDON BOROUGH OF
HAVERING RESULTS

Comparing Contributions and Funding Level

This chart shows the contributions paid by each
Fund against their relative funding level. Each dot
represents a fund.

« Everything else being equal you would expect
lower funding levels (left hand side) to
correspond to higher contribution rates.

* GAD has raised amber flags against the two
funds indicated as it considers that the current
contribution rates will not be sufficient to reach
full funding on a best estimate basis within the
deficit recovery period used at the valuation.

» This analysis is limited as it doesn’t allow for
different investment strategies or lump sum
payments made outside of the regular
contributions certified.

* London Borough of Havering Pension Fund is
indicated. No flags were raised against the
Fund for long-term cost efficiency concerns.

HYMANS 3 ROBERTSON



‘I OUWANS 3 ROBERTSON

Looking ahead to the 2025
valuation

4w D



SECTION 13 — LONDON BOROUGH OF LOOKING AHEAD TO THE 2025
HAVERING RESULTS VALUATION

SECTION 13 - WHAT IS IT? SECTION 13 — GENERAL RESULTS

2024/25 timeline

Longevity review J

l Exploration of funding strategy

2se abed

Plan agreed

I

Membership data cleansing &
data review

[ Employer engagement

14 <] ﬁ{r [> HYMANS 3 ROBERTSON



SECTION 13 — LONDON BOROUGH OF LOOKING AHEAD TO THE 2025

- ? -
SECTION 13 - WHAT IS IT? SECTION 13 — GENERAL RESULTS HAVERING RESULTS VALUATION

Employer Project End

consultation closes

2025/26 timeline

Employer consultation
commences:
Employer Results
Schedules and draft FSS

issued to employers

l Funding and investment strategy review

Triennial cashflow data
provision

Draft valuation report
and R&A certificate

Provision of
membership data and
employer database

Employer results and draft
Funding Strategy
Statement

Review Funding Strategy
Statement and policies

Whole fund results

HYMANS 3 ROBERTSON

15 <]1j'|\_l‘[>



3 ||5-r.1m-=5§t
‘Iocj”““' SECTION 13 — WHAT IS IT? SECTION 13 — GENERAL RESULTS

SECTION 13 — LONDON BOROUGH OF LOOKING AHEAD TO THE 2025
HAVERING RESULTS VALUATION

Current pressures on the valuation

g S | Future asset returns
S . .
© 2 3 | Central banks signalling
@ O economic slow-down
«Q
D
N
& €
S5 & Higher interest rates vs 2022
% £
o 2 = Puts downwards pressure on
X O contribution rates

Pensions review

Potentially impacting
investment risk / benefits

Known
unknowns

16

Inflation

BoE signalling higher than 2%
expectations

Government policy

Interference in investment
risks, real pay growth

Investment returns

In line with actuarial
expectation

Benefit uncertainty

Cost-sharing and McCloud
increasingly settled

GAD Section 13

Increasing focus on
intergenerational fairness

Council funding

Government support still not
clear

4w D

HYMANS 3 ROBERTSON




‘I OUWANS 3 ROBERTSON

Thank you

This Powerpoint presentation contains confidential information belonging to Hymans Robertson LLP (HR).
HR are the owner or the licensee of all intellectual property rights in the Powerpoint presentation. All such
rights are reserved. The material and charts included herewith are provided as background information for
illustration purposes only. This Powerpoint presentation is not a definitive analysis of the subjects covered
and should not be regarded as a substitute for specific advice in relation to the matters addressed. It is not
advice and should not be relied upon. This Powerpoint presentation should not be released or otherwise
disclosed to any third party without prior consent from HR. HR accept no liability for errors or omissions or
reliance upon any statement or opinion herein.

4w D




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF THE MEETING
	Minutes

	6 PENSION FUND PERFORMANCE MONITORING FOR THE QUARTER ENDED JUNE 2024
	Appendix A - Open
	Appendix B - Exempt
	Appendix C - Exempt

	7 PUBLIC SERVICE PENSIONS ACT 2013 - SECTION 13 REPORT
	Appendix A1
	Appendix B1
	Appendix C1
	Appendix D1


